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Summary of Audit Findings
Annual Financial Report
Madison County, Tennessee
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

Scope

We have audited the basic financial statements of Madison County as of and for the year
ended June 30, 2014.

Results
Our report on Madison County’s financial statements is unmodified.
Our audit resulted in seven findings and recommendations, which we have reviewed with
Madison County management. Detailed findings, recommendations, and management’s
responses are included in the Single Audit section of this report.
Findings

The following are summaries of the audit findings:

HEALTH DEPARTMENT

¢  The Health Department did not report a theft to the county mayor, finance director, or
the Comptroller of the Treasury.

OFFICE OF FINANCE DIRECTOR

¢  Some purchase orders were issued after purchases were made.
¢ A cellular phone policy had not been adopted.
¢ Expenditures exceeded appropriations in the Local Purpose Tax Fund.

OFFICES OF FINANCE DIRECTOR AND DIRECTOR OF SCHOOLS

¢  The county has not complied with the provisions of the County Financial Management
System of 1981.

¢ The School Department failed to comply with state statutes regarding lease
agreements.




OFFICE OF COUNTY CLERK

¢ Cash and checks totaling $23,178.25 were stolen from the office safe.
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Madison County Officials
June 30, 2014

Officials

Jimmy Harris, County Mayor

Bart Walls, Highway Engineer

Dr. Verna Ruffin, Director of Schools
John Newman, Trustee

Frances Hunley, Assessor of Property
Fred Birmingham, County Clerk
Kathy Blount, Circuit and General Sessions Courts Clerk
Bart Swift, Juvenile Court Clerk
Pam Carter, Clerk and Master

Linda Waldon, Register of Deeds
Tommy Cunningham, Sheriff

Mike Nichols, Finance Director

Board of County Commissioners

Mark Johnstone, Chairman Larry Lowrance

Jimmy Arnold
Jerry Bastin

Katie Brantley
Claudell Brown, dJr.
Scott Brown

Gary Deaton
Adrian Eddleman
Aaron Ellison

Ann Harrell

Jim Ed Hart
Arthur Johnson, dJr.
Barbara Johnson

Board of Education

Jim Campbell, Chairman
Bob Alvey

Dave Bratcher

David Clifft

Janice Hampton

Jeffery Head

Dr. Joe Mays

Truman Murray

George Neely

William Martin
Luther Mercer
Gerry Neese
James Pearson
William Ragon
Joe Roland
Billy Spain
Doug Stephenson
Gary Tippett
Bill Walls
Arthur Wilson

Financial Management Committee

Gary Deaton, Chairman

Bart Walls, Highway Engineer

Dr. Verna Ruffin, Director of Schools
Jimmy Harris, County Mayor

James Pearson

Billy Spain

Doug Stephenson

(Continued)



Madison County Officials (Cont.)

Audit Committee

William Sipes, Jr., Chairman
Scott Brown

Adrian Eddleman

Ann Harrell

Teresa Henson

Larry Lowrance

Thomas Ray Washington, Jr.
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STATE OF TENNESSEE

COMPTROLLER OF THE TREASURY
DEPARTMENT OF AUDIT

DIVISION OF LOCAL GOVERNMENT AUDIT
SUITE 1500
JAMES K. POLK STATE OFFICE BUILDING
NASHVILLE, TENNESSEE 37243-1402
PHONE (615) 401-7841

Independent Auditor's Report

Madison County Mayor and
Board of County Commissioners
Madison County, Tennessee

To the County Mayor and Board of County Commissioners:
Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the
aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of Madison County, Tennessee, as of and for the year ended
June 30, 2014, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively
comprise the county’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal
control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit.
We did not audit the financial statements of the Madison County Emergency
Communications District, which represent five percent, 6.3 percent, and 1.2 percent,
respectively, of the assets, net position, and revenues of the aggregate discretely presented
component units. Those statements were audited by other auditors whose report has been
furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for the
Madison County Emergency Communications District, is based solely on the report of the
other auditors. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally

12



accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the
United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, based on our audit and the report of other auditors, the financial statements
referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of
the governmental activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Madison County, Tennessee,
as of June 30, 2014, and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable,
cash flows thereof and the respective budgetary comparisons for the General and
Highway/Public Works funds for the year then ended in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Change in Accounting Principle

As described in Note V.B., Madison County has adopted the provisions of Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 67, Financial Reporting for Pension
Plans and GASB Statement No. 70, Accounting and Reporting for Nonexchange Financial
Guarantees, which have an effective date of June 30, 2014. Our opinion is not modified with
respect to this matter.

Other Matters

Required Supplementary Information

Management has omitted the management’s discussion and analysis that accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America require to be presented to
supplement the basic financial statements. Such missing information, although not a part

of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards
Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic

13



financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. Our
opinion on the basic financial statements is not affected by this missing information.

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
schedules of funding progress — pension plans and other postemployment benefit plans on
pages 86-89 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information,
although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting
for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or
historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the
methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with
management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not
express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited
procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any
assurance.

Supplementary and Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements
that collectively comprise Madison County’s basic financial statements. The introductory
section, combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements, budgetary
comparison schedules of nonmajor governmental funds and the General Debt Service Fund,
combining and individual fund financial statements of the Madison County School
Department (a discretely presented component unit), and miscellaneous schedules are
presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic
financial statements.

The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements, budgetary comparison
schedules of nonmajor governmental funds and the General Debt Service Fund, combining
and individual fund financial statements of the Madison County School Department
(a discretely presented component unit), and miscellaneous schedules are the responsibility
of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and
other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements
and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial
statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.
In our opinion, the combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements,
budgetary comparison schedules of nonmajor governmental funds and the General Debt
Service Fund, combining and individual fund financial statements of the Madison County
School Department (a discretely presented component unit), and miscellaneous schedules
are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a
whole.
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The introductory section has not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the
audit of the basic financial statements, and accordingly, we do not express an opinion or
provide any assurance on it.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
February 25, 2015, on our consideration of Madison County’s internal control over financial
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to
describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over
financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed
in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Madison County’s
internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Very truly yours,
%A,/u/f_/

Justin P. Wilson
Comptroller of the Treasury
Nashville, Tennessee

February 25, 2015

JPW/kp
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Madison County, Tennessee

Statement of Net Position

June 30, 2014

Exhibit A

Component Units

Primary Madison
Government County Emergency
Governmental School Communications
Activities Department District
ASSETS
Cash $ 50,894 $ 159,975 $ 4,187,463
Equity in Pooled Cash and Investments 21,266,020 10,885,970 0
Accounts Receivable 1,202,344 224,057 38,044
Allowance for Uncollectibles (13,482) 0 0
Due from Other Governments 3,223,543 6,612,423 42,608
Due from Component Units 794,089 0 0
Property Taxes Receivable 34,206,685 11,524,824 0
Allowance for Uncollectible Property Taxes (1,206,048) (401,468) 0
Prepaid Items 24,478 0 8,747
Accrued Interest Receivable 0 0 2,634
Capital Assets:
Assets Not Depreciated:
Land 8,346,077 2,091,562 16,100
Assets Net of Accumulated Depreciation:
Buildings and Improvements 15,716,805 64,851,171 272,708
Infrastructure 26,169,708 503,303 0
Other Capital Assets 4,104,864 6,937,958 896,533
Total Assets $ 113,885,977 3 103,389,775 $ 5,464,837
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred Charge on Refunding $ 1,668,514  § 0$ 0
Total Deferred Outflows of Resources $ 1,568,514  § 0 $ 0
LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable $ 389,655 $ 82,250 $ 60,142
Accrued Payroll 42,600 471 0
Payroll Deductions Payable 628,895 3,070,339 0
Accrued Leave 0 0 22,345
Contracts Payable 1,394,007 0 0
Due to State of Tennessee 3,959 0 0
Other Current Liabilities 42 0 0
Accrued Interest Payable 385,022 0 0
Noncurrent Liabilities:
Due Within One Year 7,972,583 288,853 0
Due in More Than One Year (net of unamortized
premium on debt) 46,680,141 9,065,250 0
Total Liabilities $ 57,496,904 $ 12,507,163 $ 82,487
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred Current Property Taxes $ 32,070,338 $ 10,817,779 $ 0
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources $ 32,070,338  $ 10,817,779 $ 0
(Continued)
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Exhibit A

Madison County, Tennessee
Statement of Net Position (Cont.)

Component Units

Primary Madison
Government County Emergency
Governmental School Communications
Activities Department District
NET POSITION

Net Investment in Capital Assets $ 50,443,674 $ 74,383,994 $ 1,185,341
Restricted for:

General Government 227,861 0 0
Finance 19,489 0 0
Administration of Justice 217,485 0 0
Public Safety 303,040 0 0
Public Health and Welfare 382,555 0 0
Social, Cultural, and Recreational Services 21,178 0 0
Highways/Public Works 6,505,498 0 0
Capital Outlay 214,260 33,003 0
Debt Service 4,863,946 0 0
Education 0 160,202 0
Operation of Non-instructional Services 0 2,549,788 0
Unrestricted (37,311,737) 2,937,846 4,197,009
Total Net Position $ 25,887,249  $ 80,064,833 $ 5,382,350

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Exhibit C-2

Madison County, Tennessee
Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2014

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position
(Exhibit A) are different because:

Total fund balances - balance sheet - governmental funds (Exhibit C-1) $ 21,417,521

(1) Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial
resources and therefore are not reported in the governmental funds.

Add: land $ 8,346,077
Add: buildings and improvements net of accumulated depreciation 15,716,805
Add: infrastructure net of accumulated depreciation 26,169,708
Add: other capital assets net of accumulated depreciation 4,104,864 54,337,454

(2) Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs
of employee health benefits to individual funds. The assets and
liabilities of the internal service fund are included in governmental
activities in the statement of net position. 2,088,589

(3) Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current
period and therefore are not reported in the governmental funds.

Less: bonds payable $ (49,420,000)
Add: deferred amount on refunding 1,568,514
Less: compensated absences payable (1,870,241)
Less: other postemployment benefits liability (2,536,802)
Less: accrued interest on bonds (385,022)
Less: other deferred revenue - premium on debt (825,681) (53,469,232)

(4) Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current-period
expenditures and therefore are deferred in the governmental funds. 1,512,917

Net position of governmental activities (Exhibit A) $ 25,887,249

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Exhibit C-4

Madison County, Tennessee

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities

For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities (Exhibit B) are
different because:

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds (Exhibit C-3)

(1) Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the
statement of activities, the cost of these assets is allocated over their useful
lives and reported as depreciation expense. The difference between capital
outlays and depreciation is itemized as follows:
Add: capital assets purchased in the current period $ 1,670,398

Less: current-year depreciation expense (3,369,852)

(2) Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current
financial resources are not reported as revenues in the funds.
Add: deferred delinquent property taxes and other deferred June 30, 2014 $  1,512)917

Less: deferred delinquent property taxes and other deferred June 30, 2013 (1,553,337)

(3) The issuance of long-term debt (e.g., bonds, notes) provides
current financial resources to governmental funds, while the repayment
of the principal of long-term debt consumes the current financial
resources of governmental funds. Neither transaction, however, has any
effect on net position. Also, governmental funds report the effect of
premiums, discounts, and similar items when debt is first issued, whereas
these amounts are deferred and amortized in the statement of activities.
This amount is the effect of these differences in the treatment of long-term
debt and related items.

Less: refunding bond proceeds (17,150,000)
Add: change in premium on debt issuances 312,165
Add: principal payments on bonds 7,655,000
Add: refunded bond principal 16,450,000
Add: change in deferred amount on refunding debt 1,364,933

(4) Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the
use of current financial resources and therefore are not reported as
expenditures in the governmental funds.

Change in accrued interest payable $ 184,556
Change in compensated absences payable 29,007
Change in other postemployment benefits liability (357,448)

(5) Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of
employee insurance to individual funds. The net revenue (expense) of
certain activities of the internal service fund is reported with
governmental activities in the statement of activities.

Change in net position of governmental activities (Exhibit B)

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Exhibit D-1

Madison County, Tennessee
Statement of Net Position
Proprietary Fund

June 30, 2014

Governmental
Activities -
Internal
Service
Fund
Employee
Insurance
Fund
ASSETS
Equity in Pooled Cash and Investments $ 1,866,795
Due from Other Funds 371,794
Total Assets $ 2,238,589
LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable $ 150,000
Total Liabilities $ 150,000
NET POSITION
Unrestricted $ 2,088,589
Net Position $ 2,088,589

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Exhibit D-2

Madison County, Tennessee
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and
Changes in Net Position

Proprietary Fund

For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

Operating Revenues
Self-Insurance Premiums/Contributions
Total Operating Revenues

Operating Expenses
Excess Risk Insurance
Medical Claims

Other Charges
Total Operating Expenses

Operating Income (Loss)

Nonoperating Revenues
Investment Income
Total Nonoperating Revenues

Change in Net Position
Net Position, July 1, 2013

Net Position, June 30, 2014

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Governmental

Activities -

Internal
Service
Fund

Employee
Insurance

Fund

4,218,616

SH|L

4,218,616

373,510
4,095,856
309,168

4,778,534

(559,918)

1,839

1,839

(558,079)
2,646,668

2,088,589




Exhibit D-3
Madison County, Tennessee
Statement of Cash Flows

Proprietary Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Receipts for Self Insurance Premiums
Excess Risk Insurance Payments
Payments for Medical Claims
Payments for Administrative Costs
Net Cash Provided By (Used In) Operating Activities

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Interest on Investments
Net Cash Provided By (Used In) Investing Activities

Increase (Decrease) in Cash
Cash, July 1, 2013

Cash, June 30, 2014

Reconciliation of Net Operating Income (Loss)

to Net Cash Provided By (Used In) Operating Activities

Governmental
Activities -
Internal
Service
Fund

Employee
Insurance

Fund

$ 3,846,822
(373,510)
(4,095,856)
(309,168)

R

(931,712)

1,839

SRR

1,839

$ (929,873
2,796,668

$ 1,866,795

Operating Income (Loss)

Adjustments to Reconcile Net Operating Income (Loss) to
Net Cash Provided By (Used In) Operating Activities:

(Increase) Decrease in Due from Other Funds

Net Cash Provided By (Used In) Operating Activities

Reconciliation of Cash With the Statement of Net Position

$  (559,918)

(371,794)

$ (931,712

Equity in Pooled Cash and Investments Per Net Position

Cash, June 30, 2014

$ 1,866,795

$ 1,866,795

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Exhibit E

Madison County, Tennessee

Statement of Fiduciary Assets and Liabilities
Fiduciary Funds

June 30, 2014

ASSETS

Cash

Equity in Pooled Cash and Investments
Accounts Receivable

Due from Other Governments

Total Assets

LIABILITTES
Due to Other Taxing Units
Due to Litigants, Heirs, and Others
Other Current Liabilities

Total Liabilities

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Agency
Funds

4,668,520
160,631
84,815
2,135,138

7,049,104

2,242 481
4,698,381
108,242

7,049,104




MADISON COUNTY, TENNESSEE
Index of Notes to the Financial Statements

Note

IL.

II1.

Iv.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

A.  Reporting Entity

B. Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial
Statement Presentation

D.  Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources, and
Net Position/Fund Balance

Deposits and Investments

Receivables and Payables

Prepaid Items

Capital Assets

Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

Compensated Absences

Long-term Obligations
8. Net Position and Fund Balance

Reconciliation of Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements

No ok W

A. Explanation of Certain Differences Between the Governmental Fund
Balance Sheet and the Government-wide Statement of Net Position
B. Explanation of Certain Differences Between the Governmental Fund

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
and the Government-wide Statement of Activities

Stewardship, Compliance, and Accountability

A.  Budgetary Information

B. Cash Shortages - Prior and Current Years

C. Expenditures Exceeded Appropriations

D.  The School Department Failed to Comply with State Statutes When

Entering into Lease Agreements

etailed Notes on All Funds

Deposits and Investments

Capital Assets

Construction Commitments

Interfund Receivables, Payables, and Transfers

Operating Leases

Long-term Obligations

On-Behalf Payments

Short-term Debt

ToEECAREY

35

Page(s)

37
38

39

41
42
43
43
44
45
45
46

47

48

48
49
49

50

50
51
54
54
55
56
59
59



MADISON COUNTY, TENNESSEE
Index of Notes to the Financial Statements (Cont.)

Note

VI

Other Information

RerZoEEOOE R

Risk Management

Accounting Changes

Subsequent Events

Contingent Liabilities

Change in Administration

Joint Ventures

Jointly Governed Organization
Retirement Commitments

Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB)
Office of Central Accounting and Budgeting
Purchasing Law

Other Notes - Discretely Presented Madison County

Emergency Communications District

36

Page(s)

60
62
62
63
63
63
64
64
70
75
76

76



MADISON COUNTY, TENNESSEE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Madison County’s financial statements are presented in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles (GAAP). The Governmental Accounting Standards
Board (GASB) is responsible for establishing GAAP for state and local governments.

The following are the more significant accounting policies of Madison County:

A. Reporting Entity

Madison County is a public municipal corporation governed by an elected
25-member board. As required by GAAP, these financial statements present
Madison County (the primary government) and its component units. The
component units discussed below are included in the county's reporting entity
because of the significance of their operational or financial relationships with
the county.

Discretely Presented Component Units — The following entities meet the
criteria for discretely presented component units of the county. They are
reported in separate columns in the government-wide financial statements to
emphasize that they are legally separate from the county.

The Madison County School Department operates the public school system in
the county, and the voters of Madison County elect its board. The School
Department is fiscally dependent on the county because it may not issue
debt, and its budget and property tax levy are subject to the County
Commission’s approval. The School Department’s taxes are levied under the
taxing authority of the county and are included as part of the county’s total
tax levy.

The Madison County Emergency Communications District provides a
simplified means of securing emergency services through a uniform
emergency number for the residents of Madison County, and the Madison
County Commission appoints its governing body. The district is funded
primarily through a service charge levied on telephone services. Before the
issuance of most debt instruments, the district must obtain the County
Commission’s approval.

The Madison County School Department does not issue separate financial
statements from those of the county. Therefore, basic financial statements of
the School Department are included in this report as listed in the table of
contents. Complete financial statements of the Madison County Emergency
Communications District can be obtained from its administrative office at the
following address:
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Administrative Office:
Madison County Emergency Communications District
914 N. Highland Avenue
Jackson, TN 38301

Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the Statement of Net
Position and the Statement of Activities) report information on all of the
nonfiduciary activities of the primary government and its component units.
For the most part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from
these statements. However, when applicable, interfund services provided and
used between functions are not eliminated in the process of consolidation in
the Statement of Activities. Governmental activities are normally supported
by taxes and intergovernmental revenues. Business-type activities, which
rely to a significant extent on fees and charges, are required to be reported
separately from governmental activities in government-wide financial
statements. However, the primary government of Madison County does not
have any business-type activities to report. Likewise, the primary
government is reported separately from certain legally separate component
units for which the primary government is financially accountable. The
Madison County School Department component unit only reports
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.

The Statement of Activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct
expenses of a given function are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses
are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function. Program
revenues include (1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or
directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given
function and (2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the
operational or capital requirements of a particular function. Taxes and other
items not properly included among program revenues are reported instead as
general revenues.

Madison County issues all debt for the discretely presented Madison County
School Department. There were no debt issues contributed by the county to
the School Department during the year ended June 30, 2014.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds,
proprietary funds (internal service), and fiduciary funds. The internal service
fund is reported with the governmental activities in the government-wide
financial statements, and the fiduciary funds are excluded from the
government-wide financial statements. Major individual governmental funds
are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements.
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Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement
Presentation

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic
resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the
proprietary fund and fiduciary funds financial statements, except for agency
funds, which have no measurement focus. Revenues are recorded when
earned, and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of
the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in
the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as
revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have
been met.

Fund financial statements of Madison County are organized into funds, each
of which is considered to be a separate accounting entity. Each fund is
accounted for by providing a separate set of self-balancing accounts that
constitute its assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, deferred
inflows of resources, fund equity, revenues, and expenditures/expenses.
Funds are organized into three major categories: governmental, proprietary,
and fiduciary. An emphasis is placed on major funds within the governmental
category. Madison County reports only one proprietary fund, an internal
service fund. It has no enterprise funds to report.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, the
proprietary fund, and fiduciary funds. Major individual governmental funds
are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements. All other
governmental funds are aggregated into a single column on the fund financial
statements. The internal service fund and the fiduciary funds in total are
reported in single columns by fund type.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current
financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of
accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they become both measurable
and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are
collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay
liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the county considers
revenues other than grants to be available if they are collected within 30 days
after year-end. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as
all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met and the
revenues are available. Madison County considers grants and similar
revenues to be available if they are collected within 120 days after year-end.
Expenditures are generally recognized under the modified accrual basis of
accounting when the related fund liability is incurred. Principal and interest
on long-term debt are recognized as fund liabilities when due or when
amounts have been accumulated in the General Debt Service Fund for
payments to be made early in the following year.

Property taxes for the period levied, in-lieu-of tax payments, sales taxes,
interest, and miscellaneous taxes are all considered to be susceptible to
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accrual and have been recognized as revenues of the current period.
Applicable business taxes, litigation taxes, state-shared excise taxes, fines,
forfeitures, and penalties are not susceptible to accrual since they are not
measurable (reasonably estimable). All other revenue items are considered to
be measurable and available only when the county receives cash.

Proprietary fund and fiduciary funds financial statements are reported using
the economic resources measurement focus, except for agency funds, which
have no measurement focus, and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues
are recognized when earned, and expenses are recorded when a liability is
incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Grants and similar
items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements
imposed by the provider have been met.

Madison County reports the following major governmental funds:

General Fund — This is the county’s primary operating fund. It
accounts for all financial resources of the general government, except
those required to be accounted for in another fund.

Highway/Public Works Fund — This special revenue fund accounts
for transactions of the county’s Highway Department. Local and state
gasoline/fuel taxes are the foundational revenues of this fund.

General Debt Service Fund — This fund accounts for the resources
accumulated and payments made for principal and interest on
long-term general obligation debt of governmental funds.

Additionally, Madison County reports the following fund types:

Capital Projects Funds — These funds are used to account for
financial resources to be used for the acquisition or construction of
major capital facilities.

Internal Service Fund — The Employee Insurance Fund is used to
account for the self-insured employee health insurance program.

Agency Funds — These funds account for amounts collected in an
agency capacity by the constitutional officers, local sales taxes
received by the state to be forwarded to the various cities in Madison
County, assessments for the watershed district, hotel/motel taxes for
the Jackson-Madison County Community Economic Development
Commission, and restricted revenues held for the benefit of the Office
of District Attorney General. Agency funds are custodial in nature
(assets equal liabilities) and do not involve measurement of results of
operations. They do, however, use the accrual basis of accounting to
recognize receivables and payables.
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The discretely presented Madison County School Department reports the
following major governmental funds:

General Purpose School Fund — This fund is the primary operating
fund for the School Department. It is used to account for general
operations of the School Department.

Education Capital Projects Fund - This fund accounts for
transactions involving building construction and renovations of the
School Department.

Additionally, the Madison County School Department reports the following
fund types:

Special Revenue Funds — These funds account for and report the
proceeds of specific revenue sources that are restricted or committed
to expenditure for specified purposes other than debt service or capital
projects.

Fiduciary Fund — The Pension Trust Fund is used to account for a
former City of Jackson Teacher Retirement Plan, which was assumed
by the Madison County Board of Education as a result of the
consolidation of the city and county school systems.

Amounts reported as program revenues include (1) charges to customers or
applicants for goods, services, or privileges provided; (2) operating grants and
contributions; and (3) capital grants and contributions. Internally dedicated
resources are reported as general revenues rather than as program revenues.
Likewise, general revenues include all taxes.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from
nonoperating items. The county has one proprietary fund (internal service
fund) used to account for employees’ health insurance coverage. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services in connection
with the fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating
revenues of the county’s internal service fund are insurance premiums.
Operating expenses for the internal service fund include administrative
expenses and medical benefits.

Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources, and Net
Position/Fund Balance

1. Deposits and Investments

For purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, cash consists of Equity
in Pooled Cash and Investments with the county trustee.
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State statutes authorize the government to make direct investments
in bonds, notes, or treasury bills of the U.S. government and
obligations guaranteed by the U.S. government or any of its agencies;
deposit accounts at state and federal chartered banks and savings and
loan associations; repurchase agreements; the State Treasurer’s
Investment Pool; bonds of any state or political subdivision rated A or
higher by any nationally recognized rating service; nonconvertible
debt securities of certain federal government sponsored enterprises;
and the county’s own legally issued bonds or notes.

The county trustee maintains a cash and internal investment pool
that is used by all funds and the discretely presented Madison County
School Department. Each fund’s portion of this pool is displayed on the
balance sheets or statements of net position as Equity in Pooled Cash
and Investments. Most income from these pooled investments is
assigned to the General Debt Service Fund. Madison County and the
School Department have adopted a policy of reporting U.S. Treasury
obligations, U.S. agency obligations, and repurchase agreements with
maturities of one year or less when purchased on the balance sheet at
amortized cost. Certificates of deposit are reported at cost.
Investments in the State Treasurer’s Investment Pool are reported at
fair value. The State Treasurer’s Investment Pool is not registered
with the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) as an
investment company, but nevertheless has a policy that it will, and
does, operate in a manner consistent with the SEC’s Rule 2a7 of the
Investment Company Act of 1940. Accordingly, the pool qualifies as a
2a7-like pool and is reported at the net asset value per share (which
approximates fair value) even though it is calculated using the
amortized cost method. State statutes require the state treasurer to
administer the pool under the same terms and conditions, including
collateral requirements, as prescribed for other funds invested by the
state treasurer. All other investments are reported at fair value. No
investments required to be reported at fair value were held at the
balance sheet date.

Receivables and Payables

Activity between funds for unremitted current collections outstanding
at the end of the fiscal year is referred to as due to/from other funds.

All Health Department and property taxes receivables are shown with
an allowance for uncollectibles. Health Department receivables
allowance for uncollectibles is based on historical collection data. The
allowance for uncollectible property taxes is equal to 1.84 percent of
total taxes levied.

Property taxes receivable are recognized as of the date an enforceable

legal claim to the taxable property arises. This date is January 1 and
is referred to as the lien date. However, revenues from property taxes
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are recognized in the period for which the taxes are levied, which is
the ensuing fiscal year. Since the receivable is recognized before the
period of revenue recognition, the entire amount of the receivable, less
an estimated allowance for uncollectible taxes, is reported as a
deferred inflow of resources as of June 30.

Property taxes receivable are also reported as of June 30 for the taxes
that are levied, collected, and reported as revenue during the current
fiscal year. These property taxes receivable are presented on the
balance sheet as a deferred inflow of resources to reflect amounts not
available as of June 30. Property taxes collected within 30 days of
year-end are considered available and accrued. The allowance for
uncollectible taxes represents the estimated amount of the receivable
that will be filed in court for collection. Delinquent taxes filed in court
for collection are not included in taxes receivable since they are
neither measurable nor available.

Property taxes are levied as of the first Monday in October. Taxes
become delinquent and begin accumulating interest and penalty the
following March 1. Suit must be filed in Chancery Court between the
following February 1 to April 1 for any remaining unpaid taxes.
Additional costs attach to delinquent taxes after a court suit has been
filed.

Prepaid Items

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future
accounting periods and are recorded as prepaid items in both the
government-wide and fund financial statements. The cost of prepaid
items is recorded as an expenditure when consumed rather than when
purchased. Prepaids are offset in the nonspendable fund balance
account in governmental funds.

Capital Assets

Governmental funds do not capitalize the cost of capital outlays; these
funds report capital outlays as expenditures upon acquisition.

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and
infrastructure assets (e.g., roads, bridges, and similar items), are
reported in the governmental column in the government-wide
financial statements. Capital assets are defined by the government
and the discretely presented Madison County School Department as
assets with an initial, individual cost of $15,000 or more and an
estimated useful life of more than one year. Such assets are recorded
at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or
constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair
market value at the date of donation.
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The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the
value of the asset or materially extend assets’ lives are not capitalized.
Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as
projects are constructed.

Property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure of the primary
government and the discretely presented School Department are
depreciated using the straight-line method over the following
estimated useful lives:

Assets Years
Buildings and Improvements 25 - 40
Other Capital Assets 5-30
Infrastructure:
Roads 5-30
Bridges 30
Schools 10

Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the Statement of Net Position will sometimes
report a separate section for deferred outflows of resources. This
separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources,
represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future
period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources
(expense/expenditure) until then. The government only has one item
that qualifies for reporting in this category. It is the deferred charge
on refunding reported in the government-wide Statement of Net
Position. A deferred charge on refunding results from the difference in
the carrying value of the refunded debt and its reacquisition price.
This amount is deferred and amortized over the shorter of the life of
the refunding or refunded debt.

In addition to liabilities, the Statement of Net Position will sometimes
report a separate section for deferred inflows of resources. This
separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources,
represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future
period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources
(revenue) until that time. The government has items that qualify for
reporting in this category. Accordingly, the items are reported in the
government-wide Statement of Net Position and the governmental
funds balance sheet. These revenues are from the following sources:
current and delinquent property taxes and various receivables for
revenues, which do not meet the availability criteria in governmental
funds. These amounts are deferred and recognized as an inflow of
resources in the period that the amounts become available.

44



Compensated Absences

Madison County and the discretely presented Madison County School
Department permit employees to accumulate a limited amount of
earned but unused vacation benefits that will be paid to employees
upon separation from service. All vacation leave is accrued when
incurred in the government-wide statements for the county. A liability
for vacation pay is reported in governmental funds only if amounts
have matured, for example, as a result of employee resignations and
retirements.

Madison County and the discretely presented Madison County School
Department permit employees to accumulate a limited amount of
earned but unused sick leave; however, the granting of sick leave has
no guaranteed payment attached, except for employees of the
Highway Department.

Long-term Obligations

In the government-wide financial statements, long-term debt and
other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable
governmental activities Statement of Net Position. Debt premiums
and discounts are deferred and are amortized over the life of the new
debt using the straight-line method. Debt issuance costs are expensed
in the period incurred. In refunding transactions, the difference
between the reacquisition price and the net carrying amount of the old
debt is reported as a deferred outflow of resources or a deferred inflow
of resources and recognized as a component of interest expense in a
systematic and rational manner over the remaining life of the
refunded debt or the life of the new debt issued, whichever is shorter.

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds recognize debt
premiums and discounts, as well as debt issuance costs, during the
current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other
financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported
as other financing sources, while discounts on debt issuances are
reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not
withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt
service expenditures.

Only the matured portion (the portion that has come due for payment)
of long-term indebtedness, including bonds payable, is recognized as a
liability and expenditure in the governmental fund financial
statements. Liabilities and expenditures for other long-term obligations,
including compensated absences and other postemployment benefits,
are recognized to the extent that the liabilities have matured (come
due for payment) each period.
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Net Position and Fund Balance

In the government-wide financial statements and the proprietary fund
in the fund financial statements, equity is classified as net position
and displayed in three components:

a. Net investment in capital assets — Consists of capital assets,
including restricted capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation
and reduced by the outstanding balances of any bonds, mortgages,
notes, or other borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition,
construction, or improvement of those assets.

b. Restricted net position — Consists of net position with constraints
placed on the use either by (1) external groups such as creditors,
grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments
or (2) law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

c¢. Unrestricted net position — All other net position that does not
meet the definition of restricted or net investment in capital
assets.

As of June 30, 2014, Madison County had $45,595,050 in outstanding
debt for capital purposes for the discretely presented Madison County
School Department. This debt is a liability of Madison County, but the
capital assets acquired are reported in the financial statements of the
School Department. Therefore, Madison County has incurred a
liability significantly decreasing its unrestricted net position with no
corresponding increase in the county’s capital assets.

It is the county’s policy that restricted amounts would be reduced first
followed by unrestricted amounts when expenditures are incurred for
purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted fund balance is
available. Also, it is the county’s policy that committed amounts would
be reduced first, followed by assigned amounts, and then unassigned
amounts when expenditures are incurred for purposes for which
amounts in any of these unrestricted fund balance classifications could
be used.

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report fund
balance in classifications that comprise a hierarchy based primarily on
the extent to which the government is bound to honor constraints on
the specific purposes for which amounts in these funds can be spent.
These classifications may consist of the following:

Nonspendable Fund Balance — includes amounts that cannot

be spent because they are either (a) not in spendable form or
(b) legally or contractually required to be maintained intact.
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Restricted Fund Balance — includes amounts that have
constraints placed on the use of the resources that are either
(a) externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors or
laws and regulations of other governments or (b) imposed by
law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

Committed Fund Balance — includes amounts that can only be
used for specific purposes pursuant to constraints imposed by
formal resolutions of the County Commission, the county’s
highest level of decision-making authority and the Board of
Education, the School Department’s highest level of
decision-making authority, and shall remain binding unless
removed in the same manner.

Assigned Fund Balance - includes amounts that are
constrained by the county’s intent to be used for specific
purposes, but are neither restricted nor committed (excluding
stabilization arrangements). The County Commission has by
resolution authorized the county’s Finance Committee to make
assignments for the general government. The Board of
Education makes assignments for the School Department.

Unassigned Fund Balance — the residual classification of the
General and General Purpose School funds. This classification
represents fund balance that has not been assigned to other
funds and that has not been restricted, committed, or assigned
to specific purposes within the General and General Purpose

School funds.
I1. RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS
A. Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund

balance sheet and the government-wide Statement of Net Position

Primary Government

Exhibit C-2 includes explanations of the nature of individual elements of
items required to reconcile the balance sheet of governmental funds with the
government-wide Statement of Net Position.

Discretely Presented Madison County School Department

Exhibit J-3 includes explanations of the nature of individual elements of
items required to reconcile the balance sheet of governmental funds with the
government-wide Statement of Net Position.
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Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund
Balances and the government-wide Statement of Activities

Primary Government

Exhibit C-4 includes explanations of the nature of individual elements of
items required to reconcile the net changes in fund balances — total
governmental funds with the change in net position of governmental
activities reported in the government-wide Statement of Activities.

Discretely Presented Madison County School Department

Exhibit J-5 includes explanations of the nature of individual elements of
items required to reconcile the net changes in fund balances — total
governmental funds with the change in net position of governmental
activities reported in the government-wide Statement of Activities.

III. STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY

A.

Budgetary Information

Annual budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted
accounting principles (GAAP) for all governmental funds except the
Constitutional Officers - Fees Fund (special revenue fund), which is not
budgeted, and the Highway Capital Projects Fund, which adopts project
length budgets. All annual appropriations lapse at fiscal year end.

The county is required by state statute to adopt annual budgets. Annual
budgets are prepared on the basis in which current available funds must be
sufficient to meet current expenditures. Expenditures and encumbrances
may not legally exceed appropriations authorized by the County Commission
and any authorized revisions. Unencumbered appropriations lapse at the end
of each fiscal year.

The budgetary level of control is at the major category level established by
the County Uniform Chart of Accounts, as prescribed by the Comptroller of
the Treasury of the State of Tennessee. Major categories are at the
department level (examples of General Fund major categories: County
Commission, County Mayor/Executive, Personnel Office, County Attorney,
etc.). Management may make revisions within major categories, but only the
County Commission may transfer appropriations between major categories.
During the year, several supplementary appropriations were necessary.

The county's budgetary basis of accounting is consistent with GAAP, except
instances in which encumbrances are treated as budgeted expenditures. The
difference between the budgetary basis and the GAAP basis is presented on
the face of each budgetary schedule.
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At June 30, 2014, the Madison County School Department reported the
following significant encumbrances:

Fund Description Amount

School Department:

Major Fund:
General Purpose School Computers $ 410,543
" Professional education training 106,500
Education Capital Projects School renovations 238,400

Cash Shortages — Prior and Current Years

The audit of Madison County for the 2012-13 year reported a cash shortage of
$4,508.75 at the Jackson-Madison County Regional Health Department. Our
investigation revealed that from July 1, 2009, through November 30, 2011,
the former emergency response director fueled his personal vehicle with the
department’s Fuelman gas card, used the county procurement card for his
own personal use, and received unauthorized travel reimbursements. This
individual pled guilty to official misconduct and theft of property (over
$1,000) on November 18, 2013. The former emergency response director was
ordered to pay restitution totaling $11,198.75. The entire amount was repaid
prior to June 30, 2014.

The Jackson-Madison County Regional Health Department had a cash
shortage of $5,513 during the 2013-14 year due to a theft by an employee of a
contracted janitorial service. The shortage was liquidated prior to
June 30, 2014. Details of this cash shortage are discussed in the Schedule of
Findings and Questioned Costs section of this report.

On December 29, 2014, the county clerk filed a fraud reporting form with our
office advising of a cash shortage of $23,178.25 due to a missing deposit.
Details of this cash shortage can be found in the Findings and
Recommendations Section of this report.

Expenditures Exceeded Appropriations

Expenditures exceeded total appropriations approved by the County
Commission in the Local Purpose Tax Fund by $1,322,335. Expenditures that
exceed appropriations are a violation of state statutes. These expenditures in
excess of appropriations were funded by available fund balance.
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The School Department Failed to Comply with State Statutes When
Entering into LLease Agreements

The School Department failed to comply with state statutes when entering
into lease agreements for copy machines. Details are discussed in the
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs section of this report.

IV. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS

A.

Deposits and Investments

Madison County and the Madison County School Department participate in
an internal cash and investment pool through the Office of Trustee. The
county trustee is the treasurer of the county and in this capacity is
responsible for receiving, disbursing, and investing most county funds. Each
fund’s portion of this pool is displayed on the balance sheets or statements of
net position as Equity in Pooled Cash and Investments. Cash reflected on the
balance sheets or statements of net position represents nonpooled amounts
held separately by individual funds.

Deposits

Legal Provisions. All deposits with financial institutions must be secured
by one of two methods. One method involves financial institutions that
participate in the bank collateral pool administered by the state treasurer.
Participating banks determine the aggregate balance of their public fund
accounts for the State of Tennessee and its political subdivisions. The
amount of collateral required to secure these public deposits must equal at
least 105 percent of the average daily balance of public deposits held.
Collateral securities required to be pledged by the participating banks to
protect their public fund accounts are pledged to the state treasurer on behalf
of the bank collateral pool. The securities pledged to protect these accounts
are pledged in the aggregate rather than against each account. The members
of the pool may be required by agreement to pay an assessment to cover any
deficiency. Under this additional assessment agreement, public fund accounts
covered by the pool are considered to be insured for purposes of credit risk
disclosure.

For deposits with financial institutions that do not participate in the bank
collateral pool, state statutes require that all deposits be collateralized with
collateral whose market value is equal to 105 percent of the uninsured
amount of the deposits. The collateral must be placed by the depository bank
in an escrow account in a second bank for the benefit of the county.

Investments
Legal Provisions. Counties are authorized to make direct investments in

bonds, notes, or treasury bills of the U.S. government and obligations
guaranteed by the U.S. government or any of its agencies; deposits at state
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and federal chartered banks and savings and loan associations; bonds of any
state or political subdivision rated A or higher by any nationally recognized
rating service; nonconvertible debt securities of certain federal government
sponsored enterprises; and the county’s own legally issued bonds or notes.
These investments may not have a maturity greater than two years. The
county may make investments with longer maturities if various restrictions
set out in state law are followed. Counties are also authorized to make
investments in the State Treasurer’s Investment Pool and in repurchase
agreements. Repurchase agreements must be approved by the state
Comptroller’s Office and executed in accordance with procedures established
by the State Funding Board. Securities purchased under a repurchase
agreement must be obligations of the U.S. government or obligations
guaranteed by the U.S. government or any of its agencies. When repurchase
agreements are executed, the purchase of the securities must be priced at
least two percent below the fair value of the securities on the day of purchase.

The county had no pooled and nonpooled investments as of June 30, 2014.

Capital Assets

Capital assets activity for the year ended June 30, 2014, was as follows:

Primary Government

Governmental Activities:

Balance Balance
7-1-13 Increases Decreases 6-30-14
Capital Assets Not
Depreciated:
Land $ 8,346,077 $ 0 $ 0 $ 8,346,077
Total Capital Assets
Not Depreciated $ 8,346,077 $ 0 $ 0 $ 8,346,077
Capital Assets
Depreciated:
Buildings and
Improvements $ 26,600,031 $ 485,996 $ 0 $ 27,086,027
Roads and Bridges 59,954,473 218,769 0 60,173,242
Other Capital Assets 17,261,435 965,633 20,200 18,206,868
Total Capital Assets
Depreciated $ 103,815,939 $ 1,670,398 $ 20,200 $ 105,466,137
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Governmental Activities (Cont.):

Balance Balance
7-1-13 Increases Decreases 6-30-14
Less Accumulated
Depreciation For:
Buildings and
Improvements $ 10,722,058 $ 647,164 $ 0 $ 11,369,222
Roads and Bridges 32,041,842 1,961,692 0 34,003,534
Other Capital Assets 13,361,208 760,996 20,200 14,102,004
Total Accumulated
Depreciation $ 56,125,108 $ 3,369,852 $ 20,200 $ 59,474,760
Total Capital Assets
Depreciated, Net $ 47,690,831 $ (1,699,454) $ 0 $ 45,991,377
Governmental Activities
Capital Assets, Net $ 56,036,908 $ (1,699,454) $ 0 $ 54,337,454

Depreciation expense was charged to functions of the primary government as
follows:

Governmental Activities:

General Government $ 23,704
Finance 4,663
Administration of Justice 158,485
Public Safety 900,419
Public Health and Welfare 169,611
Social, Cultural, and Recreational Services 58,331
Agriculture and Natural Resources 9,566
Other Operations 60,200
General Administration 3,934
Highways/Public Works 1,980,939

Total Depreciation Expense -
Governmental Activities $ 3,369,852
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Discretely Presented Madison County School Department

Governmental Activities:

Balance Balance
7-1-13 Increases 6-30-14

Capital Assets Not Depreciated:
Land $ 2,091,562 $ 0 $ 2,091,562
Total Capital Assets

Not Depreciated $ 2,091,562 $ 0$ 2,091,562
Capital Assets Depreciated:
Buildings and Improvements $ 117,459,022 $ 0 $ 117,459,022
Infrastructure 661,418 40,995 702,413
Other Capital Assets 16,548,022 584,579 17,132,601
Total Capital Assets

Depreciated $ 134,668,462 $ 625,574 $ 135,294,036
Less Accumulated

Depreciated For:
Buildings and Improvements $ 49,992,601 $ 2,615,250 $ 52,607,851
Infrastructure 132,712 66,398 199,110
Other Capital Assets 9,128,800 1,065,843 10,194,643
Total Accumulated

Depreciation $ 59,254,113 $ 3,747,491 $§ 63,001,604
Total Capital Assets

Depreciated, Net $ 75,414,349 $§ (3,121,917) § 72,292,432
Governmental Activities
Capital Assets, Net $ 77,505,911 $ (3,121,917) $ 74,383,994

There were no decreases in capital assets to report during the year ended
June 30, 2014. Depreciation expense was charged to functions of the
discretely presented Madison County School Department as follows:

Governmental Activities:

Instruction $ 2,309,988
Support Services 1,194,318
Operation of Non-instructional Services 243,185

Total Depreciation Expense -
Governmental Activities $ 3,747,491
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Construction Commitments
At June 30, 2014, the School Department’s Education Capital Projects Fund
had uncompleted construction contracts of $238,400 for school renovations

and new windows. Funding has been received for these future expenditures.

Interfund Receivables, Payables, and Transfers

The composition of interfund balances as of June 30, 2014, was as follows:

Receivable Fund Payable Fund Amount

Primary Government:

General Nonmajor governmental $ 141,664
General Debt Service " 100
Employee Insurance General 295,867
" Highway/Public Works 21,336
" Nonmajor governmental 54,591

School Department:
General Purpose School Nonmajor governmental 1,349

These balances resulted from the time lag between the dates that interfund
goods and services are provided or reimbursable expenditures occur and
payments between funds are made.

The receivable in the General Debt Service Fund totaling $100 was in transit
from the Solid Waste/Sanitation Fund at June 30, 2014. Also, the receivable
in the Employee Insurance Fund totaling $371,794 was in transit from the
General ($295,867), Juvenile Services ($19,188), Solid Waste/Sanitation
($1,115), Special Purpose ($34,288), and Highway/Public Works ($21,336)
funds at June 30, 2014.

In the discretely presented General Purpose School Fund, the receivable of
$1,349 was in transit from the School Federal Projects ($1,330) and the
Central Cafeteria ($19) funds at June 30, 2014.

Due to/from Primary Government and Component Unit:

The receivable in the General Debt Service Fund totaling $794,089 was in

transit from the School Department’s General Purpose School Fund at
June 30, 2014.
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Interfund Transfers:

Interfund transfers for the year ended June 30, 2014, consisted of the
following amounts:

Primary Government

Transfers In

General
Debt Nonmajor

General Service Governmental
Transfers Out Fund Fund Fund
General Fund $ 0% 225,000 $ 0
Highway/Public Works Fund 29,203 0 0
Nonmajor governmental funds 700,000 0 64,000
Total $ 729,203 $ 225,000 $ 64,000

Discretely Presented Madison County School Department

Transfer In

Nonmajor
Governmental
Transfer Out Fund
General Purpose School $ 200,000

Transfers are used to move revenues from the fund that statute or budget
requires to collect them to the fund that statute or budget requires to expend
them and to use unrestricted revenues collected in the General Fund to
finance various programs accounted for in other funds in accordance with
budgetary authorizations.

Operating Leases

The discretely presented Madison County School Department rents copiers
under operating leases considered to be noncancelable. The rental
expenditures for the year ended June 30, 2014, were $107,532. There are no
provisions for contingent or sublease rentals in the agreements. The future
minimum lease payments for these leases are as follows:
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Year

Ending

June 30 Amount
2015 $ 166,315
2016 166,315
2017 166,315
2018 166,315
2019 166,315
Total $ 831,575

Long-term Obligations

Primary Government

General Obligation Bonds

Madison County issues general obligation bonds to provide funds for the
acquisition and construction of major capital facilities for the primary
government and the discretely presented School Department. In addition,
general obligation bonds have been issued to refund other general obligation
bonds. Capital outlay notes are also issued to fund capital facilities and other
capital outlay purchases, such as equipment.

General obligation bonds are direct obligations and pledge the full faith and
credit of the government. General obligation bonds were issued for original
terms of up to 16 years. Repayment terms are generally structured with
increasing amounts of principal maturing as interest requirements decrease
over the term of the debt. All bonds included in long-term debt as of
June 30, 2014, will be retired from the General Debt Service Fund.

General obligation bonds outstanding as of June 30, 2014, for governmental
activities are as follows:

Original
Interest Final Amount Balance
Type Rate Maturity of Issue 6-30-14

General Obligation Bonds 1.1t05.25 % 4-20-25 $ 10,820,000 $ 8,920,000
General Obligation Bonds -
Refunding 2to b 6-30-23 58,520,000 40,500,000

The annual requirements to amortize all general obligation bonds
outstanding as of June 30, 2014, including interest payments, are presented
in the following table:
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Year Ending Bonds

June 30 Principal Interest Total
2015 $ 6,540,000 $ 1,614,213 $§ 8,154,213
2016 4,770,000 1,381,397 6,151,397
2017 6,930,000 1,275,998 8,205,998
2018 7,110,000 1,125,247 8,235,247
2019 4,255,000 967,823 5,222,823
2020-2024 18,815,000 2,077,308 20,892,308
2025 1,000,000 52,500 1,052,500
Total $ 49,420,000 § 8,494,486 $§ 57,914,486

There 1s $5,147,725 available in the General Debt Service Fund to service
long-term debt. Debt per capita totaled $503, based on the 2010 federal census.

Changes in Long-term Obligations

Long-term obligations activity for the year ended June 30, 2014, was as

follows:

Governmental Activities:

Balance, July 1, 2013
Additions
Reductions

Balance, June 30, 2014

Balance Due Within One Year

Balance, July 1, 2013
Additions
Reductions

Balance, June 30, 2014

Balance Due Within One Year

Compensated

Bonds Absences

$ 56,375,000 $ 1,899,248

17,150,000 1,427,692

(24,105,000) (1,456,699)

$ 49,420,000 $ 1,870,241

$ 6,540,000 $ 1,432,583
Other

Postemployment
Benefits

$ 2,179,354

554,695

(197,247)

$ 2,536,802

$ 0
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Analysis of Noncurrent Liabilities Presented on Exhibit A:

Total Noncurrent Liabilities, June 30, 2014 $ 53,827,043
Less: Balance Due Within One Year (7,972,583)
Add: Unamortized Premium on Debt 825,681

Noncurrent Liabilities - Due in
More Than One Year - Exhibit A $ 46,680,141

Compensated absences and other postemployment benefits will be paid from
the employing funds, primarily the General and Highway/Public Works
funds.

Advance Refunding

On April 9, 2014, Madison County advance refunded a portion of the School
and Public Improvement Refunding Bonds, Series 2004, with a separate
general obligation bond issue. The county issued $17,150,000 of general
obligation refunding bonds to provide resources to purchase U.S. government
securities that were placed in an irrevocable trust to generate resources for
all future debt service payments on the refunded bonds until they are called
on April 1, 2015. As a result, the refunded bonds are considered defeased,
and the liability has been removed from the county’s long-term debt. As a
result of the advance refunding, total debt service payments over the next
four years will be reduced by $842,422, and an economic gain (difference
between the present value of the debt service payments of the refunded and
refunding bonds) of $817,058 was obtained.

Discretely Presented Madison County School Department

Changes in Long-term Obligations

Long-term obligations activity for the discretely presented Madison County
School Department for the year ended June 30, 2014, was as follows:
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Governmental Activities:

Other
Compensated Postemployment
Absences Benefits

Balance, July 1, 2013 $ 304,723 $ 8,451,222
Additions 358,858 1,624,708
Reductions (374,728) (1,010,680)
Balance, June 30, 2014 $ 288,853 $ 9,065,250
Balance Due Within One Year $ 288,853 $ 0
Analysis of Noncurrent Liabilities Presented on Exhibit A:
Total Noncurrent Liabilities, June 30, 2014 $ 9,354,103
Less: Balance Due Within One Year (288,853)
Noncurrent Liabilities - Due in

More Than One Year - Exhibit A $ 9,065,250

Compensated absences and other postemployment benefits will be paid from
the employing funds, primarily the General Purpose School and Central
Cafeteria funds.

On-Behalf Payments - Discretely Presented Madison County School
Department

The State of Tennessee pays health insurance premiums for retired teachers
on-behalf of the Madison County School Department. These payments are
made by the state to the Local Education Group Insurance Plan and the
Medicare Supplement Plan. Both of these plans are administered by the
State of Tennessee and reported in the state’s Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report. Payments by the state to the Local Education Group
Insurance Plan and the Medicare Supplement Plan for the year ended
June 30, 2014, were $611,670 and $125,252, respectively. The School
Department has recognized these on-behalf payments as revenues and
expenditures in the General Purpose School Fund.

Short-term Debt

During the year, Madison County borrowed $3,381,927 from the General
Debt Service Fund to provide temporary operating funds for the General
($3,000,000), Solid Waste/Sanitation ($238,927), and General Capital Projects
($143,000) funds. These loans were retired prior to June 30, 2014, as required
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V.

by state statutes, and therefore have not been reflected in the financial
statements of this report. Short-term debt activity for the year ended
June 30, 2014, was as follows:

Balance Balance
7-1-13 Issued Paid 6-30-14

Tax Anticipation Notes  $ 0 $ 3,381,927 $ (3,381,927) $ 0

OTHER INFORMATION

A.

Risk Management

Primary Government

Employee Health Insurance

The county has chosen to establish the Employee Insurance Fund for risks
associated with the employees’ health insurance plan. The Employee
Insurance Fund is accounted for as an internal service fund where assets are
set aside for claim settlements. The county retains the risk of loss to a limit of
$100,000 per specific loss and 100 percent of expected claims. The county
obtained an excess risk insurance policy to cover claims beyond any amounts
exceeding these limits. The premiums for the excess risk insurance and
administration fees are paid directly to the administrator of the county’s
employee insurance plan by the various funds and departments participating
in the plan.

All full-time employees of the primary government are eligible to participate.
A premium charge is allocated to each fund that accounts for full-time
employees. This charge is based on demographics of the group, cost of medical
care, prior-claim experience, and expected liability during the 2013-14 year.
Liabilities of the fund are reported when it is probable that a loss has
occurred and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. The
Employee Insurance Fund establishes claims liabilities based on estimates of
the ultimate cost of claims that have been reported but not settled and of
claims that have been incurred but not reported. Claims liabilities include
incremental claim adjustment expenditures/expenses, if any. In addition,
estimated recoveries, if any, on settled claims have been deducted from the
liability for unpaid claims. The process used to compute claims liabilities does
not necessarily result in an exact amount. Changes in the balance of claims
liabilities during the past two fiscal years are as follows:
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Beginning of Current

Fiscal Year Balance

Year Claims and at Fiscal

Liability Estimates Payments  Year-end

2012-13 $ 150,000 $§ 4,035,177 $ (4,035,177) $ 150,000
2013-14 150,000 4,095,856 (4,095,856) 150,000

Workers’ Compensation Insurance

Madison County has elected to implement and administer an On-the-Job
Program under the provisions of Section 50-6-106(16), Tennessee Code
Annotated (TCA), to provide uniform procedures for the reporting, treatment,
and compensation of qualified individuals who are injured or fall ill while
performing their duties.

Liability, Property, and Casualty

Madison County participates in the Local Government Property and Casualty
Fund (LGPCF), which is a public entity risk pool established by the
Tennessee County Services Association, an association of member counties.
The county pays an annual premium to the LGPCF for its general liability,
property, and casualty insurance coverage. The creation of the LGPCF
provides for it to be self-sustaining through member premiums. The LGPCF
reinsures through commercial insurance companies for claims exceeding
$100,000 for each insured event.

Discretely Presented Madison County School Department

Employee Health Insurance

The School Department participates in the Local Education Group Insurance
Fund (LEGIF), a public entity risk pool established to provide a program of
health insurance coverage for employees of local education agencies. In
accordance with Section 8-27-301, TCA, all local education agencies are
eligible to participate. The LEGIF is included in the Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report of the State of Tennessee, but the state does not retain any
risk for losses by this fund. Section 8-27-303, T'CA, provides for the LEGIF to
be self-sustaining through member premiums.

Workers’ Compensation Insurance

The School Department participates in the Local Government Workers’
Compensation Fund (LGWCF), a public entity risk pool established under the
provisions of Section 29-20-401, T'CA, by the Tennessee County Services
Association to provide a program of workers’ compensation coverage to
employees of local governments. The School Department pays an annual
premium to the LGWCEF for its workers’ compensation insurance coverage.
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The LGWCF reinsures through commercial insurance companies for claims
exceeding $300,000.

Liability, Property, and Casualty

The School Department participates in the Local Government Property and
Casualty Fund (LGPCF), which is a public entity risk pool established by the
Tennessee County Services Association, an association of member counties.
The School Department pays an annual premium to the LGPCF for its
general liability, property, and casualty insurance coverage. The creation of
the LGPCF provides for it to be self-sustaining through member premiums.
The LGPCF reinsures through commercial insurance companies for claims
exceeding $100,000 for each insured event.

Accounting Changes

Provisions of Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement
No. 67, Financial Reporting for Pension Plans and Statement No. 70,
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Nonexchange Financial Guarantees
became effective for the year ended June 30, 2014.

GASB Statement No. 67 replaces the requirements of Statements No. 25 and
No. 50 related to pension plans that are administered through trusts or
equivalent arrangements. The requirements of Statements No. 25 and No. 50
remain applicable to pension plans that are not administered through trusts
or equivalent arrangements.

GASB Statement No. 70 relates to accounting and financial reporting by
state and local governments that extend and receive nonexchange financial

guarantees.

Subsequent Events

Subsequent to June 30, 2014, Madison County issued tax anticipation notes
to provide temporary operating funds as detailed below:

8-6-14 §$ 150,000 dJuvenile Services General Debt Service
8-6-14 100,000 Solid Waste/Sanitation "
8-6-14 350,000 General Capital Projects "

9-23-14 73,000 Solid Waste/Sanitation "

9-24-14 100,000 dJuvenile Services "

9-24-14 2,000,000 General "

9-24-14 200,000 Special Purpose Local Purpose Tax
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On August 31, 2014, Tommy Cunningham left the Office of Sheriff and was
succeeded by John Mehr.

Contingent Liabilities

The county and School Department are involved in several pending lawsuits.
Any potential claims against the county not covered by insurance resulting
from such litigation should not materially affect the county’s financial
statements.

Change in Administration

On February 5, 2014, David Woolfork left the Office of Sheriff and was
succeeded by Tommy Cunningham on April 21, 2014.

Joint Ventures

Madison County and the City of Jackson jointly operate the Jackson-Madison
County Airport Authority, Jackson-Madison County Community Economic
Development Commission, Jackson-Madison County General Hospital, and
Jackson-Madison County Library. The boards of the Airport Authority,
General Hospital, Community Economic Development Commission, and
Jackson-Madison County Library each comprise five members who are
alternately appointed each year by Madison County and the City of Jackson.

Madison County has control over budget and financing of the above joint
ventures only to the extent of representation by its appointed board or
commission members. Madison County contributed $196,120 to the Airport
Authority for its operations in addition to processing the airport’s payroll
during the year ended June 30, 2014. One-half of this contribution was
refunded to Madison County by the City of Jackson per an agreement
between Madison County and the City of Jackson. Madison County provides
annual support to the library for its operations. Funding for the Community
Economic Development Commission is provided through a hotel/motel tax
levied jointly by the City of Jackson and Madison County. Twenty percent of
the monies collected from this tax is allocated to the Community Economic
Development Commission pursuant to the provisions of a private act.
Madison County does not have an equity interest in any of the
above-mentioned joint ventures. Complete financial statements for the
above-noted joint ventures can be obtained from their respective
administrative offices at the following addresses:
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Administrative Offices:

Jackson-Madison County Airport Authority
308 Grady Montgomery Drive
Jackson, TN 38301

Jackson-Madison County Community
Economic Development Commission
197 Auditorium Street

Jackson, TN 38301

Jackson-Madison County General Hospital
620 Skyline Drive
Jackson, TN 38301-3956

Jackson-Madison County Library
433 East LaFayette
Jackson, TN 38301

Jointly Governed Organization

The West Tennessee Railroad Authority (WTRA) was created by Gibson
County in conjunction with the counties of Chester, Madison, McNairy,
Obion, and Weakley. The WTRA’s board includes the mayors of Chester,
Gibson, Madison, McNairy, Obion, and Weakley counties, and one at-large
member from each of these areas. However, the counties do not have any
ongoing financial interest or responsibility for the entity.

Retirement Commitments

1.

Tennessee Consolidated Retirement Plan (TCRS)

Plan Description

Employees of Madison County are members of the Political
Subdivision Pension Plan (PSPP), an agent multiple-employer defined
benefit pension plan administered by the Tennessee Consolidated
Retirement System (TCRS). TCRS provides retirement benefits as
well as death and disability benefits. Benefits are determined by a
formula using the member’s high five-year average salary and years of
service. Members become eligible to retire at the age of 60 with
five years of service or at any age with 30 years of service. A reduced
retirement benefit is available to vested members at the age of 55.
Disability benefits are available to active members with five years of
service who become disabled and cannot engage in gainful
employment. There is no service requirement for disability that is the
result of an accident or injury occurring while the member was in the
performance of duty. Members joining the system after July 1, 1979,
become vested after five years of service, and members joining prior to
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July 1, 1979, were vested after four years of service. Benefit provisions
are established in state statute found in Title 8, Chapters 34-37 of
Tennessee Code Annotated. State statutes are amended by the
Tennessee General Assembly. Political subdivisions such as Madison
County participate in the TCRS as individual entities and are liable
for all costs associated with the operation and administration of their
plan. Benefit improvements are not applicable to a political
subdivision unless approved by the chief governing body.

Madison County withdrew from TCRS effective July 1, 2012.
Employees hired after the date of withdrawal are not eligible to
participate in TCRS. Employees active as of the withdrawal date will
continue to accrue salary and service credit in TCRS. The employer
remains responsible for the pension liability for employees that were
active as of the withdrawal date and for retirees of the employer.

The TCRS issues a publicly available financial report that includes
financial statements and required supplementary information for the
PSPP. That report may be obtained by writing to the Tennessee
Treasury Department, Consolidated Retirement System, 10th Floor,
Andrew Jackson Building, Nashville, TN 37243-0230 or can be
accessed at http://www.tn.gov/treasury/tcrs/PS/.

Funding Policy

Madison County has adopted a noncontributory retirement plan for its
employees by assuming employee contributions up to five percent of
annual covered payroll. The county is required to contribute at an
actuarially determined rate; the rate for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2014, was 14.35 percent of annual covered payroll. The
contribution requirement of plan members is set by state statute. The
contribution requirement for the county is established and may be
amended by the TCRS Board of Trustees.

Annual Pension Cost

For the year ended June 30, 2014, the county’s annual pension cost of
$4,523,436 to TCRS was equal to the county’s required and actual
contributions. The required contribution was determined as part of
the dJuly 1, 2011, actuarial valuation using the frozen entry age
actuarial cost method. Significant actuarial assumptions used in the
valuation include (a) rate of return on investment of present and
future assets of 7.5 percent a year compounded annually, (b) projected
three percent annual rate of inflation, (c) projected salary increases of
4.75 percent (graded) annual rate (no explicit assumption is made
regarding the portion attributable to the effects of inflation on
salaries), (d) projected 3.5 percent annual increase in the Social
Security wage base, and (e) projected postretirement increases of
2.5 percent annually. The actuarial value of assets was determined
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using techniques that smooth the effect of short-term volatility in the
market value of total investments over a ten-year period. The county’s
unfunded actuarial accrued liability is being amortized as a level
dollar amount on a closed basis. The remaining amortization period at
July 1, 2011, was three years. An actuarial valuation was performed
as of July 1, 2011, which established contribution rates effective
July 1, 2012.

Trend Information

Fiscal Annual Percentage Net
Year Pension of APC Pension
Ended Cost (APC) Contributed Obligation
6-30-14 $4,523,436 100% $0
6-30-13 4,774,883 100 0
6-30-12 4,889,073 100 0

Funded Status and Funding Progress

As of July 1, 2013, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the plan
was 83.08 percent funded. The actuarial accrued liability for benefits
was $132.97 million, and the actuarial value of assets was
$110.47 million, resulting in an unfunded actuarial accrued liability
(UAAL) of $22.5 million. The covered payroll (annual payroll of active
employees covered by the plan) was $30.02 million, and the ratio of
the UAAL to the covered payroll was 74.95 percent.

The Schedule of Funding Progress, presented as required
supplementary information following the notes to the financial
statements, presents multi-year trend information about whether the
actuarial values of plan assets are increasing or decreasing over time
relative to the actuarial accrued liability for benefits.

SCHOOL TEACHERS
Plan Description

The Madison County School Department contributes to the State
Employees, Teachers, and Higher Education Employees Pension Plan
(SETHEEPP), a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit
pension plan administered by the Tennessee Consolidated Retirement
System (TCRS). TCRS provides retirement benefits as well as death
and disability benefits to plan members and their beneficiaries.
Benefits are determined by a formula using the member’s high
five-year average salary and years of service. Members become eligible
to retire at the age of 60 with five years of service or at any age with
30 years of service. A reduced retirement benefit is available to vested
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members who are at least 55 years of age or have 25 years of service.
Disability benefits are available to active members with five years of
service who become disabled and cannot engage in gainful
employment. There is no service requirement for disability that is the
result of an accident or injury occurring while the member was in the
performance of duty. Members joining the plan on or after
July 1, 1979, are vested after five years of service. Members joining
prior to July 1, 1979, are vested after four years of service. Benefit
provisions are established in state statute found in Title 8, Chapters
34-37 of Tennessee Code Annotated. State statutes are amended by the
Tennessee General Assembly. A cost of living adjustment (COLA) is
provided to retirees each July based on the percentage change in the
Consumer Price Index (CPI) during the previous calendar year. No
COLA is granted if the CPI increases less than one-half percent. The
annual COLA is capped at three percent.

The TCRS issues a publicly available financial report that includes
financial statements and required supplementary information for the
SETHEEPP. That report may be obtained by writing to the Tennessee
Treasury Department, Consolidated Retirement System, 10th Floor,
Andrew Jackson Building, Nashville, TN 37243-0230 or can be
accessed at www.tn.gov/treasury/ters/Schools.

Funding Policy

Most teachers are required by state statute to contribute five percent
of their salaries to the plan. The employer contribution rate for the
School Department is established at an actuarially determined rate.
The employer rate for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014, was
8.88 percent of annual covered payroll. The employer contribution
requirement for the School Department is established and may be
amended by the TCRS Board of Trustees. The employer’s
contributions to TCRS for the years ended June 30, 2014, 2013, and
2012, were $4,850,804, $4,850,804, and $4,942,310, respectively, equal
to the required contributions for each year.

City of Jackson Teachers Retirement Plan Assumed by
Madison County Board of Education

The Madison County School Department administers a pension plan
through the Pension Trust Fund for certain school teachers of the
former City of Jackson School System. The assets of the City of
Jackson Teachers Retirement Plan (CJTRP) may be used only for the
payment of benefits to the members of that plan, in accordance with
the terms of the plan.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Accounting

Financial statements of the CJTRP are prepared using the accrual
basis of accounting. Plan member contributions are recognized in the
period in which contributions are due. Employer contributions to the
plan are recognized when due, and the employer has made a formal
commitment to provide contributions. Benefits are recognized when
due and payable in advance with the terms of the plan.

Method Used to Value Investments

Plan assets are maintained in a cash and investment pool through the
Office of Trustee and are reported at cost, which approximates fair value.

Plan Description and Contribution Information

At June 30, 2014, the plan had 23 retirees and beneficiaries receiving
benefits. The plan has no active members and is closed to new entrants.

CJTRP is a single-employer defined benefit pension plan that covers
certain former City of Jackson teachers. CJTRP provides retirement
benefits to plan members and their beneficiaries. Employees are
eligible for retirement benefits upon reaching the age of 60 with
30 years of employment service. Pension benefits paid to plan
members are calculated by using an amount equal to 50 percent of the
average of the three highest years’ salary. Cost-of-living adjustments
are determined by the same percentage increase that the salaries of
teachers employed by the Madison County School Department receive,
with such increases to be effective on July 1 of each year.

Contributions

Plan members are required to contribute three percent of their annual
covered salary. The TCRS contributes retirement benefits to the plan
for retired teachers, as required by Section 8-35-301, et. seq.,
Tennessee Code Annotated. Contributions by TCRS are equal to the
amount of state annuity that would have been payable to CJTRP
members if they had been members of TCRS. The Madison County
School Department is required to contribute a sufficient sum to pay for
benefits provided under the plan. Per Chapter 357, Private Acts of
1943, as amended, contribution requirements of plan members and
the Madison County School Department are established and may be
amended by the state legislature and the governing bodies of the City
of Jackson and Madison County.
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Annual Pension Cost

For the year ended June 30, 2014, the Madison County School
Department’s annual pension cost of $288,230 to the CJTRP was
equal to the system’s required and actual contributions.

Annual required contribution (ARC) $ 288,230
Interest on net pension obligation 0
Adjustment to ARC 0
Annual pension cost $ 288,230
Contributions made (288,230)
Increase (decrease) in net pension obligation $ 0
Net pension obligation, July 1, 2013 0
Net pension obligation, June 30, 2014 3 0

Trend Information

Fiscal Annual Percentage Net
Year Pension of APC Pension
Ended Cost (APC) Contributed Obligation
6-30-14 $ 288,230 100 % $ 0
6-30-13 316,081 100 0
6-30-12 353,430 100 0

The required contribution was determined as part of the July 1, 2013,
actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit actuarial cost
method. Significant actuarial assumptions used in the wvaluation
include (a) a rate of return on investment of present and future assets
of six percent a year compounded annually and (b) a projected
two percent cost-of-living increase for pension.

Funded Status and Funding Progress

As of July 1, 2013, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the plan
was 32 percent funded. The actuarial accrued liability for benefits was
$3,145,868, and the actuarial value of assets was $999,956, resulting
in an unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) of $2,145,912. The
covered payroll (annual payroll of active employees covered by the
plan) was $49,655, and the ratio of UAAL to the covered payroll was
4,322 percent.

The Schedule of Funding Progress presented as required
supplementary information following the notes to the financial
statements presents multi-year trend information about whether the
actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time
relative to the actuarial accrued liability for benefits.
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3. Deferred Compensation

Madison County offers all employees a deferred compensation plan
established pursuant to IRC Section 457 and also offers employees
hired on or after July 1, 2012, a deferred compensation plan
established pursuant to IRC Sections 401(a). Madison County will
match each eligible participant’s 457(b) salary deferrals
dollar-for-dollar on the first one percent of compensation and
50 percent on the next six percent of compensation. This match will be
deposited into a 401(a) account.

The Madison County School Department offers its full-time,
non-certified employees hired on or after July 1, 2012, deferred
compensation plans established pursuant to IRC Sections 457 and
401(a). The Madison County School Department will contribute four
percent to each eligible participant’s 401(a) and match each eligible
participant’s 457(b) salary deferrals dollar-for-dollar on the first three
percent of compensation. This match will be deposited into a 401(a)
account.

Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB)

Primary Government

Plan Description

Madison County participates in a self-insured postemployment benefits plan
administered by Blue Cross Blue Shield for medical, dental, and life
insurance benefits for retirees and their beneficiaries. For accounting
purposes, the plan is a single-employer defined benefit OPEB plan. Benefits
are established and amended by an insurance committee established by the
County Commission. To be eligible to continue coverage under the medical
and dental plans following retirement from active service with the county,
the retiree must: 1) be age 55 with at least five years of service with the
county; or 2) have 30 years of service with the county; and 3) be under the
Social Security normal retirement age.

Funding Policy

The premium requirements of plan members are established and may be
amended by the Madison County Commission. The plan is self-insured and
financed on a pay-as-you-go basis. Claims liabilities of the plan are
periodically computed using actuarial and statistical techniques to establish
premium rates. The county develops its own contribution policy in terms of
subsidizing active and retired employees’ premiums. A retiree who has
reached age 55 with five years of service will be required to pay 100 percent
of the monthly medical premium for retiree and dependent coverage. A
retiree who has reached 30 years of service will be required to pay 25 percent
of the monthly medical premium for retiree only coverage and 100 percent of
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the cost of dependent coverage. A retiree who has reached age 55 with
20 to 29 years of service will be required to pay 35 percent of the monthly
medical premium for retiree only coverage and 100 percent of the cost of
dependent coverage. The county also pays the premiums for the $5,000 life
insurance. The county reimburses 80 percent of the amount of validated
claims for medical, dental, and hospitalization costs incurred by pre-Medicare
retirees and their dependents. During the year, expenditures totaling
$197,247 were recognized for the primary government.

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation

Primary
Government
Plan
ARC $ 523,558
Interest on NOPEBO 54,657
Adjustment to ARC (23,520)
Annual OPEB cost $ 554,695
Less: Amount of contribution (197,247)
Increase (decrease) in NOPEBO $ 357,448
Net OPEB obligation, 7-1-13 2,179,354
Net OPEB obligation, 6-30-14 $ 2,536,802
Percentage

Fiscal Annual of Annual Net OPEB
Year OPEB OPEB Cost Obligation
Ended Plan Cost Contributed at Year End
6-30-12 Primary Government $ 628,165 22 % $ 1,821,906
6-30-13 " 554,695 36 2,179,354
6-30-14 " 554,695 36 2,536,802

Funding Status and Funding Progress

The funded status of the plan as of July 1, 2013, was as follows:
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Primary

Government

Plan
Actuarial valuation date 7-1-13
Actuarial accrued liability (AAL) $ 5,546,240
Actuarial value of plan assets $ 0
Unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) $ 5,546,240
Actuarial value of assets as a % of the AAL 0%
Covered payroll (active plan members) $ 21,415,943
UAAL as a % of covered payroll 26%

Actuarial valuations involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and
assumptions about the probability of events far into the future, and
actuarially determined amounts are subject to continual revision as actual
results are compared to past expectations and new estimates are made about
the future. The Schedule of Funding Progress, presented as required
supplementary information following the notes to the financial statements,
presents multi-year trend information about whether the actuarial value of
plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial
accrued liability for benefits.

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

Calculations are based on the types of benefits provided under the terms of
the substantive plan at the time of each valuation and on the pattern of
sharing of costs between the employer and plan members to that point.
Actuarial calculations reflect a long-term perspective. Consistent with that
perspective, actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that
are designed to reduce short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities
and the actuarial value of assets.

In the July 1, 2013, actuarial valuation, the projected unit credit method was
used. The actuarial assumptions included a three percent investment rate of
return (net of administrative expenses) and an annual health care cost trend
rate of eight percent initially, reduced by decrements to an ultimate rate of
three percent after 20 years. The rate includes a three percent inflation
assumption. Madison County has decided to recognize the entire retiree
accrued liability for the year beginning July 1, 2008, and to amortize the
accrued liability over 30 years.

Discretely Presented Madison County School Department

Plan Description

The School Department participates in the state-administered Local
Education Group Insurance Plan for health care benefits. For accounting
purposes, the plan is an agent multiple-employer defined benefit OPEB plan.
Benefits are established and amended by an insurance committee created by
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Section 8-27-302, Tennessee Code Annotated, for local education employees.
Prior to reaching age 65, all members have the option of choosing between
the standard or partnership preferred provider organization (PPO) plan for
health care benefits. Subsequent to age 65, members who are also in the
state’s retirement system may participate in a state-administered Medicare
Supplement Plan that does not include pharmacy. The plan is reported in the
State of Tennessee Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR). The
CAFR is available on the state’s website at http://tn.gov/finance/act/cafr.html.

Funding Policy

The premium requirements of plan members are established and may be
amended by the insurance committee. The plan is self-insured and financed
on a pay-as-you-go basis with the risk shared equally among the participants.
Claims liabilities of the plan are periodically computed using actuarial and
statistical techniques to establish premium rates. The employer in the plan
develops its own contribution policy in terms of subsidizing active employees
or retired employees’ premiums since the committee is not prescriptive on
that issue. The state does provide a partial subsidy to Local Education
Agency pre-65 teachers and a full subsidy based on years of service for
post-65 teachers in the Medicare Supplement Plan.

The discretely presented Madison County School Department, through its
participation in the Local Education Group Insurance Fund, makes a
contribution toward the health insurance premium of the School
Department’s group medical plan for all certified employees who retire and
for qualifying noncertified employees with 20 years of service and one year of
state insurance coverage or with ten years of service and three years of state
insurance coverage. This contribution continues until the employee reaches
age 65 and is Medicare eligible. The School Department pays 63 percent of
single coverage and 57.5 percent of family coverage for all certified and
qualifying noncertified personnel. As of June 30, 2014, there were 214 former
employees participating. Expenditures totaling $1,010,680 were recognized
for postemployment health care.
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Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation

Local
Education

Group

Plan
ARC $ 1,616,000
Interest on NOPEBO 338,049
Adjustment to ARC (329,341)
Annual OPEB cost $ 1,624,708
Less: Amount of contribution (1,010,680)

Increase (decrease) in NOPEBO $ 614,028

Net OPEB obligation, 7-1-13 8,451,222
Net OPEB obligation, 6-30-14 $ 9,065,250
Percentage
Fiscal Annual of Annual Net OPEB
Year OPEB OPEB Cost Obligation
Ended Plan Cost Contributed at Year End
6-30-12 Local Education Group $ 2,706,293 31 % $ 6,617,962
6-30-13 " 2,725,724 33 8,451,222
6-30-14 " 1,624,708 62 9,065,250
Funded Status and Funding Progress
The funded status of the plan as of July 1, 2013, was as follows:
Local
Education
Group
Plan
Actuarial valuation date 7-1-13
Actuarial accrued liability (AAL) $ 15,479,000
Actuarial value of plan assets $ 110,941
Unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) $ 15,368,059
Actuarial value of assets as a % of the AAL 0%
Covered payroll (active plan members) $ 70,927,962
UAAL as a % of covered payroll 22%

The Board of Education has placed funds with the Tennessee School Board
Association (TSBA) GASB 45 Trust to be used to pre-fund a portion of the
OPEB liability. The assets of GASB 45 Trust are commingled with other
participants’ funds for investment purposes, but are held in an irrevocable
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trust for each plan participant and may be used only for the payment of
benefits to the members of the plan in accordance with the terms of their
plan. The TSBA GASB 45 Trust obtains an annual audit, which may be
obtained from the TSBA at 525 Brick Church Park Drive, Nashville, TN,
37207.

Actuarial valuations involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and
assumptions about the probability of events far into the future, and
actuarially determined amounts are subject to continual revision as actual
results are compared to past expectations and new estimates are made about
the future. The Schedule of Funding Progress, presented as required
supplementary information following the notes to the financial statements,
presents multi-year trend information about whether the actuarial value of
plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial
accrued liability for benefits.

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

Calculations are based on the types of benefits provided under the terms of
the substantive plan at the time of each valuation and on the pattern of
sharing of costs between the employer and plan members to that point.
Actuarial calculations reflect a long-term perspective. Consistent with that
perspective, actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that
are designed to reduce short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities
and the actuarial value of assets.

In the July 1, 2013, actuarial valuation for the Local Education Group Plan,
the projected unit credit actuarial cost method was used and the actuarial
assumptions included a four percent investment rate of return (net of
administrative expenses) and an annual health care cost trend rate of
7.5 percent for fiscal year 2014. The trend will decrease to seven percent in
fiscal year 2015 and then will be reduced by decrements to an ultimate rate
of 4.7 percent by fiscal year 2044. The rate includes a 2.5 percent inflation
assumption. The unfunded actuarial accrued liability is being amortized as a
level percentage of payroll on a closed basis over a 30-year period beginning
with July 1, 2007.

Office of Central Accounting and Budgeting

Office of Director of Finance

Madison County operates under the provisions of the County Financial
Management System of 1981. This act provides for a central system of
accounting, budgeting, and purchasing for all county departments. The act
provides for the creation of a Finance Department operated under the
direction of a finance director. Effective January 2015, the Finance
Department has not complied with the provisions of this act. See details in
the Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs section of this report.
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Purchasing Law

The County Financial Management System of 1981 provides for the finance
director or a deputy appointed by him to serve as the county purchasing
agent. The finance director serves as purchasing agent for Madison County.
All purchase orders are issued by the Finance Department. Purchases
exceeding $10,000 for the Office of County Mayor, Office of Highway
Engineer, and for the discretely presented School Department are required to
be competitively bid.

VI. OTHER NOTES - DISCRETELY PRESENTED MADISON COUNTY

EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS DISTRICT

A.

General Information

Component Unit

Madison County Emergency Communications District provides 911
emergency communications infrastructure to persons living in Madison
County. The district is a component unit of Madison County. Accordingly,
this financial data is incorporated into the county’s financial statements. The
district is governed by a nine-member Board of Directors who are appointed
by the county mayor and confirmed by the Madison County Commission. The
district owns the operational headquarters and maintains all of the repairs
and furnishings. The district receives no operational or capital funding from
Madison County.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

1. Basis of Presentation

The accounts of the district are organized on the basis of funds.
Government resources are allocated to and accounted for in individual
funds based upon the purposes for which they are to be spent and the
means by which spending activities are controlled. Each fund is
accounted for with a separate set of self-balancing accounts that
comprise its assets, liabilities, fund equity, revenues, and expenses, as
appropriate. The accounts in the financial statements in this report
fall under one broad fund category as follows:

Proprietary Fund:

Enterprise Fund — The Madison County Emergency Communications
District Fund is used to account for operations (a) that are financed
and operated in a manner similar to private business enterprises —
where the intent of the governing body is that the costs (expenses,
including depreciation) of providing goods or services to the general
public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily
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through user charges; or (b) where the governing body has decided
that periodic determination of revenues earned, expenses incurred,
and/or net income is appropriate for capital maintenance, public
policy, management control, accountability, or other purposes.

Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

The accounting and financial reporting treatment is determined by
the applicable measurement focus and basis of accounting.
Measurement focus indicates the type of resources being measured
such as current financial resources or economic resources. The basis of
accounting indicates the timing of transactions or events for
recognition in the financial statements.

The district’s financial statements are reported using the economic
resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting.
Revenues are recorded when earned, and expenses are recorded when
a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.
Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all
eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources
and Net Position

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, as used in the Statement of Cash Flows,
include demand deposit accounts and certificates of deposit with
original maturities of three months or less when purchased, in
accordance with GASB Statement No. 9.

Receivables

Receivables consist of all revenues earned at year-end and not yet
received. Balances reported at year-end include telephone fees due
from phone companies, wireless charges due from the State of
Tennessee, and grant receivables due from the Tennessee Emergency
Communications Board.

Capital Assets

All capital assets of the district are recorded at original cost, except for
donated equipment, which is recorded at fair market value. Expenses,
which materially increase values or capacities, or extend useful lives
of these assets, are capitalized while expenses for maintenance and
repairs are charged to operations as incurred. It is the district’s policy
to maintain a capitalization threshold of $7,500.
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Gains and losses from the sale of capital assets are reflected in
operations, and the asset accounts and related allowances for
depreciation are reduced. Also, depreciation expense on all depreciable
items 1is systematically charged against operations using the
straight-line method over their estimated useful lives. Any related
interest cost is also added to the cost of the asset as appropriate.

Compensated Absences

The district allows two weeks of vacation to each employee per year
with accrual limited to 30 days for one-to-five years of service. For
employees with six-to-ten years of service, 18 days of vacation are
received and accrual is limited to 36 days. Employees with more than
ten years of service receive three weeks of vacation with accrual
limited to 39 days. Employees with 20 or more years of service receive
24 days of vacation with accrual limited to 42 days. Employees receive
full reimbursement for unused vacation upon leaving the employment
of the district.

Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the Statement of Net Position will sometimes
report a separate section for deferred outflows of resources. This
separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources,
represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future
period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources
(expenses/expenditure) until then. The district does not have any
items that qualify for reporting in this category as of June 30, 2014.

In addition to liabilities, the Statement of Net Position will sometimes
report a separate section for deferred inflows of resources. This
separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources,
represents acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s)
and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until
that time. The district does not have any items that qualify for
reporting in this category as of June 30, 2014.

Net Position Flow Assumption

Sometimes the district will fund outlays for a particular purpose from
both restricted (e.g., grant proceeds) and unrestricted resources. In
order to calculate the amounts to report as restricted net position and
unrestricted net position in the financial statements, a flow
assumption must be made about the order in which the resources are
considered to be applied.

It is the district’s policy to consider restricted net position to have been
depleted before unrestricted net position is applied.
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Net Position

In the district’s financial statements, equity is classified as net
position and displayed in three components:

a. Net investment in capital assets — Consists of capital assets,
including restricted capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation
and reduced by the outstanding balances of borrowings that are
attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of
those assets.

b. Restricted net position — Consists of net position with constraints
placed on the use either by (1) external groups such as creditors,
grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments
or (2) law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

c¢. Unrestricted net position — All other net position that does not
meet the definition of restricted or net investment in capital
assets.

Revenues

Revenues are derived from telephone customers in the area served by the
district. Telephone companies collect monthly fees from landline customers
and remit them to the district. The Tennessee Emergency Communications
Board collects monthly fees from wireless customers and remits 25 percent of
the fees collected back to the districts based on population.

Operating revenues and expenses are those that result from providing
services. It also includes all revenue and expenses not related to capital and
related financing, noncapital financing, or investing activities. All revenues
that are not generated from daily operations are defined as nonoperating.

Risk Management

It is the policy of the district to purchase commercial insurance for the risk of
losses to which it is exposed. These risks include general liability, property
damage, and theft. Settled claims resulting from these risks have not
exceeded commercial insurance coverage in any of the past three fiscal years.
It is also insured against possible loss related to acts of district key officers or
directors by official statutory bonds carried by the district. The district has
had no insurance settlements in excess of insurance coverage during the past
three years.

Contract Agreement

In a prior year, the district entered into an agreement with Madison County,
Tennessee, whereby the board of the district is charged with the
responsibility of establishing and collecting service fees; seeking additional
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funding and issuing bonds, if necessary; and creating a dispatch service and
determining the mode.

Further, the parties agreed that the city and county would serve as the
dispatching authorities with the responsibility to operate the dispatch facility
in a manner consistent with statutory requirements. The district provides the
911 infrastructure, 911 equipment, and training funding for dispatchers.

Capital Assets

Capital assets activity for the year ended June 30, 2014, was as follows:

Balance Balance
Description 7-1-13 Increases Decreases 6-30-14
Capital Assets
Not Depreciated:
Land $ 16,100 $ 0 $ 0 $ 16,100
Capital Assets Depreciated:
Buildings $ 304,964 $ 03 0 $ 304,964
Furniture and Fixtures 291,805 0 4,220 287,585
Office Equipment 77,838 0 1,475 76,363
Communications Equipment 2,210,800 0 81,513 2,129,287
Vehicles 44,242 0 0 44,242
Total Capital Assets
Depreciated $ 2,929,649 $ 0 $§ 87,208 $ 2,842.441
Less Accumulated
Depreciation For:
Buildings $ 23,229 $ 9,027 $ 03 32,256
Furniture and Fixtures 111,357 29,352 3,941 136,768
Office Equipment 49,901 8,435 1,475 56,861
Communications Equipment 1,239,587 265,297 81,513 1,423,371
Vehicles 15,096 8,848 0 23,944
Total Accumulated
Depreciation $ 1,439,170 $ 320,959 $§ 86,929 $§ 1,673,200
Total Capital Assets
Depreciated, Net $ 1,490,479 $ (320,959) $ 279 $ 1,169,241
Total Capital Assets, Net $ 1,506,579 $§ (320,959) $ 279 $§ 1,185,341

Depreciation expense of $320,959 was recorded by the district.

Stewardship, Compliance, and Accountability

By its nature as a local government unit, the district is subject to various
federal, state, and local laws and contractual regulations. An analysis of the
district’s compliance with significant laws and regulations and demonstration
of its stewardship over the district resources follows:
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1. Deposits and Investments

The district’s investment policies are governed by state statute.
Permissible investments include direct obligations of the
U.S. Government and agency securities, certificates of deposit, and
savings accounts. At June 30, 2014, investments consisted entirely of
certificates of deposit with original maturities greater than three
months at a local bank. Investments are carried at cost, which
approximates fair value.

For deposits and investments, custodial credit risk is the risk that, in
the event of a bank failure, the district’s deposits may not be returned
to it. Collateral is required for demand deposits and certificates of
deposit at 105 percent of all amounts not covered by federal deposit
insurance. Obligations that may be pledged as collateral are
obligations of the United States and its agencies and obligations of the
State of Tennessee and its subdivisions. The district’s deposits at
year-end were not exposed to custodial credit risk due to being entirely
covered by depository insurance (a combination of federal depository
insurance with the excess covered by the state’s bank collateral pool).

2. Budget Appropriations

In accordance with state law, the board of the district must adopt and
operate under an annual budget. Criteria for the information required
in the annual adopted budget are detailed in Section 7-86-120,
Tennessee Code Annotated. However, for financial reporting purposes,
it is only necessary to present budgetary revenues and expenses
compared to actual. All purchases must be made within the limits of
the approved budget. Expenses must be presented at the legal level of
control, which is defined to be at the line-item level.

The district’s expenses were within appropriations at the line-item
level (cash basis).

Estimates and Assumptions

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally
accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
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Retirement Plan

Plan Description

Employees of the district are members of the Political Subdivision Pension
Plan (PSPP), an agent multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan
administered by the Tennessee Consolidated Retirement System (TCRS).
TCRS provides retirement benefits as well as death and disability benefits.
Benefits are determined by a formula using the member’s high five-year
average salary and years of service. Members become eligible to retire at the
age of 60 with five years of service or at any age with 30 years of service. A
reduced retirement benefit is available to vested members at the age of 55.
Disability benefits are available to active members with five years of service
who became disabled and cannot engage in gainful employment. There is no
service requirement for disability that is the result of an accident or injury
occurring while the member was in the performance of duty. Members joining
the system after July 1, 1979, become vested after five years of service, and
members joining prior to July 1, 1979, were vested after four years of service.
Benefit provisions are established in state statute found in Title 8, Chapters
34-37 of Tennessee Code Annotated. State statutes are amended by the
Tennessee General Assembly.

Political subdivisions such as the district participate in the TCRS as
individual entities and are liable for all costs associated with the operation
and administration of their plan. Benefit improvements are not applicable to
a political subdivision unless approved by the chief governing body. The
TCRS issues a publicly available financial report that includes
financial statements and required supplementary information for the PSPP.
That report may be obtained by writing to the Tennessee Treasury
Department, Consolidated Retirement System, 15th Floor, Andrew Jackson
Building, Nashville, Tennessee 37243-0230 or can be accessed at
www.tn.gov/treasury/tcrs/PS.

Funding Policy

The district has adopted a noncontributory retirement plan for its employees
by assuming employee contributions up to five percent of annual covered
payroll. The district is required to contribute at an actuarially determined
rate; the rate for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014, was 15.93 percent of
annual covered payroll. The contribution requirement of plan members is set
by state statute. The contribution requirement for the district is established
and may be amended by the TCRS Board of Trustees.

Annual Pension Cost
For the year ended June 30, 2014, the district’s annual pension cost of
$24,641 to TCRS was equal to the district’s required and actual

contributions. The required contribution was determined as part of the
July 1, 2011, actuarial valuation using the frozen entry age actuarial cost
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method. Significant actuarial assumptions used in the valuation include
(a) rate of return on investment of present and future assets of 7.5 percent a
year compounded annually, (b) projected three percent annual rate of
inflation, (c) projected salary increases of 4.75 percent (graded) annual rate
(no explicit assumption is made regarding the portion attributable to the
effects of inflation on salaries), (d) projected 3.5 percent annual increase in
the Social Security wage base, and (e) projected post-retirement increases of
2.5 percent annually. The actuarial value of assets was determined using
techniques that smooth the effect of short-term volatility in the market value
of total investments over a ten-year period. The district’s unfunded actuarial
accrued liability is being amortized as a level dollar amount on a closed basis.
The remaining amortization period at July 1, 2011, was 15 years. An
actuarial valuation was performed as of July 1, 2011, which established
contribution rates effective July 1, 2012.

Trend Information

Fiscal Annual Percentage Net
Year Pension of APC Pension
Ended Cost (APC) Contributed Obligation
6-30-14 $ 24,641 100 % $ 0
6-30-13 23,969 100 0
6-30-12 23,503 100 0

Funded Status and Funding Progress

As of July 1, 2013, the most recent actuarial valuation date available, the
plan was 73.9 percent funded. The actuarial accrued liability for benefits was
$.49 million, and the actuarial value of assets was $.36 million, resulting in
an unfunded actuarial liability (UAAL) of $.13 million. The covered payroll
(annual payroll of active employees covered by the plan) was $.15 million,
and the ratio of the UAAL to the covered payroll was 84.15 percent.

The Schedule of Funding Progress, presented as required supplementary
information following the notes to the financial statements, present
multi-year trend information about whether the actuarial values of plan
assets are increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued
liability for benefits.

Accounting Changes

Provisions of Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement
No. 67, Financial Reporting for Pension Plans, became effective for the year
ended June 30, 2014.
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GASB Statement No. 67 replaces the requirements of Statements No. 25 and
No. 50 related to pension plans that are administered through trusts or
equivalent arrangements. The requirements of Statements No. 25 and No. 50
remain applicable to pension plans that are not administered through trusts
or equivalent arrangements.
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY
INFORMATION
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Exhibit F-1
Madison County, Tennessee

Schedule of Funding Progress — Pension Plan
Primary Government and Discretely Presented Madison County School Department
June 30, 2014

(Dollar amounts in thousands)

Actuarial
Accrued
Actuarial Liability UAAL as a
Value of (AAL) Unfunded Percentage
Actuarial Plan Frozen AAL Funded Covered  of Covered
Valuation Assets Entry Age (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll
Date (a) (b) (b)-(a) (a/b) (c) ((b-a)/c)
7-1-13 $ 110,466 $ 132,968 $ 22,502 83.08 % $ 30,021 74.95 %
7-1-11 97,823 102,659 4,836 95.29 30,789 15.71
7-1-09 78,399 83,246 4,847 94.18 30,952 15.66
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Exhibit F-2

Madison County, Tennessee

Schedule of Funding Progress — Pension Plan

Discretely Presented Madison County School Department
June 30, 2014

Former City of Jackson Teacher Retirement Plan

Actuarial
Accrued
Liability
(AAL) UAAL as a
Actuarial Projected Unfunded Percentage
Actuarial Value of Unit AAL Funded Covered of Covered
Valuation Assets Credit (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll
Date (a) () (©)-(a) (a/b) (© ((b-a)/c)
7-1-11  $ 961,499 $§ 3,812,330 $ 2,850,831 25.20 % $ 57,610 4,948.50 %
7-1-12 997,849 3,624,134 2,626,285 27.53 56,584 4,641.39
7-1-13 999,956 3,145,868 2,145,912 31.79 49,655 4,321.64
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MADISON COUNTY, TENNESSEE
NOTES TO THE REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

NONE
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COMBINING AND INDIVIDUAL FUND
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SCHEDULES
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N onmajor Governmental Funds

Special Revenue Funds

Special Revenue Funds are used to account for and report the proceeds
of specific revenue sources that are restricted or committed to
expenditure for specific purposes other than debt service or capital
projects.

Juvenile Services Fund — The Juvenile Services Fund is used to account for transactions
related to the supervision, care, and detention of those children who are defined by the
general laws of the State of Tennessee as delinquent, unruly, dependent, neglected, or
abused.

Solid Waste/Sanitation Fund — The Solid Waste/Sanitation Fund is used to account for solid
waste activities related to the county’s convenience centers.

Local Purpose Tax Fund — The Local Purpose Tax Fund is used to account for local tax
collections to be used at the discretion of the County Commission.

Special Purpose Fund — The Special Purpose Fund is used to account for transactions
related to certain public safety, health, and welfare programs.

Drug Control Fund — The Drug Control Fund is used to account for revenues received from
drug-related fines, forfeitures, and seizures.

Constitutional Officers - Fees Fund — The Constitutional Officers - Fees Fund is used to
account for operating expenses paid directly from the fee and commission accounts of the
trustee, clerks, register of deeds, and sheriff.
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Capital Projects Funds

Capital Projects Funds are used to account for and report financial
resources that are restricted, committed, or assigned to expenditure for
capital outlays, including the acquisition or construction of capital
facilities and other capital assets.

General Capital Projects Fund — The General Capital Projects Fund is used to account for
financial resources to be used for the acquisition or construction of major capital facilities.

Community Development/Industrial Park Fund — The Community Development/Industrial
Park Fund is used to account for revenues provided for industrial park projects.

Highway Capital Projects Fund — The Highway Capital Projects Fund is used to account for
highway construction projects in the county.
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Exhibit G-5

Madison County, Tennessee

Schedule of Revenues. Expenditures, and Changes
in Fund Balance - Actual and Budget

Local Purpose Tax Fund

For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

Variance
with Final
Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Actual Original Final (Negative)
Revenues

Local Taxes $ 1,906,813 $ 1,706,781 $ 1,756,781 $ 150,032
Total Revenues $ 1,906,813 $ 1,706,781 $ 1,756,781 $ 150,032
Expenditures

Other Operations

Miscellaneous $ 1,343,735 $ 19,400 $ 21,400 $ (1,322,335)
Total Expenditures $ 1,343,735 $ 19,400 $ 21,400 $§ (1,322,335)
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues

Over Expenditures $ 563,078 $ 1,687,381 $ 1,735,381 $ (1,172,303)
Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Transfers Out $ (64,000) $ 0 $ (64,000) $ 0
Total Other Financing Sources $ (64,000) $ 0$ (64,000) $ 0
Net Change in Fund Balance $ 499,078 $ 1,687,381 $ 1,671,381 $ (1,172,303)
Fund Balance, July 1, 2013 1,944,124 1,780,840 1,944,124 0
Fund Balance, June 30, 2014 $ 2,443,202 $ 3,468,221 $ 3,615,505 $ (1,172,303)
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Exhibit G-7

Madison County, Tennessee

Schedule of Revenues. Expenditures, and Changes
in Fund Balance - Actual and Budget

Drug Control Fund

For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

Variance
with Final
Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Actual Original Final (Negative)
Revenues
Fines, Forfeitures, and Penalties $ 13,092 $ 35,800 $ 35,800 $ (22,708)
Total Revenues $ 13,092 $ 35,800 $ 35,800 $ (22,708)
Expenditures
Public Safety
Drug Enforcement $ 3,504 $ 3,380 $ 3,680 $ 176
Total Expenditures $ 3,604 $ 3,380 $ 3,680 $ 176
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenditures $ 9,588 $ 32,420 $ 32,120 $ (22,532)
Net Change in Fund Balance $ 9,588 $ 32,420 $ 32,120 $ (22,5632)
Fund Balance, July 1, 2013 25,582 52,176 25,582 0
Fund Balance, June 30, 2014 $ 35,170 $ 84,596 $ 57,702 $ (22,532)
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Exhibit G-9

Madison County, Tennessee

Schedule of Revenues. Expenditures, and Changes
in Fund Balance - Actual and Budget

Community Development/Industrial Park Fund

For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

Variance
with Final
Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Actual Original Final (Negative)
Revenues
Other Local Revenues $ 32,604 $ 0$ 32,604 $ 0
Total Revenues $ 32,604 $ 0$ 32,604 $ 0
Expenditures
Other Operations
Industrial Development $ 75,326 $ 0$ 75,400 $ 74
Total Expenditures $ 75,326 $ 0$ 75,400 $ 74
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenditures $ (42,722) $ 0$ (42,796) $ 74
Net Change in Fund Balance $ (42,722) $ 0$ (42,796) $ 74
Fund Balance, July 1, 2013 243,503 208,826 243,503 0
Fund Balance, June 30, 2014 $ 200,781 $ 208,826 $ 200,707 $ 74

111



Major Governmental Fund

General Debt Service Fund

The General Debt Service Fund is used to account for and report
financial resources that are restricted, committed, or assigned to
expenditure for principal and interest.
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Madison County, Tennessee

Schedule of Revenues. Expenditures, and Changes

in Fund Balance - Actual and Budget
General Debt Service Fund

For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

Exhibit H

Variance
with Final
Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Actual Original Final (Negative)
Revenues
Local Taxes $ 7,906,760 $ 7,590,579 $ 7,854,213 $ 52,547
Other Local Revenues 43,423 378,725 228,725 (185,302)
Federal Government 128,953 0 0 128,953
Other Governments and Citizens Groups 794,089 0 794,089 0
Total Revenues § 8873225 $  7,969304 $ 8,877,027 $ (3,802)
Expenditures
Principal on Debt
General Government $ 7,655,000 $ 7,189,428 $ 8,003,411 $ 348,411
Interest on Debt
General Government 2,442129 0 2,479,928 37,799
Other Debt Service
General Government 275,725 0 283,051 7,326
Capital Projects
Education Capital Projects 1,017,500 0 1,017,500 0
Total Expenditures $ 11,390,354 $ 7,189,428 $ 11,783,890 $ 393,536
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenditures $  (2,617,129) § 779,876 $  (2,906,863) $ 389,734
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Bonds Issued $ 03 0$ 350,000 $ (350,000)
Refunding Debt Issued 17,150,000 0 17,150,000 0
Premiums on Debt Issued 390,473 0 390,473 0
Transfers In 225,000 794,089 225,000 0
Payments to Refunded Debt Escrow Agent (17,416,922) 0 (17,416,922) 0
Total Other Financing Sources $ 348,551 $ 794,089 $ 698,551 $ (350,000)
Net Change in Fund Balance $ (2,168,578) $ 1,573,965 $  (2,208,312) $ 39,734
Fund Balance, July 1, 2013 7,316,303 7,193,455 7,316,303 0
Fund Balance, June 30, 2014 $ 5,147,725 $ 8,767,420 $ 5,107,991 $ 39,734
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Fiduciary Funds

Agency Funds are used to account for assets held by the county in a
trustee capacity or as an agent for individuals, private organizations,
other governments, and/or other funds. Agency funds are custodial in
nature (assets equal liabilities) and do not involve measurement of
results of operations.

Cities - Sales Tax Fund — The Cities - Sales Tax Fund is used to account for the second half
of the sales tax revenues collected inside the incorporated City of Jackson and to account for
the City of Jackson’s portion (40 percent) of the hotel/motel tax. These revenues are
received by the county from the State of Tennessee and from the hotels and motels located
in Madison County and are forwarded to the City of Jackson on a monthly basis.

Cities - Property Tax Fund — The Cities - Property Tax Fund is used to account for property
taxes collected by the county trustee for the City of Three-Way and the second half of the
sales tax revenues collected inside the incorporated City of Three-Way.

Watershed District Fund — The Watershed District Fund is used to account for acreage
assessments collected by the county trustee and held in trust for the watershed district.

Joint Venture Fund — The Joint Venture Fund is used to account for a portion (20 percent)
of the hotel/motel tax, which is collected for the Jackson — Madison County Community
Economic Development Commission. These revenues are received by the county from the
hotels and motels located in the county and are forwarded to the commission monthly.

Constitutional Officers - Agency Fund — The Constitutional Officers - Agency Fund is used
to account for amounts collected in an agency capacity by the county clerk, circuit and
general sessions courts clerk, juvenile court clerk, clerk and master, register of deeds, and
sheriff. Such collections include amounts due the state, cities, other county funds, litigants,
heirs, and others.

Other Agency Fund — The Other Agency Fund is used to account for the second half of the
sales tax revenues collected inside the incorporated cities of Medon and Humboldt. These
revenues are received by the county from the State of Tennessee and forwarded to these
cities on a monthly basis.

District Attorney General Fund — The District Attorney General Fund is used to account for
restricted revenue held for the benefit of the Office of District Attorney General.
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Madison County, Tennessee

Exhibit I-2

Combining Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities - All Agency Funds

For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

Beginning Ending
Balance Additions Deductions Balance
Cities - Sales Tax Fund
Assets
Equity in Pooled Cash and Investments $ 58,247 13,377,795 13,388,047 47,995
Accounts Receivable 53,699 56,543 53,699 56,543
Due from Other Governments 2,089,719 2,119,123 2,089,719 2,119,123
Total Assets $ 2,201,665 15,553,461 15,531,465 2,223,661
Liabilities
Due to Other Taxing Units $ 2,201,665 15,553,461 15,531,465 2,223,661
Total Liabilities $ 2,201,665 15,553,461 15,531,465 2,223,661
Cities - Property Tax Fund
Assets
Equity in Pooled Cash and Investments $ 6,668 324,850 328,485 3,033
Due from Other Governments 7,962 13,332 7,962 13,332
Total Assets 3 14,630 338,182 336,447 16,365
Liabilities
Due to Other Taxing Units $ 14,630 338,182 336,447 16,365
Total Liabilities $ 14,630 338,182 336,447 16,365
Watershed District Fund
Assets
Equity in Pooled Cash and Investments 3 55,973 0 0 55,973
Total Assets 3 55,973 0 0 55,973
Liabilities
Other Current Liabilities $ 55,973 0 0 55,973
Total Liabilities $ 55,973 0 0 55,973
Joint Venture Fund
Assets
Equity in Pooled Cash and Investments $ 29,123 193,404 198,530 23,997
Accounts Receivable 26,850 28,272 26,850 28,272
Total Assets 3 55,973 221,676 225,380 52,269
Liabilities
Other Current Liabilities 3 55,973 221,676 225,380 52,269
Total Liabilities 3 55,973 221,676 225,380 52,269
(Continued)
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Madison County, Tennessee

Exhibit I-2

Combining Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities - All Agency Funds (Cont.)

Beginning Ending
Balance Additions Deductions Balance
Constitutional Officers - Agency Fund
Assets
Cash $ 4,801,370 20,445,921 20,578,771 4,668,520
Accounts Receivable 0 0 0 0
Total Assets $ 4,801,370 20,445,921 20,578,771 4,668,520
Liabilities
Due to Litigants, Heirs, and Others $ 4,801,370 20,445,921 20,578,771 4,668,520
Total Liabilities $ 4,801,370 20,445,921 20,578,771 4,668,520
Other Agency Fund
Assets
Equity in Pooled Cash and Investments $ 0 14,561 14,561 0
Due from Other Governments 2,119 2,455 2,119 2,455
Total Assets 3 2,119 17,016 16,680 2,455
Liabilities
Due to Other Taxing Units $ 2,119 17,016 16,680 2,455
Total Liabilities $ 2,119 17,016 16,680 2,455
District Attorney General Fund
Assets
Equity in Pooled Cash and Investments $ 31,036 14,773 16,176 29,633
Due from Other Governments 228 228 228 228
Total Assets $ 31,264 15,001 16,404 29,861
Liabilities
Due to Litigants, Heirs, and Others $ 31,264 15,001 16,404 29,861
Total Liabilities $ 31,264 15,001 16,404 29,861
Totals - All Agency Funds
Assets
Cash $ 4,801,370 20,445,921 20,578,771 4,668,520
Equity in Pooled Cash and Investments 181,047 13,925,383 13,945,799 160,631
Accounts Receivable 80,549 84,815 80,549 84,815
Due from Other Governments 2,100,028 2,135,138 2,100,028 2,135,138
Total Assets $ 7,162,994 36,591,257 36,705,147 7,049,104
Liabilities
Due to Other Taxing Units $ 2,218,414 15,908,659 15,884,592 2,242,481
Due to Litigants, Heirs, and Others 4,832,634 20,460,922 20,595,175 4,698,381
Other Current Liabilities 111,946 221,676 225,380 108,242
Total Liabilities $ 7,162,994 36,591,257 36,705,147 7,049,104
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Madison County School Department

This section presents combining and individual fund financial
statements for the Madison County School Department, a discretely
presented component unit. The School Department uses a General
Fund, two Special Revenue Funds, one Capital Projects Fund, and one
Fiduciary Fund.

General Purpose School Fund — The General Purpose School Fund is used to
account for general operations of the School Department.

School Federal Projects Fund — The School Federal Projects Fund is used to account
for restricted federal revenues, which must be expended on specific education
programs.

Central Cafeteria Fund — The Central Cafeteria Fund is used to account for the
cafeteria operations in each of the schools.

Education Capital Projects Fund — The Education Capital Projects Fund is used to
account for building construction and renovations of the School Department.

Pension Trust Fund — The Pension Trust Fund is used to account for the former
City of Jackson Teacher Retirement Plan, which was assumed by the Madison
County Board of Education as a result of the consolidation of the City of Jackson
School System and the Madison County School System.
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Exhibit J-3

Madison County, Tennessee

Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet of Governmental Funds to
the Statement of Net Position

Discretely Presented Madison County School Department
June 30, 2014

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position (Exhibit A)
are different because:

Total fund balances - balance sheet - governmental funds (Exhibit J-2)
(1) Capital assets used in governmental activities are not

financial resources and therefore are not reported in
the governmental funds.

Add: land $ 2,091,562
Add: buildings and improvements net of accumulated depreciation 64,851,171
Add: infrastructure net of accumulated depreciation 503,303
Add: other capital assets net of accumulated depreciation 6,937,958

(2) Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period
and therefore are not reported in the governmental funds.
Less: other postemployment benefits liability $  (9,065,250)

Less: compensated absences payable (288,853)

(3) Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current-period
expenditures and therefore are deferred in the governmental funds.

Net position of governmental activities (Exhibit A)
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11,697,829

74,383,994

(9,354,103)

3,337,113

80,064,833
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Exhibit J-5

Madison County, Tennessee

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities

Discretely Presented Madison County School Department

For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities (Exhibit B) are
different because:

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds (Exhibit J-4)

(1) Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in
the statement of activities, the cost of these assets is allocated over their
useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. The difference
between capital outlays and depreciation is itemized as follows:
Add: capital assets purchased in the current period $ 625,574

Less: current-year depreciation expense (3,747,491)

(2) Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial
resources are not reported as revenues in the funds.
Add: deferred delinquent property taxes and other deferred June 30, 2014 $ 3,337,113

Add: deferred delinquent property taxes and other deferred June 30, 2013 (3,544,630)

(3) Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the
use of current financial resources and therefore are not reported as
expenditures in the governmental funds.
Change in other postemployment benefits liability $  (614,028)
Change in compensated absences payable 15,870

$ 1,888,770

(3,121,917)

(207,517)

(598,158)

Change in net position of governmental activities (Exhibit B)
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$ (2,038,822)



Exhibit J-6

Madison County, Tennessee

Combining Balance Sheet - Nonmajor Governmental Funds
Discretely Presented Madison County School Department
June 30, 2014

Special Revenue Funds Total
School Nonmajor
Federal Central Governmental
Projects Cafeteria Funds
ASSETS
Equity in Pooled Cash and Investments $ 345,304 $ 2,666,219 $ 3,011,523
Accounts Receivable 3,205 0 3,205
Due from Other Governments 399,950 0 399,950
Total Assets $ 748,459 $ 2,666,219 $ 3,414,678
LIABILITIES
Accrued Payroll $ 471 $ 0$ 471
Payroll Deductions Payable 249,998 116,431 366,429
Total Liabilities $ 250,469 $ 116,431 $ 366,900
FUND BALANCES
Restricted:
Restricted for Education $ 147,990 $ 09 147,990
Restricted for Operation of Non-instructional Services 0 2,549,788 2,549,788
Assigned:
Assigned for Education 350,000 0 350,000
Total Fund Balances $ 497,990 $ 2,649,788 $ 3,047,778
Total Liabilities and Fund Balances $ 748,459 $ 2,666,219 $ 3,414,678
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Exhibit J-7

Madison County, Tennessee
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures,
and Changes in Fund Balances -

Nonmajor Governmental Funds
Discretely Presented Madison County School Department

For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

Special Revenue Funds Total
School Nonmajor
Federal Central Governmental
Projects Cafeteria Funds
Revenues
Charges for Current Services $ 0$ 963,517 $ 963,517
Other Local Revenues 0 9,519 9,519
State of Tennessee 0 78,152 78,152
Federal Government 9,686,168 7,627,293 17,313,461
Total Revenues $ 9,686,168 $ 8,678,481 $ 18,364,649
Expenditures
Current:
Instruction $ 5,576,999 $ 0$ 5,576,999
Support Services 4,130,859 0 4,130,859
Operation of Non-instructional Services 0 8,593,761 8,593,761
Total Expenditures $ 9,707,858 $ 8,593,761 $ 18,301,619
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenditures $ (21,690) $ 84,720 $ 63,030
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Insurance Recovery $ 09 915 $ 915
Transfers In 200,000 0 200,000
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) $ 200,000 $ 915 $ 200,915
Net Change in Fund Balances $ 178,310 $ 85,635 $ 263,945
Fund Balance, July 1, 2013 319,680 2,464,153 2,783,833
Fund Balance, June 30, 2014 $ 497,990 $ 2,649,788 $ 3,047,778
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Madison County, Tennessee
Schedule of Revenues. Expenditures, and Changes
in Fund Balance - Actual and Budget

Discretely Presented Madison County School Department
Central Cafeteria Fund

For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

Exhibit J-10

Variance
with Final
Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Actual Original Final (Negative)
Revenues

Charges for Current Services $ 963,517 $ 1,201,185 $ 1,201,185 $ (237,668)

Other Local Revenues 9,519 11,000 11,000 (1,481)

State of Tennessee 78,152 76,000 76,000 2,152

Federal Government 7,627,293 7,977,000 8,488,437 (861,144)
Total Revenues $ 8,678,481 $ 9,265,185 $ 9,776,622 $ (1,098,141)
Expenditures

Operation of Non-instructional Services

Food Service 3 8,593,761 §$ 9,265,185 § 9,776,622 § 1,182,861
Total Expenditures $ 8,593,761 $ 9,265,185 $  9.776,622 $ 1,182,861
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues

Over Expenditures $ 84,720 $ 0$ 093 84,720
Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Insurance Recovery $ 915 $ 0$ 0$ 915
Total Other Financing Sources $ 915 $ 0$ 093 915
Net Change in Fund Balance $ 85,635 $ 0$ 03 85,635
Fund Balance, July 1, 2013 9,464,153 2,546,718 92,464,153 0
Fund Balance, June 30, 2014 $ 2,549,788 $ 2,546,718 $ 2,464,153 $ 85,635
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Exhibit J-12

Madison County, Tennessee

Statement of Fiduciary Net Position

Discretely Presented Madison County School Department
Fiduciary Fund

June 30, 2014

Other
Trust

Pension
Trust
Fund

ASSETS

Equity in Pooled Cash and Investments $ 1,002,345

Total Assets $ 1,002,345

NET POSITION

Funds Held in Trust for Retirees $ 1,002,345

Total Net Position $ 1,002,345
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Exhibit J-13

Madison County, Tennessee

Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position
Discretely Presented Madison County School Department
Fiduciary Fund

For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

ADDITIONS

Contributions
Tennessee Consolidated Retirement System
Employer

Total Contributions

Investment Income
Interest Earned

Total Investment Income

Total Additions

DEDUCTIONS

Benefits
Trustee's Commission
Total Deductions

Change in Net Position
Net Position, July 1, 2013

Net Position, June 30, 2014

132

Other
Trust

Pension
Trust
Fund

260,580
288,230

548,810

1,018

1,018

SRR

549,828

547,428
11

547,439

2,389
999,956

1,002,345




MISCELLANEOUS SCHEDULES
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Exhibit K-2

Madison County, Tennessee
Schedule of Long-term Debt Requirements by Year

Year

Ending Bonds

June 30 Principal Interest Total
2015 $ 6,540,000 1,614,213 8,154,213
2016 4,770,000 1,381,397 6,151,397
2017 6,930,000 1,275,998 8,205,998
2018 7,110,000 1,125,247 8,235,247
2019 4,255,000 967,823 5,222,823
2020 4,830,000 788,482 5,618,482
2021 5,035,000 592,395 5,627,395
2022 5,235,000 385,775 5,620,775
2023 2,715,000 206,656 2,921,656
2024 1,000,000 104,000 1,104,000
2025 1,000,000 52,500 1,052,500
Total $ 49,420,000 8,494,486 57,914,486

135



000°00%

Jusurjreda( [00Y0g A3Uno))
UOSTPRIN pojuesaig A[01910S1(J SIojsuel], [e10],
000°00% spuny molj yse) $109(01J Tetopa,] [00Y9S [00yog esodang [e1ousx)
LNHINLEVdHA TOOHOS ALNNOD
NOSIAVIN HLNHSHEd A THLHEOSIA
€0Z°810°T JUOWUIIAOK) ATRWILIJ SI9JSURL], [B10],
€0%‘6% suonyesad() jusuuyreds(] 9ouLRUL] " SYIOA OT[qnJ/AemyST
000°00L spun,] MofJ Yse)) JO JUSWASINUITY [e1oUax) asodang readg
00079 suorjerad() S9OTIAIOQ O[TUSAN xe], osodinJ [eoor]
000°CZ3 syuowifed 199(T 9OTAIOG 1q9(] [eIous) [e1ouUax)
LNHANNTHAOD AdVINTEd
JUNOWY asodang puny of, pun,] woxf

710G "0€ dUNp papuy IB3X 973 10

Juau}Iedo (] [0070S AJUNO0)) UOSIPBA POTUOSaL] A[9F0I0SI(] PUB JUOWULIOAOY) ATBWLI]
SI9JSUeI], JO o[NpoyoS

99SSouU], ‘AJunNoy) UOSTPeIN

€3 NqIyxy

136



‘(waey Teuad) asNOYII0m AJUNO0D ) Jo UoIsTtATadns 10J 08/ ‘Z$ Jo uoresuadurod sepnouy (g)
'0GL$ JO @ouBMO[[B SUIYIO[0 B 9PN[OUL 10U S80(]
‘(waey Teuad) asNoOYII0m AJUNOD 1) JO UOISTATednS 10J 839°‘g¢ Jo uoresuadurod sepnouy (1)

‘G6LT$ Jo yuswie[ddns J0jeajsTUTWIPE OI[qNd POJIIILd B pue ()92 ‘G$ JO $99] I9U0ISSTWW0) [B1oads apnjoul j0u sa0( (9)
"16.°1$ Jo yuawarddns xojexystutwipe orjqnd payIiaed B opnoul 10U oo (g)

'09%‘G$ Jo Ard @AT3ULOUT UOTIBONPS UL SopnU] (¥)

GG, ‘1$ Jo Juawaddns xojexysturwipe orjqnd payIiaed B opnoul 10U seo(] (g)
'G9g8‘T$ Jo Juawarddns xojexysturwipe orjqnd payIiied B opnoul 10U oo (g)

*LBT°8$ JO 0ABS[ ponaooe sepnjouy (T)

" 000°0GT seafordwy [V
:S[00YDG JO 1030041(]
" 000°0GT seafordwy [V
:reoutduy Aemysry
puny £jense)
pue £310doiJ JUSWUISAOY) T8I0 000°0ST soofordwy [V
:10KRT\ £3Uno))
Rl*10)
:puog jeyue[g seakordwy
Auedwo)) eouBINSUT [BNINA [IOWOINY 91BIS 000001 (8) 1L6°ST UOISSTWWO)) A3Unoy)
pue ‘VoJ ‘G01-¥g-8 uonweg  ($1-0€-9 ysSnoays $1-1g-¥) weysuruuny) AWwo ,
" 000°09 (L) 198°8S uoIssIuwo;) £3unoy)
pue ‘Y.L ‘G01-%g-8 uoroeg (¥1-G-5 y3noayy ¢1-1-1) YI0J[00M\ PraL(]
RS
u 0000 (9) ggL'aL VO ‘301-7g-8 uorjoeg $paa(J Jo 1IsISoY
Auedwo)) £)oang pue £)[ense)) SIs[oALRL], 000°0S 2GL9L 0661 JO $10y 91eAld ‘G1g 101dey) B[ 2IN0)) d[IULAN[
a3pnp 31n0)) A1eduBy)) pur
Auedwoy souransuy 1TY 000°0L 9) Lg¥'¥8 VO ‘G0T-7g-8 uonag IOISBIN pUB I8
N 000°0S (€) LZ¥¥8 VO ‘Z01-¥3-8 uo130eg JI8[)) SIANO)) UOISSOG [BIOUSY) PUB JINIIL))
u 0000 (9) ggL'aL VO ‘301-75-8 uorjoeg e[ £1unop
" 000°0S #) 9ce‘68 UOISSTWWO)) AJUNo)) 9OUBUIL JO J03dII(]
" 000°09 (€) ggL'9L VO ‘301-%5-8 uonoag £119do1d Jo 10ss0SSY
u 000°189°€ (@) egL'oL VO ‘301-7g-8 uorjoeg 99)sna,
N 000°0S 000°0ST uorpeonpy Jo preod Ajuno)) pue
uorpeonpy Jo preod 91818 ST00TOS JO 1030041(]
" 000°00T (1) LGLFTI VO ‘601-75-8 Uo13oeg Toautduy AeMysty
Auedwo)) £)oang pue £)[ense)) SIs[oALL], 000°0S $ 687701 VO ‘Z01-¥3-8 uo130eg J0KeI\ £3uno))
Kyoang puog potsg AXe[eg J10J UOIIBZLIOYINY [BLUIO
Juung
pred
Arereg

$T0Z 0€ o[ popuy 180X 903 107

JTet}Ieda(] [00Y0S ATUNO,) UOSIPE]\ PoJuesol] A[0J0I10S[(] PUE JUSWIUIOAOY) ATBITL]

-3 NqIUxy

S[EDJO [edPULL] JO SPUOE [EPYFO PUE SOLE[ES JO S[MPotds

99SS9UUR ], "AJUNO)) UOSTPBIA

137



(penunjuop)

0 $ 0 $ 0 $0 $ 0 $ I8LFY $ uorjesidey [BWIUY
SoSUPoT]

ST J pUB Sesuaol|

0 $ 0 § €18°906'T $ ¥8¥'€E6 $§ GG3'GE6 $ ¥05°869°¢5 _ $ SOXE [, [B00T] [B10],

0 0 0 0 0 991°¢ XgJ, SUOTIBITUNUWITWO0I9[9 ], 918ISI9IU]
0 0 0 0 0 635°3LG XeJ, 199¢ 9[BSO[OYM
0 0 0 983G 665G 665°cS X8, OSDXY Jued

SoXB[, [800"] A10INTBIS
0 0 0 0 0 0 X€ ], 90UBIOADG [eIOUTIA
0 0 0 0 0 G866 X8, UL POXIA
0 0 SLETLST 0 0 0 XeJ, ssoursng
0 0 0 0 0 0 9SNOYINOY) I0 ‘OSNOYIIOM ‘TIBf - X8 ], U0JBII]
0 0 0 0 0 cze10¢e asodang [ewedg - XBJ, U0TIBSNI]
0 0 0 0 0 918°G¥¢ [eIoUaY) - XBJ, UOLIRSII]
0 0 0 0 0 186°G6¢ X8, [910]A/[°10H
0 0 0 0 0 %£8°'9¢e8 xg[, so[eg uond() [8o0]

Soxe[, uond() [8o07] Ajuno))
0 0 0 GGY°6 G356 L0G918 T8I - SIXE, JO-NSI]-UI STUSWAL]
0 0 0 eeL'LT €86°LT €3L°G0V SOTI[TY() [BOOT] - SOXB, JO-NST-UT SjUsWAe
0 0 88 ¥.8°G LEV'Y LGL°%6 Kreusd pue 1saaeju]
0 0 LEL8T 169°03 98€°8% 6€9°677 SIE9X JIOLL] - SUOTII[[0)) I9ISBIA] PUE JIS[)/ATNOILY)
0 0 620G 196°T L8S°G ¥65°7S Aodnayueq - SUOTIL[[0)) §,09ISN4],
0 0 98¢°T 71891 gvLioe ¥80°LES B9 A JIOLIJ - SUOTIIDI[O]) §,99)SNA],
0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 189°T98 $ 9LE0¥8 $ LEG°LTL6T  $ xe], £&3a0dorg Jueain))

sexe[, A310d0oIJ A3UNo))

SoxE[, [e00']
[ox3uo) asodang XBJ, uoryeIIues EERVNEN] [BIoULY)
Snaqg [ewedg asodang / 9188 M a[tuaAnp

[8o07] PIOS

spun,j enusAsy [eradg

¥10g 0€ dunf pspuy e X o3 104
SodA ], pun,] [BJUSWUISA0Y) [V

- SonuoAey po[IBId(] JO A[NPayos

99SSeUUe ], 'AJUNo0)) UOSIPBI

-3 MqUUXE

138



(penunjuop)

0 0 0 0 0 699°G so0] 3In0)) Sni(q
LOL*9 0 0 0 0 L92°L soury [oa3uo)) Sni(g
0 0 0 0 0 €385 souL Ysi,] pue swer)
0 0 0 0 0 199981 §1500) SIBOLFO
0 0 0 0 0 60239 sour|
7IM0]) SUOISSog [BIoUaT)
0 0 0 0 0 ¥G6°L SJUDUISSOSSY 9OURISISSY SWIOIA
0 0 0 0 0 L¥S1 99 A31IN0OG WOOILINO))
0 0 0 0 0 109°¢ 1IN0{) JNDIL)) - 99,] A13uf] eje(
0 0 0 0 0 860°¢ sour juewieaL], INQ
0 0 0 0 0 £88°G3 S99 [tef
0 0 0 0 0 68L°C s90] 3In0)) Sni(q
0 0 0 0 0 0€9 soury] [oruo)) Sni(
0 0 0 0 0 8TLLE §1500) SISO
0 0 0 0 0 g 3urL1e91T J0J SAUT
0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 69E'8% $ SOUL]
M0 YMOIL)
SoTI[eUD ] PUE "SOINJIoJI0,] "SOUL]
0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 339°'16€ $ S}IWISJ PUB SOSUAITT (B30,
0 0 0 0 0 vy SYTWId J I3
0 0 0 0 0 %06°€9 sywaeg Surping
Sueg
0 0 0 0 0 636°GLE osTpuBI] AL 998D
0 $ 0 $ 0 $0 $ 0 $ 6956 $ UOIJBUIIIE A [BWIUY
(7007) SoswRIT]
(TU0)) SHWISJ PUE SOSUooT|
[0I3u0) asoding Xe], UOI}B}TUES SOOIAIOG [e1ouax)
Snaqg [ewedg asodang / 9188 M a[tuaAnp
[e207] PIOS

spun,j enusAsy [eradg

(7u0)) SodAJ, pun,| [BIUSWIUIOAOY) [y
- SonuoAey po[IBId(] JO A[NPayos
99SSeUUe ], 'AJUNo0)) UOSIPBI

-3 MqUUXE

139



(penunjuop)

0 0 0 0 0 PLIT soay] £do)

0 0 0 0 0 3L8°29 $09,] UOT}BAI0Y

0 0 0 0 0 93€°G S00,] MO1ARY Joourduy
599

0 0 0 0 099 998°L S081eY() 901AI0G [BISUSL) I0Y)()

0 0 0 0 0 G6T78T suorpas[[o)) juswreda(] Yoy

0 $ 0 $ 0 $0 $ 0 $ 86¥c $ sedxey) juenpe g

§o8TeT])) 0JIAI9g [elousy)
SOOTATSG JUALIN) I0J SosIey))

G60°€T $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 6I6'8LS $ SOI)[RUSJ PUB ‘SOINIIONION ‘SOUL [BI0],
G8¢e‘9 0 0 0 0 crzce £Ky10doIJ PaYeISTUO)) WOIJ SPIS0IJ
SeTj[elsJ pUE 'SeINjIe)I0] ‘Saul] 19430
0 0 0 0 0 91 99, £111N09g W00I2IN0))
0 0 0 0 0 168°C% 3In0)) A190URY) - 99, A13uf Ble(
0 0 0 0 0 6E€°L §1500) SIBOLFO
JaN0,) ATeoUBY))
0 0 0 0 0 81S° §1500) SISO
39007 S[IUPATE
0 0 0 0 0 LL8°8% SJUSWISSOSSY 90UR)SISSY SWIPOTA
0 0 0 0 0 8%0°C 99,] £31aN09g WO0I3IN0))
0 0 0 0 0 986°L¥ 11IN0{) SUOISSOG [BIOUDY) - 99, A13ui] €Je(]
0 0 0 0 0 9LETT sour juewrieaL], IN(
0 0 0 0 0 9¢¢ 99, 10301dIagu]
0 $ 0 $ 0 $0 $ 0 $ 899%¥ $ so0 [rer

(‘JU0))) 7IN0)) SUOISSag [elousy)
(U0))) Sen[eusJ PUR 'SeaNJIoJI0,] ‘SoUul]

[ox3uo) asodang XBJ, uoryeIIues EERVNEN] [BIoULY)
Snaqg [ewedg asodang / 9188 M a[tuaAnp
[8207] P1os

spun,j enusAsy [eradg

(7u0)) SodAJ, pun,| [BIUSWIUIOAOY) [y
- SonuoAey po[IBId(] JO A[NPayos
99SSeUUe ], 'AJUNo0)) UOSIPBI

-3 MqUUXE

140



(penunjuop)

0 0 0 0 0 868 STENPIATPUT WO} PAIoA0dY sodeure(]
0 0 0 0 0 G808 £3aedoa jo ores
0 0 0 0 0 €L991 juewdinby Jo oreg
SWe}] SULLIMOSIUON
0 0 0 0 0 eev'e S}IpaI)) aanjpuedxyy
0 0 0 88T°LY 8GLY 967708 Spunjey] SNOdUE[[EISIIN
0 0 0 8G8°0T 0 0 S[BLIOTRI\ PO[PL90Y JO o[BS
0 0 0 0 0 G69°L QuI[os®BY) JO 9[eg
0 0 0 0 0 96T sorddng pue s[eLIa)JEIA JO 9[eS
0 0 0 0 0 %6S°0L S[euy/osea|
0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $ L06Y $ QW0DU] JUSWI}SOAUT

SW9)] SULLINDay

SoNUeAdY [B90] 19UI0

0 $ TI¥°9%¢ $ 0 $ 0 $ 09¢g $ 18Ee'90L $ SOOIAISG JULLIN) 10] S93aeY)) [BIO],
0 0 0 0 0 0L0°G 90, punoiSsorg [BUIWIL) L
0 117°93¢ 0 0 0 0 SHNPY - $99,] 991AI0G AJTUNWWO))
SoSTeT) uoneonpy
0 0 0 0 0 GL6°6 S[I[) A3Unoy) - 99,] Sursseooid Bie(
0 0 0 0 0 00T JJLIOYS - 99,] UOTJRIISIZOY IOPULSJJ() [BNXIS
0 0 0 0 0 69T°LT JJuIeyg - 99,] Sursseooid ere(q
0 0 0 0 0 00L‘T¢ 1938180y - 09,] Sursse001] BIB([
0 0 0 0 0 0 SUOTISSTWUWIO)) PUB S99,] ,SI90LJ() [BUOIINITISUO))
0 0 0 0 0 G61°8ET SUOI309[[0)) SUIYDBI SUIpue A
0 $ 0 $0 $0 $0 $ T113'8E% $ suorssTwrwo)) auoydo[a,
{7000 09
("710))) SOOTATOS JUALIN,) I0J SOSIBY,)
[o13u0) asodang XeJ, uorjEIIURg S9OIATOS [eIoULDY)
Snaqg [ewedg asodang / 9188 M a[tuaAnp
[8207] P1os

spun,j enusAsy [eradg

(7u0)) SodAJ, pun,| [BIUSWIUIOAOY) [y
- SonuoAey po[IBId(] JO A[NPayos
99SSeUUe ], 'AJUNo0)) UOSIPBI

-3 MqUUXE

141



(penunjuop)

0 LE1°€88°C 0 0 0 0 swe1dord juswgaeds(] Yieoy
STUBIL) oIBJ[O A\ PUE [3EOH
0 189°€9 0 0 0 0 sjuen o) Snaq
0 0 0 0 0 00%°€¥ SweIS0IJ SUTUTRL], JUSWSIIOJUY MBT
STUBIL) A10JBS O]
0 0 0 0 0 0SL°8 SJUBIY) JUOWIUIOAOL) [EIOUSL) IOU3I()
0 $0 $0 $ 61£°C6 0 $ 0 $ SjUBIY) 93SBA\ PIOS
SJUeIE) JUOWUIOAOL) [BI0URL)
39SSOUUB], JO OTEIS
0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 0 $ L60G¥E's  $ S[BIOF(O) A3UN0)) WOIj POATeddY Se9, [BI0],
0 0 0 0 0 91€°089°T oojsN],
0 0 0 0 0 669°GS JLIeys
0 0 0 0 0 £6€°89€ ISty
0 0 0 0 0 ¥18GLT IO }AN0)) S[IUSAN
0 0 0 0 0 6€6°LE9 I9SE\ pUR JI9[))
0 0 0 0 0 L3LGe6 S[AO[)) }IN0)) SUOISSAG [BIOUDY)
0 0 0 0 0 ¥GELES SO 3AN0)) FINIIL)
0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 0 $ ¢96°cg6 $ Jao[) Ayuno)
KTe[eg JO-NoT [-Ul S99,
S[EDHIO ATUNO)) WIOIJ PIATOIdY S09]
0 $ 0 $ 0 $§ 9¥0°8S 8GLF $ €65LIE $ senueAdy [BO0TT I93Q) T8I0,
0 $0 $0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 69¢ $ senueAdy [Bo0TT 1930
SoNUoAdY [800] OO
(7U0)) SoNUdAdY [€907] BOUI0
[0I3u0) asoding Xe], UOI}B}TUES SOOIAIOG [e1ouax)
Snaqg [ewedg asodang / 9188 M a[tuaAnp
[e207] PIOS

spun,j enusAsy [eradg

-3 MqUUXE

(7u0)) SodAJ, pun,| [BIUSWIUIOAOY) [y
- SonuoAey po[IBId(] JO A[NPayos
99SSeUUe ], 'AJUNo0)) UOSIPBI

142



(penunjuop)

0 $ G31°'c6 $ 0 $ 0 $ ¥96°GST $ 6857305 $ JUSWUISAOY) TBIOPSY T8I0,
0 0 0 0 0 007°33 oNULASY [BISPD,] 3901 IOYIQ)
0 0 0 0 0 0 a1eqaYy puog IIpai)) Xej,
SNUGAJY [EI0Pa J09II(]
0 G31°e6 0 0 ¥96°GCT GLE0L 93e1g YSNOIY) [BISPA] IOU3I0
0 0 0 0 0 ¥G8°13 SJUBLL) JUOWOOIOJU ME']
0 0 0 0 0 0 Jor[ey Iegsesi(q
0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 00088 $ JUOWOSINQUISY dSUJO(] [IAL)
37875 qONoq, [eX9po]
JUSUWUIOAOY) [BI0P]
0 $§ 810°G08°E $ 0 $ 61526 $ 00S¥ $ 8L0°T83'T $ 99SSOUUI, JO 93B}S [€10],
0 60€°018 0 0 00S% 687°GT senuaAey 93818 1930
0 0 0 0 0 €67°qg sjuBIY) 938315 1930
0 0 0 0 0 ¥91°G1 juowro[ddng Arereg s erystdoy
0 0 0 0 0 0 xg [, [e10odg Wna[o1ed
0 0 0 0 0 0 XgJ, [oN,] 10J0]\] PUB 9UI[OSBY)
0 0 0 0 0 STG'LYL SurpIeog I9UOSLL] POJORIFUO])
0 0 0 0 0 ITO'TT uoryelI0dSUuRL], IOUOSLIJ
0 0 0 0 0 869°9€1 xg [, 98e10A9g O[OYOITY
0 0 0 0 0 19€°8 XeJ, 109g
0 0 0 0 0 LOL6EG Xe[, 9wodu]|
SoNUSASY 07€3S OUI0
0 168°L¥ 0 0 0 0 wesdorg 19931
0 0 0 0 0 0 wrexdoiJ pry 91e1s
0 $ 0 $ 0 $0 $ 0 $ 0 $ weasoig oSpLig
STURID) SSOM ofqng
("TU0))) 9oSSouUo ], JO 93815
[013U0)) asodin g Xe], uoryejIueg SOOIAIOG [eIoUen)
Snaqg [ewedg asodang / 9188 M a[tuaAnp
8207 [SHES

spun,j enusAsy [eradg

(7u0)) SodAJ, pun,| [BIUSWIUIOAOY) [y
- SonuoAey po[IBId(] JO A[NPayos
99SSeUUe ], 'AJUNo0)) UOSIPBI

-3 MqUUXE

143



(penunjuop)

G60°ET $ 796°G09F  § €I8°906°T $ 6¥8°¢80°T $ 899G¥E'T $ 8L6CE0FE  $ relo,
0 $ oISt $ 0 $ 0 $ oIVl A sdnoay) SUSZII) PUE SIUSWUISAOY) IO [EI0,
0 0T#18T 0 0 0 037616 S901ATeg POIOBIIUO))
0 0 0 0 0 901°GE¢ suoNqLIIUO))
0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ TPOTHI $ 69g'0¥ $ pIeog IOUOSLIJ

STUAWUISA0Y) 19730
SANOIY) SUAZT]) PUB SJUSWUISA0Y) 1930

[ox3uo) asodang XBJ, uoryeIIues EERVNEN] [BIoULY)
Snaqg [ewedg asodang / 9188 M a[tuaAnp
[8207] P1os

spun,j enusAsy [eradg

(7u0)) SodAJ, pun,| [BIUSWIUIOAOY) [y
- SonuoAey po[IBId(] JO A[NPayos
99SSeUUe ], 'AJUNo0)) UOSIPBI

-3 MqUUXE

144



(penunjuop)

0 $ 0 $0 $ 0 $0 $ uorjesidey [BWIUY
SoSUPoT]

ST J pUB Sesuaol|

0 $ T18G6LI'T $ 09L°906°L $ 99L°616°T $ 0 $ SOXB[, [800] [B10],

0 0 0 0 0 XgJ, SUOTIBITUNUWITWO0I9[9 ], 918ISI9IU]
0 0 0 0 0 XeJ, 199¢ 9[BSO[OYM
0 G28°G e16°81 9vey 0 Xe [, 9STOXY] yueq

SoXB[, [800"] A10INTBIS
0 0 0 3e8T¥ 0 X€ ], 90UBIOADG [eIOUTIA
0 0 0 0 0 Xe [, JULI(] POXI
0 0 0 0 0 XeJ, ssoursng
0 0 0%0°8€1 0 0 9SNOYINOY) I0 ‘OSNOYIIOM ‘TIBf - X8 ], U0JBII]
0 0 0 0 0 asodan g Teradg - xeJ, uoryesnIy
0 0 0 0 0 [BI9ULY) - XE ], UOT}BSTIIT
0 0 0 0 0 XeJ, [910IA/[210H
0 0 0 0 0 xeJ, soreg uonyd(Q (820

Soxe[, uond() [8o07] Ajuno))
0 069°TT €72 8L L08'8T 0 1973 - SOXB, JO-NOI[-Ul SJUSWARJ
0 €06°1¢ 189°9%1 ¥¥5'ee 0 SOWI[I}() [BOOT] - SOXE], JO-NOI[-Ul SjUsWAe
0 61€°G 1€9°63 v1€L 0 £y[eURg PUE 3SOI0IUT
0 L00‘€E 1€6°091 £G6]‘eV 0 SIBO L JIOLLJ - SUOIIID[[0)) I2ISBIAl PUB {IS[)/ITNIIL))
0 vie'e 829°GT v1e¥ 0 Kogdnas[uey - SUOIJIR[O)) §,903SNL],
0 0LT°9€ 031681 G8G°LY 0 IBOX JIOLLJ - SUOTJIS[[0)) §,00)SN],
0 $ €66F790°T  $ PP96ZTL  $ TL9CILT $ O $ xe[, £&310dord jueriny)

sexe[, A310d0oIJ A3UNo))

SoxE[, [e00']
yreq syoeloag ERIVEER SYIO M EEEE
[ernsnpuy rende) qed oqnd - SI9HO
uewdoeAs( [e1ousy) [e1ousy) / KemMySTH Teuory
Ajrunwwo)) - M1ISU0)
spun,J syoelorg 1ejde) pung ("3u0))) spun,| enueAs) [eIoadg

9IIAIRS 199

(7u0)) SodAJ, pun,| [BIUSWIUIOAOY) [y
- SonuoAey po[IBId(] JO A[NPayos
99SSeUUe ], 'AJUNo0)) UOSIPBI

-3 MqUUXE

145



(penunjuop)

$99] 3an0)) Sni(g
sour [01U0)) NI
soul] USI pue aurey)
$150)) SI9IIJO
soul]
7IN0)) SUOISSag [BIoUoy)
SJUOWISSASSY 90UBISISSY SWIIIIA
99 £111N09g W00I2IN0))
14N0)) INDIL)) - 99 A1juy Ble(
sour juaunieal], INJd
So9 Tter
$99 3an0)) Sni(g
sour [01U0)) NI
$150)) SI9IIJO
Jurre))IT 10§ seur
$ SouLq
JIMO)) T
Selj[BUaJ PUB 'SoaN]IeJa0,] ‘Soul]

[=ReNoelole)
[=ReNelole)
[eReNelole)
[eReNelole)
[eReNoelole)

SO DO OO0 OO0
SO OO OO0 OO0
[eleooBeololeoNoReol =]
SO DO OO OO0
[eleoloBeolololeoReoR =]

0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ SHTWIoJ PUE SOSUSITT [BI0],

(=]
(=]
(=]
(=]
(=]

SISO IOYIQ

0 0 0 0 0 sjtuaed Surp[ing
sieg

0 0 0 0 0 astyouRI AL °1q8D

0 $ 0 $0 $ 0 $ 0 $ UOIJBUIIIE A [BWIUY

{7100 sosToOTT

(7U0))) SITWI8J PUR Sesuaol|

yreq syoeloag ERIVEER SYIO M EEEE
[ernsnpuy rende) qed oqnd - SI9HO

uewdoeAs( [e1ousy) [e1ousy) / KemMySTH Teuory
Ajrunwwo)) - M1ISU0)

spun,J syoelorg 1ejde) pung ("3u0))) spun,| enueAs) [eIoadg
901AI8G 199(]

(7u0)) SodAJ, pun,| [BIUSWIUIOAOY) [y
- SonuoAey po[IBId(] JO A[NPayos
99SSeUUe ], 'AJUNo0)) UOSIPBI

-3 MqUUXE

146



(penunjuop)

0 0 0 0 0 so99,] £dop
0 0 0 0 0 S99, UOIJBAIONY
0 0 0 0 0 S99,] MOTIAdY JoauLSUy
EEEX|
0 0 0 0 0 s931eY)) 991AIOG [BIOUDL) I19YI(0)
0 0 0 0 0 suotyo9[[0)) Jusureds( Yfeoy
0 $ 0 0 0 $ 0 $ sedxey) juenpe g
S958IBY)) 9JTAIeS [BIoUeY)
S90TAISG JUeIIN) I0J SeSIey))
0 $ 0 0 0 $ 0 $ SON[BUSJ PUR ‘S9INIISLIO, ‘SOUL] [810],
0 0 0 0 0 K)10dord pereosjuo)) WodJ Speadosg
SeT[eUusJ puB 'SednjIafio,] 'Seul] I8U3Q
0 0 0 0 0 99,] £31IN09G UW00.13IN0))
0 0 0 0 0 o)) A19ouey)) - 99, A1jug eye(
0 0 0 0 0 $180) SI9OTF(O)
FRGUIeWRERlit:life)
0 0 0 0 0 $1800) SI9OIFO)
JIM0)) O[TUAATE
0 0 0 0 0 SJUOWISSASSY 90UBISISSY SWIIIIA
0 0 0 0 0 99,] £31IN09G UW00.13IN0))
0 0 0 0 0 14N0)) SUOISSAG [BIDULY) - 99 A1jUry BIR(]
0 0 0 0 0 sour juauwryeadl], [Nd
0 0 0 0 0 99, J930adaajur
0 $ 0 0 0 $ 0 $ So9 Tter
('7U0))) 3IN0)) SUOISSag [BIoULY)
(7U0)) Sen[eUeJ pUB ‘SAINIIeJI0] ‘SouL]
yreq syoeloag ERIVEER SYIO M EEEE
[ernsnpuy rende) qed oqnd - SI9HO
uewdoeAs( [e1ousy) [e1ousy) / KemMySTH Teuory
Ajrunwwo)) - M1ISU0)
spun,J syoelorg 1ejde) pung ("3u0))) spun,| enueAs) [eIoadg

9IIAIRS 199

-3 MqUUXE

(7u0)) SodAJ, pun,| [BIUSWIUIOAOY) [y
- SonuoAey po[IBId(] JO A[NPayos
99SSeUUe ], 'AJUNo0)) UOSIPBI

147



(penunjuop)

0 0 0 0 0 STENPIATPU] WOIJ PaI8A0I8Y sodeure(]
0 0 0 0 0 £y1adoag jo aresg
0 0 0 0 0 juawdinbry Jo oTeg
ST9)] SULLINDSIUON
0 0 0 0 0 S3Ipad)) aanjrpuadxyy
0 0 0 0vLg 0 SpUNJoY SNOBUB[[SISIIA]
0 0 0 0 0 STRLIOYRTA PO[IL29Y JO 9[eS
0 0 0 0 0 aur[oser) Jo areg
0 0 0 63L°09 0 serjddng pue sTeLIeYRIN JO o[BS
¥09°G€ 0 0 0 0 STejudY /oSBT
0 $0 ey ey $0 $0 $ QW0DU] JUSWI}SOAUT
SW9)] SULLINDay
SoNUeAdY [B90] 19UI0
0 $ 0 0 $ 0 $ 09L3 $ S90IAIOG JUSLINY 10 SSIBYY) [BI0],
0 0 0 0 0 99,] punoidxoeq [eurwri) 1q[,
0 0 0 0 0 SINPY - S99,] 90IAI8G AJTUNWIWO))
Se3Ter)) uoneonpy
0 0 0 0 0 JI8[) A3Uno)) - 99,] Surssec0iJ ere(q
0 0 0 0 0 Jueyg - 99, uonreI)siSay] I9pusjj() [BNXSY
0 0 0 0 0 JJuIeyg - 99,] Sursseooid ere(q
0 0 0 0 0 I193s130Y - 99 Sulsseo0id BIB(
0 0 0 0 09L°g SUOTSSTWWO)) PUE S99 SI9ILF() [BUOIINITISUO))
0 0 0 0 0 SUOT199[[0)) SUTYORA SUTPUSA
0 $ 0 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ suorsstwwoy) euoyde[ag,
(7500) S99
("JU0))) S9OTATeG JTULLIN) 10] SoSIBY))
yred s100[01 901ATeg SYIOM EEERT
[ernsnpuy rende) qed oqnd - SI9HO
uewdoeAs( [e1ousy) [e1ousy) / KemMySTH Teuory
Ayrunurwio)) - NIYSU0)
spun,J syoelorg 1ejde) pung ("3u0))) spun,| enueAs) [eIoadg

9IIAIRS 199

-3 MqUUXE

(7u0)) SodAJ, pun,| [BIUSWIUIOAOY) [y
- SonuoAey po[IBId(] JO A[NPayos
99SSeUUe ], 'AJUNo0)) UOSIPBI

148



(penunjuop)

[eleololeooNeNel=)
[cleoloBeooReNel=)

[eleoloBeoNoNeNel=)

[eleololeoNoNeNel=
[eleololeooBeNel=)

#09°gS $ 0

$ ggyev $

697°€9 $ 0

0 $ 0

$ 0 $

S| A

0 $ 0

sweidor jueurpaedsq Yifeoy
SJURIY) oIBJ[9A\ PUB UI[BOH

SJuUBIY) [0IU0)) InA

SweIS0IJ SUTUTRL], JUSWSIIOJUY MBT
SJUeIY) A39J8S oIqng

SIUBIY) JUSWUIDAOY) [BISULY) I9Y1()

SJUBIL) 9ISBA PI[OS
SJURBIY) JUeWUIOAOY) [BIoUSY)

99SSeUuUa, JO 93815

STBIdJO £IUNO0)) WOLJ POAISIRY S99 [BI0],

99IsNa],
LIRS
I9)S130Y
JI8[) 1AN0Y) J[IUSAN[
I9ISBIN puB YI9[)
JI9[) 1AN0)) SUOISSOG [BIoUSL)
YI8[) 1AN0)) ITNOIL))
81D A3uno)

ATeTeq Jo-nar[-ul sea,

S[BTOJ AJUNO)) WOI] POATdaY Sa9,]

SeNU8A8Y [B20] I8Y3() [€10],
SeNU8AdY [8207 I8Y1Q
SoNUeAdY [8007] U0

A.QEOOV SONUIAIY [BO0T] JI9U31()

yred spoeloag

[eLsnpuy rende)

/uawdofass [BIoULY)
Aunwwo))

901ATeg

qed
[eIOULY)

SYIO M EEEE
oqnd - SI9HO

/ KemMySTH Teuory
- M1ISU0)

spun,J syoelorg 1ejde)

punyg
901ATeg 199(]

("3u0))) spun,| enueAs) [eIoadg

-3 MqUUXE

(7u0)) SodAJ, pun,| [BIUSWIUIOAOY) [y
- SonuoAey po[IBId(] JO A[NPayos
99SSeUUe ], 'AJUNo0)) UOSIPBI

149



(penunjuop)

$

£66°851

$ Gg9‘ev

o o
o oo

[N e}
[N e}

0
€66°831

[N e}

0
0

0

0

G39‘e¥
$ 0

o oo

[N e}

$ 616158 $

$ 968°187°¢

0
616195

[eleoloBeoNololoh=] =]
[eReoleololoNeNo)

o o
o oo

DO OO OO OO o oo

o o o

0

0

0

€36°0L
10973€°C
0

[N e}

0
€0T°L98
$ 69L81¢8

[eleoloBooNololeoh=] (=)

o oo

JUSWIULISAOY) [BISPA] [BIO],
anueAsYy [eIepa ] 39911 18Y1Q
a1eqaYy puog IIpai)) Xej,
aNUoASY [BIoPa ] 1991I(]
97e1g ySnoayy [ersps,] 8YI0
SIUBIY) JUSWSIIOJUY MBT
Jor[ey I9gsesig
JUSWASINUITEY JSUaJa(] [1AL)
3713 USNOAY], [B1opa
TUSWUISAOY) [BI9Pa]

99SS9UUA ], JO 91B1S [B10],
seNuUeAdY 91818 19Y10
sjuBIY) 93818 19Y10
Juewe(ddng Axe[eg s,ae1)s130Y
xg [, [e10odg Wna[o1ed
XgJ, [oN,] 10J0]\] PUB 9UI[OSBY)
Surpaeog JoUOSLIJ POIOBIJUO))
uoryeIodsueL ], IOUOSLIJ
Xg [, 988I0Adg OI[0Y0I[Y
XgJ, 109g
X®BJ, oW0oUu]
SenueAdy 97815 1910
WeIsoxJ 10191
weisorJ pry 91e1s
weisorJ o3plag
SJUBIY) SYIOM oIqng
(7U0))) eesseuUs, JO 97815

yred spoeloag

[eLsnpuy rende)

/uawdofass [BIoULY)
Aunwwo))

901ATeg

qed
[eIOULY)

SO\
orqng
/ Kemysty

S99,
- SI9HO
[euor}

- NYTISUO)

spun,J syoelorg 1ejde)

punyg
901ATeg 199(]

("3u0))) spun,| enueAs) [eIoadg

-3 MqUUXE

(7u0)) SodAJ, pun,| [BIUSWIUIOAOY) [y
- SonuoAey po[IBId(] JO A[NPayos
99SSeUUe ], 'AJUNo0)) UOSIPBI

150



(penunjuop)

¥09°z€ $ OPTTEYT $ 933'EL8'8 $ 992'80G°G $ 09.C $ &0,
0 $ 0 $ 680F6L $ 0 $ 0 $ sdnouay) sUeznI)) PUB SJUSWUIDAOL) 91 [BIO],
0 0 0 0 0 SOJIAIDG POIOBIIUO)
0 0 68076L 0 0 suonnqLyuoy
0 $ 0 $0 $ 0 $ 0 $ pIeod IouosLd
SJTUOWUIOAOY) 10710
SANOJIY) SUZNI)) PUB SJTUSWUISAOY) ToYI)
yreq syoeloag ERIVNET] SYIO M EEEE
[ernsnpuy rende) qed oqnd - SI9HO
uewdoeAs( [e1ousy) [e1ousy) / KemMySTH Teuory
Ajrunwwo)) - M1ISU0)
spun,J syoelorg 1ejde) pung ("3u0))) spun,| enueAs) [eIoadg

901ATeg 199(]

-3 MqUUXE

(7u0)) SodAJ, pun,| [BIUSWIUIOAOY) [y
- SonuoAey po[IBId(] JO A[NPayos
99SSeUUe ], 'AJUNo0)) UOSIPBI

151



(penunjuop)

18L%¥ $0 UOT)RIISISOY [RWTUY
SosTROTT
ST J pUB Sesuaol|
€0S6L78E  $ 0 SOXB], [e00] [B10],
991°¢ 0 XgJ, SUOTIBITUNUWITWO0I9[9 ], 918ISI9IU]
635°GLG 0 XeJ, 199¢ 9[BSO[OYM
L31°€8 0 Xe [, 9STOXY] yueq
SoXB(, [e00'] A10JNIeIS
ee8 vy 0 X€ ], 90UBIOADG [eIOUTIA
G866 0 Xe [, JULI(] POXI
SLETLST 0 Xe [, ssoursng
030°8€T 0 9STNOYIINOY) 10 DSNOYNIOA ‘[Tef - XeJ, U033
G%E10€ 0 esodang [ewadg - e[, Uo11eSHIT
918°G¥¢ 0 [BI9ULY) - XE ], UOT}BSTIIT
186°C6€ 0 XeJ, [910IA/[210H
GE8'9¢8 0 xeJ, soreg uonyd(Q (820
§oxeJ, uond() [8d0'] Ajuno))
L36°EVE 0 I9Y3() - SOXeJ, JO-nalr[-ul sjuswheJ
90 F¥9 0 SOTJI[13) [BOOT] - SOXRBJ, JO-NSI-UIL SJUSWARJ
0T¥G¥1 0 AjTeusd pue 1sagejuy
Y GIL 0 SIBO L JIOLLJ - SUOIIID[[0)) I2ISBIAl PUB {IS[)/ITNIIL))
L3078 0 Aoydnasyueq - SUONIIL[[0)) §,099SN],
108°8¢8 0 189X JIOLIJ - SUOIIID[[0)) §,09)SN],
%06°L8€1E€  $ O xe [, £110doid yuoriny)
Soxe], £319d01J AjUno))
Soxe, 600
1e10], spoeloag
rende)
AemysSty

(3uo))

puny sjosloxg
rende)

-3 MqUUXE

(7u0)) SodAJ, pun,| [BIUSWIUIOAOY) [y
- SonuoAey po[IBId(] JO A[NPayos
99SSeUUe ], 'AJUNo0)) UOSIPBI

152



(penunjuop)

699°G 0 $99,] 1ANn0)) Sniq
VL6ET 0 sour] [013u0)) Snia(y
€¢¢ 0 soul] USI pue aurey)
199981 0 $9500) SI9OFO
60329 0 seur|
7IN07) SUOISSog [BIoUar)
¥G6°L 0 SJUSWISSOSSY 9OUR)SISSY SWIPOTA
LYET 0 99] A11IN09g WO0I3IN0))
109°¢ 0 IN0Y) JINIILY) - 99, A13ur] eye(
860°¢ 0 sour jusuwryeal], [Nd
£88°G3 0 S99 [tef
68L°€ 0 $99,] 1aNn0)) Sniq
069 0 sour] [013U0)) SnIq
8TLLE 0 $3500) SI9OLJO
g 0 Jurre))IT 10§ seur
GGE'8G $0 $ sour]
00 T
Sen[eUeJ PUR ‘SodNJIoJI0,] ‘Soul]
3%9°'16€ $ 0 $ SHTUWLIdJ PUE SOSUIOIT [€30],
S1474 0 sytuIe J 1oY3Q
G06°€9 0 sjtuaed Surp[ing
ST g
636°GLE 0 astyouRI AL °1q8D
G9G°6 $ 0 $ UOIJBUIOOBA [BWIUY
{"700) SesTeIT]
(7U0))) SITWI8J PUR Sesuaol|
1e10], spoeloag
rende)
AemysSty
(o))
puny sjosloxg
rende)

(7u0)) SodAJ, pun,| [BIUSWIUIOAOY) [y
- SonuoAey po[IBId(] JO A[NPayos
99SSeUUe ], 'AJUNo0)) UOSIPBI

-3 MqUUXE

153



(penunjuop)

PLIT 0 590, £do))
3L8°29 0 S99, UOIJBAIONY
93€°G 0 S99,] MOTIAdY JoauLSUy
EEER]
91%'8 0 s931eY)) 991AIOG [BIOUDL) I19YI(0)
G61°¥81T 0 SU01309[[0)) JuswrIede(] YIBOH
867°¢ 0 sedaey) jusned
§o8TeT])) 0JIAI9g [elousy)
SOOTATSG JUALIN) I0J SosIey))
110°26S 0 SOI)[RUSJ PUB ‘SOINIIONION ‘SOUL [BI0],
099°T¥ 0 K110doag peIBoOSUO)) WOIJ SPEa0I]
SeTj[elsJ pUE 'SeINjIe)I0] ‘Saul] 19430
91 0 99, £111N09g W00I2IN0))
16863 0 1In0)) A180UBRy)) - 99, AUy Bre(
6E€°L 0 $9500) SI9OFO
[ eW SRl tEiie)
81S° 0 $9500) SI9OFO
JA00) S[TTEART
LL8°8% 0 SJUSUWISSASSY 90UBISISSY SWIIIIA
8%0°g 0 99,] £31IN09G UW00.13IN0))
986°L¥ 0 1IN0)) SUOISSAG [BISUDY) - 99,] A1pUr ee(]
9LETT 0 sour juauwryeadl], [Nd
9¢¢ 0 99, J930adaajur
899°%¥ 0 S99 [tef
(‘JU0))) 7IN0)) SUOISSag [elousy)
(U0))) Sen[eusJ PUR 'SeaNJIoJI0,] ‘SoUul]
1e10], spoeloag
rende)
AemysSty

(3uo))

puny sjosloxg
rende)

-3 MqUUXE

(7u0)) SodAJ, pun,| [BIUSWIUIOAOY) [y
- SonuoAey po[IBId(] JO A[NPayos
99SSeUUe ], 'AJUNo0)) UOSIPBI

154



(penunjuop)

868 0 STENPIATPU] WOIJ PaI8A0I8Y sodeure(]
¢30°8 0 £y1adoag jo aresg
€L991 0 juawdinbry Jo oTeg
SWo3] SULLINJOIUON
eeve 0 S3Ipad)) aanjrpuadxyy
¥8¥°69% 30g°01 SpUNJoy SNOdUE[[AISTIA
8G8°0T 0 STRLIOYRTA PO[IL29Y JO 9[eS
G69°L 0 aur[oser) Jo areg
G88°09 0 sorddng pue s[eLIa)JEIA JO 9[eS
961°€0T 0 STejudY /oSBT
0€€‘8y 0 QWIOOUT JUSUIISOAU]
SWe3] SULLInooy
SonuoAdy [B20'] OO
GLO'9EG T 0 S90IAIOG JUSLINY 10 SSIBYY) [BI0],
0.0 0 99,] punoidxoeq [eurwri) 1q[,
117°93¢ 0 SINPY - S99, 99TATSG AJTUNWWO))
SoSTeT) uoneonpy
GL6°6 0 yao[) A3uno)) - 99, Surssed01] BIB([
00T% 0 JJLIayQ - 99, UONIRIISISSY IopULj() [BNXSg
69T°LT 0 JJuIeyg - 99,] Sursseooid ere(q
00L°TE 0 10381307 - 09,1 SuIssedoid ee(]
09L°g 0 SUOISSTWIWIO)) PUB $89,] SI90IJJ() [BUOIINITISUO))
GRI‘8ET 0 SUOI300[[0)) SUIYORY SUIPUSA
113°8€3 0 suotsstwrwioy) auoydora,
{7000 09
("710))) SOOTATOS JUALIN,) I0J SOSIBY,)
1e10], spoeloag
rende)
AemysSty

(3uo))

puny sjosloxg
rende)

-3 MqUUXE

(7u0)) SodAJ, pun,| [BIUSWIUIOAOY) [y
- SonuoAey po[IBId(] JO A[NPayos
99SSeUUe ], 'AJUNo0)) UOSIPBI

155



(penunjuop)

LET'E88°C 0 surexdoa yuawyreda( Yi[eo
SJURIY) aIBJ[o \\ PUE UI[BoH]
189°¢€9 0 SjuRIY) [013U0)) SN
00%°€¥ 0 swret301J SUTUTRL], JUSUWISIIOJUY MBT]
STURIn) Aj9]eg ofqng
0GL'8 0 SIURIY) JUSWUISAOY) [BISULL) 1830
61£°C6 $0 SjUBIY) 93SBA\ PIOS
STURIY) JUSWIUISAOY) [BIoUal)
35580TTa ], JO 91815
L60°g¥ES $ 0 S[eIOLF() AIUNO)) WOIj POATOISY S99 (810,
91€°089°T 0 999snI],
665°GS 0 JLIeys
€65°89¢ 0 J03s130Y
¥18GLT 0 SIOT)) 3AN0)) S[IULAN
6€6°LE9 0 J9ISBIN pUB I9[)
L3LGE6 0 JI9[) 1AN0)) SUOISSOG [BIoUSL)
¥GELES 0 SIS 3AN0)) 3MNOIL))
GG6°CS6 $ 0 S[I0[) Ayuno))
KTefeg Jo-nar-Ul o9,
S[BTOJ AJUNO)) WOI] POATdaY Sa9,]
G68°65¢ $ B0E0T SONUAY €20 930 [BI0],
69¢€ $ 0 SONUIAIY [€I0T I3
SoNUeAdY [8007] U0
(7U0))) SeNULASY [B90] 19UI0
1e10], spoeloag
rende)
AemysSty

(3uo))

puny sjosloxg
rende)

-3 MqUUXE

(7u0)) SodAJ, pun,| [BIUSWIUIOAOY) [y
- SonuoAey po[IBId(] JO A[NPayos
99SSeUUe ], 'AJUNo0)) UOSIPBI

156



(penunjuop)

961739 0 JUSWIUIDAOL) [RISPA,] [€30],
007°33 0 ANULAJY [BISPA,] }99IL([ I19YIQ
€G66°851 0 9718qaYy puog 11pai)) XBJ,
SNUAASY [eXoPay J99II(]
¥9€61€ 0 o318 YSnoays [eIepey 0YsQ0
79813 0 SIUBIY) JUSUWISIIOFUY MEBT
G39'eh 0 Jor[ey Iegsesi(q
000°88 0 JUWASINQUIY dSUJ(] [IAL)
3713 USNOAY], [B1opa
JTUOWUIOAOL) [6XOPa]
0€2°916°8 0 99SS9UUA ], JO 91B1S [B10],
865°0€8 0 SONUAY 938IS 190
31¥°L0E 0 sjueIr) 93838 19YI0
¥91°GT 0 Juewe(ddng Axe[eg s,ae1)s130Y
£36°0L 0 xg [, [e10odg Wna[o1ed
109%3€C 0 Xg(, [on,] 1030\ PUE QUI[OSEY)
SIELVL 0 Surpaeog JoUOSLIJ POIOBIJUO))
110°TT 0 uorjelrodsuel], IOUOSTIJ
869°9€1 0 Xg [, 93eterag JI[0Y0O[y
1¢€8 0 XeJ, 199g
LOL'6EG 0 X®BJ, oW0oUu]
SonuoAoy 97€3S IO
168°LV 0 weaSorg 1033
€01°L98 0 wrexdoiJ pry 91e1s
69L°818 0 wexdord o3prag
SJUeID) SII0M oTqNg
("710))) 9055oUUR ], JO 91€IS
1e10], spoeloag
rende)
AemysSty

(3uo))

puny sjosloxg
rende)

-3 MqUUXE

(7u0)) SodAJ, pun,| [BIUSWIUIOAOY) [y
- SonuoAey po[IBId(] JO A[NPayos
99SSeUUe ], 'AJUNo0)) UOSIPBI

157



TG9°EVL 8¢S G0g°01 $ e,
§30°3€9°C 0 $ sdnois) SUeZIII)) PUB SJUSWUISA0Y) J9YI() T8I0,
0€8°00T°T 0 SOOIAIOG PIIORIIUO))
G6I6VET 0 suoNqLIIUO))
000381 0 $ pIeog I0UOSLIJ
STUAWUISA0Y) ToU3(0)
§ANOJIY) STAZNIT)) PUE SJUSWUISAOL) JOU3()
1e10], spoeloag
rende)
AemysSty
(o)

puny sjosloxg
rende)

-3 MqUUXE

(7u0)) SodAJ, pun,| [BIUSWIUIOAOY) [y
- SonuoAey po[IBId(] JO A[NPayos
99SSeUUe ], 'AJUNo0)) UOSIPBI

158



(penunjuop)

¥8€°6 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ ¥8€'6 $ S}IWI9J PUB SOSUAITT (B30,
€LG°G 0 0 0 €LG°G SYTWIdJ I3
ST
1189 $ 0 $0 $ 0 1189 $ SOSUOI| 98 BLLIE]\
EEEER G
ST J pUB Sesuaol|
681°CI9°LY $ 989°908'T  $ 0 $ 0 €99°L08'¢Yy  § SOXE [, [820T] [€30,
9LL6 0 0 0 9LL’6 XEJ, SUOT}EOTUNWWO009[d ], 938IS193U[
G0E°LE %027 0 0 €01°€3 xg, 9S1OXY Yueg
SoXB], [e00'] A10JNTeIS
GLECIT 0 0 0 8LECIT X8, UL POXIA
G31°98L°GE 0 0 0 G31°98L°GE xeJ, soreg uonyd(Q (80T
§oxeJ, uond() [8d0'] Ajuno))
78L‘8¢e¢ €6E°LT 0 0 68¢°13¢ 193 - SOXBJ, JO-naI -Ul sjuswWAeJ
€0LTTG 9L63€ 0 0 L3T6LT SOTI[TY() [BOOT] - SAXB, JO-NST-UT SJUsWAB
6€S°T 0 0 0 6€S°T “V'A'L - SOXBJ, JO-NOT]-UI SUSWARJ
898°0¢ eLETT 0 0 96G°6€ Ajeus pue jseaejuy
0¥<‘92¢ $08°1L 0 0 9¢L%9% SIe9 X JI0LLJ - SUOTIO9[[0)) I9)SBIA] PUB JIO[))/3INOIL))
#8618 L16°9 0 0 L9978 Aoydnas[uey - SUOTIVL[[0)) S,091SNA],
L99°C¥¢ ¥PeLL 0 0 €31°69% IB9 X IOLIJ - SUOTIIL[[0)) §,091SNA],
866°03€°0T  $ 826°C8S'T $0 $ 0 000°LEL‘8 $ xe [, £&319doad Jus iy
Soxe], A319d01J AjUno))
Soxe, [800]
[e10], s100(01 ] BLIS)OJR)) s100(01 ] [ooyog
[ende) [eT3UR) [eIepa g asoding
uoryeonpy [ooyog [BI8URL)

puny sjoeloxg
rende)

spun,j enueasy [eradg

93 MqUUxg

¥10g 0€ dunf pspuy e X o3 104

TUewW}Ieda(] [00YJS AJUNO0)) UOSIPB]N PoIUasal] A[030I0SI(]
SodA ], pun,] [BJUSWUISA0Y) [V

- SonuoAey po[IBId(] JO A[NPayos

99SSeUUe ], 'AJUNo0)) UOSIPBI

159



(penunjuop)

¥¥ve0g 0 $ 61S6 $ 0 $ G36°€65 $ SaNUIASY [0 I8YIQ) [10],
005°¢8T 0 000°L 0 00S°9LT SYLD pue suonnqLIuon
<9 0 0 0 <9 STeNPIATPU] WOIJ PaI8A0d8Y sodeuwre(]
LOL'GY 0 0 0 LOL'GY juewrdnby jo ares
€073 0 0 0 €073 SJUOWIISIAU] UO UTRY)
SWo3] SULLINJOIUON
[48¢ 0 0 0 V1¢ $7Ipar)) aanjIpuadxy
1L9°03 0 0 0 1L9°03 spunjey] SNOdUB[[EISIIN
¥86°9% 0 0 0 ¥86°9% Surpun,] oyey-q
0st 0 0 0 0st STeIudY /oSBT
615G 0 $ 615 $ 0 $ 0 $ QWI0OU] JUSWISIAU]
SWe3] SULLInooy
SonuoAdy [B207] OO
886°0LE°T 0 $ LIG'€96 $ 0 $ TLV'LOV $ S901ATg JULIN,) 10} S8SIBY)) [810],
G¥8°e 0 0 0 S¥8°‘e SOOIAISG 10J $93IBY)) I0YI(0
§9OTATOg 0] Se8Ieq) IOUI(0)
€GEeTT 0 €GEeTT 0 0 soTeg 931ed B[
PIGTI 0 PIGTT 0 0 JSEJ3[eaIy WIOJ OUWOIU]
87°9G1T 0 82V 9G1 0 0 s)npy - syuowdeq younry
635589 0 G%3589 0 0 ULIP[IYY - syuswded yountg
9L3°50¥ 0 0 0 9L3°50¥ I9T3Q - uonmJ,
0Ge‘T 0 $0 $ 0 $ 09eT $ [00Y0g JewWWNg - UOTIIN],
SoSTeT) uoneonpy
SOOTATOS JUALIN,) I0J SOSIBYL)
810, s300l01g BLIOIOJE)) s300l01g 100728
reyde) [enua) [eIopaq asodang
uoTIRINPYH 100798 [BIOULY)

puny sjoeloxg
rende)

spun,j enueasy [eradg

93 MqUUxg

("7u0)) JustmIeds(] [00U0g AJUN0)) UOSIPBIA PoIUesal] A[931910SI(]

SodA ], pun,] [BJUSWUISA0Y) [V
- SonuoAey po[IBId(] JO A[NPayos
99SSeUUe ], 'AJUNo0)) UOSIPBI

160



(penunjuop)

026°659°€ 0 0 026°659°E 0 $9781g 01 sHULLY) - UOIBONDPY [eradg
06L°GOT‘F 0 0 06L°GOT‘¥ 0 seTOUeSY U0IIRONDY [BI0T] 03 SIURLL) T O[],
£G6C‘G9% 0 0 €CC‘G9% 0 $97B]G 07 SJURILY) JISBY - UOIIBONPH [BUOIJBIOA
8G0'7S6 0 8G0'7S8 0 0 BYO - VASN
31£88¢°a 0 31£8¢¢°e 0 0 isepyearq
LEVTIC 0 LEVTTG 0 0 SOIPOWWOY) - V(IS
987'c0ey  $ 0 $ 98¥'c0ET  $ 0 0 $ wreado1J youn [00ydos vASN
97e1S qONOIq], [B19Pa]
JTUOWUIOAOL) [6XOPa]
0L7°96€67 _ $ 0 $ BSI'8L $ 0 $ 8IE'8IE'6Y  § 99SSAUUI, JO 93e§ [B10],
ev6°'eey 0 0 0 ev6°'eey SONUAY 938IS 190
9GL‘€q1 0 0 0 9GL‘€q1 sjuBIY) 938315 1930
€6T1°98T‘T 0 0 0 €6T1°98T‘T VAL - Sunieyg enusaey 93e1s
SonuoAoy 97e3S IO
0L0°G 0 0 0 0L0°G [BUOT}BI0A I03Q
030°68 0 0 0 03068 10BIIUO)) POPUIXY - I9PPer] I9a1e))
056697 0 0 0 056697 weado1J 1opper] 1001e))
868°¢43 0 0 0 898°6C3 Spun,j UOIyEINpY 938l 19730
Ge1'8L 0 ee1'8L 0 0 9OIATI9G POO,] [00YOS
¥09°G€8°T 0 0 0 Y0963 T uoneonpgy pooyprry) Ajrey
%00°98L V¥ 0 0 0 %00°98L V¥ wrex3old UOTyeonpy dlseq
Spun,[ uorIEoNpy 9381
G36°98L $ 0 $0 $ 0 GB6°9EL $ dHJO 0] suonNqLIIuo)) JIeyeq-uQ
STUeIL) JUoWULIOAO) [e1ouor)
55580TTa], JO 91815
810, s300l01g BLIOIOJE)) s300l01g 100728
reyde) [enua) [eIopaq asodang
uoTIRINPYH 100798 [BIOULY)

puny sjoeloxg
rende)

spun,j enueasy [eradg

93 MqUUxg

("7u0)) JustmIeds(] [00U0g AJUN0)) UOSIPBIA PoIUesal] A[931910SI(]
SodA ], pun,] [BJUSWUISA0Y) [V

- SonuoAey po[IBId(] JO A[NPayos

99SSeUUe ], 'AJUNo0)) UOSIPBI

161



TCP'88F'8TT § 9€9°G08‘T $ 18%°'8L9°8 $ 8919896 $ 991°81€'86  $ 110,

00S29€% __$ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 00SG95T___§ SANoIY) SUSZI) PUB STUSWUISAOY) IYIQ) [BIO],

000703 0 0 0 000703 110
B0

00S°2¥EE  $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 005G¥ET  $ SUOTNqLYUOY)

STUAWUISA0Y) 19730
SANOIY) SUAZT]) PUB SJUSWUISA0Y) 1930

9LVGEVLT  $ 0 $ €65°L39°L $ 891°989°6 $ GI06II $ JUSWULIBAO) TBIOPSY T8I0 ],

ST 0 0 ST uswesInquitey ) L.0Y
SNUoASY [BIoPa, 1991I(]

o

9€€°6€1 0 0 9€€°6€1 0 978318 YSnoIys [eaepa, 10730
ereILL 0 0 ereILL 0 VYV - dog-et3-03-00e
91€'8LS 0 0 91€°8LG 0 sjuRIY) 9381 JUsWdO[OAS(] [BUOISSAJOL T9MOYUSSTH
38071 0 0 2e0v1 0 YINOX PUE USIP[IY() SSO[OWO 0] UOTJBINPH
LEI6L 0 0 LEI6L 0 SURLY) 03B1G - S[00YOS 921}-SNI(] PUE oFes
L¥G0G 0 0 L¥S‘0¢ 0 sjuely) uonismboy oSensuer] ysiSuy
¥69°0€ $ 0 $0 $ ¥69°0€ $0 $ SsjpuRLy) [00YISaI UojEINpPY [eadg
(7U0))) 97219 YONO0AY ], [B10po,]
(7U0))) TURWUISAOL) [10Do]
€101, s300[01g BLIOYOJE) sy00l01g [0oyog
reyde) [exyua) [exopa,q asodang
uotyeonpy [ooyog [eIoURY)
pun,] s309f01J Spun,] onuaAey [eradg

restde)

("7u0)) JustmIeds(] [00U0g AJUN0)) UOSIPBIA PoIUesal] A[931910SI(]
SodA ], pun,] [BJUSWUISA0Y) [V

- SonuoAey po[IBId(] JO A[NPayos

99SSeUUe ], 'AJUNo0)) UOSIPBI

93 MqUUxg

162



Exhibit K-7

Madison County, Tennessee

Schedule of Detailed Expenditures -
All Governmental Fund Types

For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

General Fund
General Government

County Commission
Secretary to Board
Board and Committee Members Fees
Social Security
Handling Charges and Administrative Costs
State Retirement
Employee and Dependent Insurance
Life Insurance
Travel
Office Supplies

Total County Commission

County Mayor/Executive
County Official/Administrative Officer
Educational Incentive - Other County Employees
Other Salaries and Wages
Social Security
Handling Charges and Administrative Costs
State Retirement
Employee and Dependent Insurance
Life Insurance
Communication
Data Processing Services
Travel
Office Supplies
Other Supplies and Materials
Other Charges
Total County Mayor/Executive

Personnel Office
Supervisor/Director
Educational Incentive - Other County Employees
Other Salaries and Wages
Social Security
Handling Charges and Administrative Costs
State Retirement
Employee and Dependent Insurance
Life Insurance
Communication
Contracts with Private Agencies
Data Processing Services
Dues and Memberships
Travel
Other Contracted Services
Office Supplies
Total Personnel Office

163

$ 36,881
93,600

9,882

1,100

5,292

3,768

50

108

895

$ 104,489
3,000
41,209
10,773
1,927
20,908
6,864
274
1,657
407
5,689
1,775
3,237
22,000

$ 74,069
4,875

44,599

8,549

3,855

17,029

13,728

238

1,593

112
492
697
25,443
1,249

$

151,576

224,209

196,580
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Exhibit K-7

Madison County, Tennessee
Schedule of Detailed Expenditures -
All Governmental Fund Types (Cont.)

General Fund (Cont.)
General Government (Cont.)
County Attorney
Other Contracted Services
Total County Attorney

Election Commission
County Official/Administrative Officer
Deputy(ies)
Election Commission
Election Workers
Social Security
Handling Charges and Administrative Costs
State Retirement
Employee and Dependent Insurance
Life Insurance
Communication
Operating Lease Payments
Legal Notices, Recording, and Court Costs
Maintenance and Repair Services - Equipment
Postal Charges
Printing, Stationery, and Forms
Rentals
Travel
Data Processing Supplies
Office Supplies
Data Processing Equipment
Total Election Commission

Register of Deeds
County Official/Administrative Officer

Deputy(ies)
Educational Incentive - Official/Admin Officer
Educational Incentive - Other County Employees
Social Security
Handling Charges and Administrative Costs
State Retirement
Employee and Dependent Insurance
Life Insurance
Travel
Data Processing Supplies
Office Supplies
Total Register of Deeds

Codes Compliance
Other Salaries and Wages
Social Security
Handling Charges and Administrative Costs
State Retirement
Employee and Dependent Insurance

164

90,000

76,752
80,204
6,800
44,701
12,966
5,782
18,855
20,592
299
4,717
37,500
5,620
35,092
1,893
4,325
310
2,955
606
3,708
1,540

76,752
148,200
1,751
4,800
16,816
6,010
24,699
21,234
432
200
36,723
13,211

36,072
2,440
1,927
5,176
6,864

$

90,000

365,217

350,828
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Exhibit K-7

Madison County, Tennessee
Schedule of Detailed Expenditures -
All Governmental Fund Types (Cont.)

General Fund (Cont.)
General Government (Cont.)
Codes Compliance (Cont.)

Life Insurance $ 70
Communication 1,671
Contracts with Private Agencies 44,127
Maintenance and Repair Services - Vehicles 1,213
Other Contracted Services 3,371
Gasoline 2,076
Office Supplies 295
Total Codes Compliance $ 105,302
County Buildings
Supervisor/Director $ 47,074
Custodial Personnel 27,031
Part-time Personnel 2,234
Overtime Pay 2,271
Social Security 5,674
Handling Charges and Administrative Costs 3,027
State Retirement 10,960
Employee and Dependent Insurance 10,632
Life Insurance 125
Communication 818
Maintenance and Repair Services - Buildings 45,495
Maintenance and Repair Services - Vehicles 1,106
Other Contracted Services 30,000
Custodial Supplies 18,410
Gasoline 2,783
Utilities 752
Building Improvements 13,991
Heating and Air Conditioning Equipment 50,494
Total County Buildings 272,777
Other Facilities
Custodial Personnel $ 37,080
Communication 30,193
Maintenance and Repair Services - Buildings 92,234
Pest Control 3,670
Custodial Supplies 1,971
Utilities 290,193
Total Other Facilities 455,341

Preservation of Records

County Official/Administrative Officer $ 10,546
Assistant(s) 19,907
Social Security 2,330
Maintenance and Repair Services - Office Equipment 1,505
Travel 3,151
Office Supplies 2,661
Utilities 8,821
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Madison County, Tennessee
Schedule of Detailed Expenditures -
All Governmental Fund Types (Cont.)

General Fund (Cont.)
General Government (Cont.)
Preservation of Records (Cont.)
Other Supplies and Materials
Data Processing Equipment
Total Preservation of Records

Risk Management
Supervisor/Director

Social Security
Handling Charges and Administrative Costs
State Retirement
Employee and Dependent Insurance
Life Insurance
Communication
Travel
Office Supplies
Total Risk Management

Finance

Accounting and Budgeting
Supervisor/Director
Educational Incentive - Other County Employees
Other Salaries and Wages
Board and Committee Members Fees
Social Security
Handling Charges and Administrative Costs
State Retirement
Employee and Dependent Insurance
Life Insurance
Audit Services
Communication
Data Processing Services
Travel
Office Supplies
Utilities
Office Equipment

Total Accounting and Budgeting

Property Assessor's Office
County Official/Administrative Officer
Deputy(ies)
Educational Incentive - Official/Admin Officer
Educational Incentive - Other County Employees
Board and Committee Members Fees
In-service Training
Social Security
Handling Charges and Administrative Costs
State Retirement
Employee and Dependent Insurance

166

$ 5,679
1,023

$ 16,000
1,106

1,100

2,296

2,084

56

204

627

1,376

$ 87,106
18,375
559,231
2,000
46,961
22,065
92,750
77,550
1,239
35,238
7,014
23,513
6,757
11,971
14,422
141

$ 76,752
409,645

1,755

1,125

3,240

1,554

34,661

16,838

69,798

62,701

$

55,623

24,849

1,006,333
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Exhibit K-7

Madison County, Tennessee
Schedule of Detailed Expenditures -
All Governmental Fund Types (Cont.)

General Fund (Cont.)
Finance (Cont.)

Property Assessor's Office (Cont.)
Life Insurance
Audit Services
Communication
Data Processing Services
Dues and Memberships
Maintenance and Repair Services - Vehicles
Travel
Office Supplies

Total Property Assessor's Office

Reappraisal Program
Other Salaries and Wages
Social Security
Handling Charges and Administrative Costs
State Retirement
Employee and Dependent Insurance
Life Insurance
Data Processing Services
Maintenance and Repair Services - Vehicles
Postal Charges
Gasoline
Office Supplies
Total Reappraisal Program

County Trustee's Office
County Official/Administrative Officer
Deputy(ies)
Part-time Personnel
Educational Incentive - Official/Admin Officer
Educational Incentive - Other County Employees
In-service Training
Social Security
Handling Charges and Administrative Costs
State Retirement
Employee and Dependent Insurance
Life Insurance
Communication
Data Processing Services
Dues and Memberships
Printing, Stationery, and Forms
Travel
Office Supplies
Total County Trustee's Office

County Clerk's Office
County Official/Administrative Officer
Deputy(ies)

167

898
65,445
2,462
25,568
2,275
1,447
3,548
9,138

93,912
6,174
6,010

13,476

17,496

228

11,179
2,665

17,174
7,570
5,144

76,752
137,649
13,357
1,865
4,500
149
16,764
5,662
30,767
20,982
460
1,241
12,799
575
9,989
2,348
3,998

76,752
336,248

$

788,850

181,028

339,857
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Exhibit K-7

Madison County, Tennessee
Schedule of Detailed Expenditures -
All Governmental Fund Types (Cont.)

General Fund (Cont.)

Finance (Cont.)
County Clerk's Office (Cont.)

Part-time Personnel $ 21,540
Educational Incentive - Official/Admin Officer 1,751
Social Security 30,536
Handling Charges and Administrative Costs 16,449
State Retirement 53,463
Employee and Dependent Insurance 55,758
Life Insurance 851
Audit Services 5,056
Communication 720
Dues and Memberships 200
Maintenance Agreements 2,400
Maintenance and Repair Services - Office Equipment 14,535
Travel 819
Data Processing Supplies 1,258
Office Supplies 12,612
Building Improvements 2,949
Data Processing Equipment 4,666
Total County Clerk's Office $ 638,563
Data Processing
Social Security $ 1,721
State Retirement 1,399
Life Insurance 7
Communication 2,991
Contracts with Private Agencies 770
Data Processing Services 10,179
Travel 3,654
Other Contracted Services 22,500
Office Supplies 931
Motor Vehicles 1,500
Total Data Processing 45,652

Administration of Justice
Circuit Court

County Official/Administrative Officer $ 84,427
Deputy(ies) 665,648
Part-time Personnel 5,481
Educational Incentive - Official/Admin Officer 1,755
Educational Incentive - Other County Employees 6,750
Jury and Witness Expense 53,084
Social Security 53,980
Handling Charges and Administrative Costs 26,629
State Retirement 104,660
Employee and Dependent Insurance 92,890
Life Insurance 1,449
Data Processing Services 19,016
Operating Lease Payments 10,758
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Madison County, Tennessee
Schedule of Detailed Expenditures -
All Governmental Fund Types (Cont.)

General Fund (Cont.)

Administration of Justice (Cont.)
Circuit Court (Cont.)

Travel $ 3,096
Data Processing Supplies 452
Duplicating Supplies 1,513
Office Supplies 19,975
Other Supplies and Materials 1,787
Data Processing Equipment 34,173
Furniture and Fixtures 2,990
Total Circuit Court $ 1,190,513

General Sessions Court

Judge(s) $ 156,292
Other Salaries and Wages 86,986
Social Security 15,584
Handling Charges and Administrative Costs 3,855
State Retirement 34,910
Employee and Dependent Insurance 13,728
Life Insurance 457
Travel 1,407
Office Supplies 7,186
Total General Sessions Court 320,405
Drug Court
Social Security $ 50
State Retirement 94
Other Charges 7,343
Total Drug Court 7,487
Chancery Court
County Official/Administrative Officer $ 84,427
Deputy(ies) 311,004
Part-time Personnel 64,850
Educational Incentive - Official/Admin Officer 1,795
Educational Incentive - Other County Employees 3,000
Jury and Witness Expense 410
Social Security 33,052
Handling Charges and Administrative Costs 13,740
State Retirement 56,744
Employee and Dependent Insurance 45,624
Life Insurance 774
Communication 4,531
Maintenance and Repair Services - Office Equipment 13,220
Travel 4,082
Other Contracted Services 13,330
Data Processing Supplies 37,755
Office Supplies 29,256
Other Charges 1,386
Total Chancery Court 718,980
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Madison County, Tennessee
Schedule of Detailed Expenditures -
All Governmental Fund Types (Cont.)

General Fund (Cont.)
Administration of Justice (Cont.)

Juvenile Court

Judge(s) $ 156,292
Part-time Personnel 6,389
Other Salaries and Wages 81,323
Social Security 16,509
Handling Charges and Administrative Costs 1,927
State Retirement 29,266
Employee and Dependent Insurance 7,105
Life Insurance 449
Data Processing Services 3,000
Dues and Memberships 1,000
Janitorial Services 164
Maintenance and Repair Services - Buildings 7,128
Maintenance and Repair Services - Equipment 1,467
Rentals 2,299
Travel 2,424
Other Contracted Services 5,900
Custodial Supplies 1,500
Office Supplies 3,186
Periodicals 644
Utilities 22,022
Building Improvements 619
Communication Equipment 100
Data Processing Equipment 2,865
Heating and Air Conditioning Equipment 2,000
Total Juvenile Court $ 355,578

District Attorney General

Assistant(s) $ 76,809

Social Security 5,626

Handling Charges and Administrative Costs 1,927

State Retirement 11,022

Employee and Dependent Insurance 6,864

Life Insurance 139

Other Supplies and Materials 7,500
Total District Attorney General 109,887
Office of Public Defender

Salary Supplements $ 68,275

Social Security 4,948

Handling Charges and Administrative Costs 1,882

State Retirement 9,798

Employee and Dependent Insurance 6,576

Life Insurance 119

Travel 183
Total Office of Public Defender 91,781
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Madison County, Tennessee
Schedule of Detailed Expenditures -
All Governmental Fund Types (Cont.)

General Fund (Cont.)
Administration of Justice (Cont.)
Other Administration of Justice
Other Charges $ 69,892
Total Other Administration of Justice $ 69,892

Public Safety
Sheriff's Department

County Official/Administrative Officer $ 66,414
Deputy(ies) 3,409,932
Part-time Personnel 59,228
Educational Incentive - Other County Employees 6,000
Overtime Pay 125,129
Other Salaries and Wages 21,854
Jury and Witness Expense 215
In-service Training 48,200
Social Security 263,344
Handling Charges and Administrative Costs 119,643
State Retirement 461,176
Employee and Dependent Insurance 401,241
Life Insurance 7,128
Communication 121,948
Contracts with Private Agencies 15,381
Data Processing Services 31,203
Dues and Memberships 403
Maintenance and Repair Services - Buildings 9,626
Maintenance and Repair Services - Vehicles 194,156
Pest Control 480
Rentals 9,980
Travel 29,810
Custodial Supplies 2,011
Gasoline 262,471
Law Enforcement Supplies 24,606
Office Supplies 19,818
Uniforms 40,978
Utilities 37,204
Refunds 394
Other Charges 1,472
Law Enforcement Equipment 6,166
Motor Vehicles 50,947
Total Sheriff's Department 5,848,558
Special Patrols
Deputy(ies) $ 538,286
Overtime Pay 70,743
Other Salaries and Wages 28,132
Social Security 43,861
Handling Charges and Administrative Costs 13,259
State Retirement 87,396
Employee and Dependent Insurance 62,224
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Madison County, Tennessee
Schedule of Detailed Expenditures -
All Governmental Fund Types (Cont.)

General Fund (Cont.)
Public Safety (Cont.)
Special Patrols (Cont.)

Life Insurance $ 741
Maintenance and Repair Services - Vehicles 10,775
Gasoline 23,974
Uniforms 5,250
Total Special Patrols $ 884,641
Jail
Deputy(ies) $ 4,194,127
Maintenance Personnel 105,096
Part-time Personnel 11,325
Overtime Pay 105,575
In-service Training 54,000
Social Security 318,596
Handling Charges and Administrative Costs 148,814
State Retirement 462,240
Employee and Dependent Insurance 502,831
Life Insurance 7,900
Unemployment Compensation 2,338
Communication 4,953
Data Processing Services 9,384
Maintenance and Repair Services - Equipment 1,498
Medical and Dental Services 30,000
Other Contracted Services 17,500
Custodial Supplies 40,620
Drugs and Medical Supplies 254,478
Food Preparation Supplies 13,495
Food Supplies 509,420
Law Enforcement Supplies 96,098
Office Supplies 22,5691
Prisoners Clothing 13,051
Uniforms 32,547
Other Supplies and Materials 24,859
Total Jail 6,983,336
Workhouse
County Official/Administrative Officer $ 11,408
Guards 1,107,573
Overtime Pay 39,797
In-service Training 15,600
Social Security 85,397
Handling Charges and Administrative Costs 35,5653
State Retirement 147,368
Employee and Dependent Insurance 125,145
Life Insurance 2,009
Unemployment Compensation 1,100
Communication 6,815
Data Processing Services 2,252
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Madison County, Tennessee
Schedule of Detailed Expenditures -
All Governmental Fund Types (Cont.)

General Fund (Cont.)

Public Safety (Cont.)

Workhouse (Cont.)
Maintenance and Repair Services - Buildings $ 29,574
Maintenance and Repair Services - Equipment 3,674
Maintenance and Repair Services - Vehicles 3,835
Pest Control 840
Custodial Supplies 7,653
Drugs and Medical Supplies 11,931
Food Preparation Supplies 3,312
Food Supplies 116,222
Gasoline 7,086
Law Enforcement Supplies 3,564
Office Supplies 3,902
Prisoners Clothing 2,884
Uniforms 6,447
Utilities 57,115
Other Supplies and Materials 9,402

Total Workhouse $ 1,847,358

Juvenile Services
County Official/Administrative Officer $ 76,752
Deputy(ies) 67,593
Accountants/Bookkeepers 47,5630
Clerical Personnel 56,311
Part-time Personnel 16,571
Social Security 18,959
Handling Charges and Administrative Costs 7,934
State Retirement 35,615
Employee and Dependent Insurance 27,821
Life Insurance 471
Data Processing Services 579
Maintenance and Repair Services - Equipment 243
Printing, Stationery, and Forms 748
Rentals 7,504
Other Contracted Services 17,350
Data Processing Supplies 904
Office Supplies 3,602

Total Juvenile Services 386,487

Fire Prevention and Control

Supervisor/Director $ 66,142
Mechanic(s) 86,734
Part-time Personnel 47,278
Other Salaries and Wages 114,081
In-service Training 9,962
Social Security 22,361
Handling Charges and Administrative Costs 10,231
State Retirement 30,958
Employee and Dependent Insurance 37,460
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Madison County, Tennessee
Schedule of Detailed Expenditures -
All Governmental Fund Types (Cont.)

General Fund (Cont.)
Public Safety (Cont.)
Fire Prevention and Control (Cont.)

Life Insurance $ 486
Communication 21,189
Maintenance and Repair Services - Equipment 52,983
Travel 1,815
Equipment and Machinery Parts 108,557
Gasoline 38,573
Utilities 68,148
Gravel and Chert 2,500
Other Charges 6,500
Total Fire Prevention and Control $ 725,958

Civil Defense

Supervisor/Director $ 66,142
Part-time Personnel 1,490
Overtime Pay 2,899
Other Salaries and Wages 106,949
Social Security 12,469
Handling Charges and Administrative Costs 6,997
State Retirement 17,268
Employee and Dependent Insurance 23,373
Life Insurance 314
Communication 24,761
Dues and Memberships 898
Maintenance Agreements 2,646
Maintenance and Repair Services - Buildings 6,521
Maintenance and Repair Services - Equipment 12,542
Maintenance and Repair Services - Vehicles 6,602
Printing, Stationery, and Forms 197
Travel 1,487
Gasoline 7,791
Office Supplies 1,000
Utilities 24,249
Other Supplies and Materials 16,042
Building Improvements 933
Total Civil Defense 343,570
Inspection and Regulation
County Official/Administrative Officer $ 43,970
Educational Incentive - Other County Employees 750
Other Salaries and Wages 30,659
In-service Training 1,186
Social Security 5,318
Handling Charges and Administrative Costs 3,027
State Retirement 10,709
Employee and Dependent Insurance 10,632
Life Insurance 152
Communication 549
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Madison County, Tennessee
Schedule of Detailed Expenditures -
All Governmental Fund Types (Cont.)

General Fund (Cont.)
Public Safety (Cont.)
Inspection and Regulation (Cont.)

Dues and Memberships $ 125
Maintenance and Repair Services - Vehicles 3,165
Other Contracted Services 159
Gasoline 2,597
Office Supplies 1,333
Total Inspection and Regulation $ 114,331

County Coroner/Medical Examiner

Supervisor/Director $ 15,425

Social Security 785

State Retirement 1,417

Employee and Dependent Insurance 124

Contracts with Government Agencies 45,240

Contracts with Public Carriers 6,905

Travel 920

Other Contracted Services 46,825
Total County Coroner/Medical Examiner 117,641
Other Public Safety

Other Salaries and Wages $ 12,932

Social Security 894

State Retirement 1,856

Employee and Dependent Insurance 1,684
Total Other Public Safety 17,366

Public Health and Welfare
Local Health Center

County Official/Administrative Officer $ 214,581
Paraprofessionals 23,220
Part-time Personnel 34,794
Other Salaries and Wages 800,569
Social Security 72,506
Handling Charges and Administrative Costs 20,339
State Retirement 135,070
Employee and Dependent Insurance 71,591
Life Insurance 1,752
Unemployment Compensation 5,417
Communication 18,530
Dues and Memberships 792
Janitorial Services 22,429
Maintenance Agreements 7,693
Maintenance and Repair Services - Buildings 29,047
Maintenance and Repair Services - Vehicles 7,768
Postal Charges 3,375
Printing, Stationery, and Forms 3,185
Travel 10,899
Drugs and Medical Supplies 95,716

(Continued)

175



Exhibit K-7

Madison County, Tennessee
Schedule of Detailed Expenditures -
All Governmental Fund Types (Cont.)

General Fund (Cont.)
Public Health and Welfare (Cont.)
Local Health Center (Cont.)

Gasoline $ 10,342
Office Supplies 17,734
Utilities 30,966
Other Supplies and Materials 667
Judgments 10,831
Liability Insurance 6,908
Data Processing Equipment 4,172
Office Equipment 2,456
Total Local Health Center $ 1,663,249
Rabies and Animal Control
Overtime Pay $ 11,377
Other Salaries and Wages 81,752
Social Security 6,461
Handling Charges and Administrative Costs 4,794
State Retirement 13,364
Employee and Dependent Insurance 15,780
Life Insurance 171
Communication 3,901
Maintenance Agreements 112
Maintenance and Repair Services - Buildings 11,957
Maintenance and Repair Services - Vehicles 3,614
Pest Control 500
Printing, Stationery, and Forms 543
Veterinary Services 7,028
Animal Food and Supplies 2,964
Drugs and Medical Supplies 1,801
Gasoline 9,535
Office Supplies 700
Uniforms 3,485
Utilities 5,659
Refunds 3,209
Total Rabies and Animal Control 188,707

Other Local Welfare Services
Contributions $ 17,630
Total Other Local Welfare Services 17,630

Social, Cultural, and Recreational Services

Libraries
Handling Charges and Administrative Costs $ 91
State Retirement 121,608
Other Fringe Benefits 8,385
Contributions 1,106,636
Travel 9,714
Library Books/Media 2,025
Office Equipment 1,326
Total Libraries 1,249,785
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All Governmental Fund Types (Cont.)

General Fund (Cont.)
Social, Cultural, and Recreational Services (Cont.)
Parks and Fair Boards

Supervisor/Director $ 59,232
Part-time Personnel 13,112
Overtime Pay 6,470
Other Salaries and Wages 438,620
Social Security 36,259
Handling Charges and Administrative Costs 22,096
State Retirement 57,305
Employee and Dependent Insurance 78,681
Life Insurance 966
Communication 11,434
Legal Notices, Recording, and Court Costs 78
Maintenance and Repair Services - Equipment 142,682
Travel 3,960
Remittance of Revenue Collected 2,515
Gasoline 38,113
Office Supplies 3,172
Utilities 73,393
Other Supplies and Materials 337
Other Charges 8,004
Total Parks and Fair Boards $ 996,429
Other Social, Cultural, and Recreational
Other Salaries and Wages $ 15,225
Social Security 742
Other Supplies and Materials 48,466
Total Other Social, Cultural, and Recreational 64,433

Agriculture and Natural Resources
Agricultural Extension Service

Part-time Personnel $ 45,408
Other Salaries and Wages 106,182
Social Security 3,549
Other Fringe Benefits 18,659
Communication 850
Contributions 3,300
Travel 2,542
Office Supplies 10,016
In Service/Staff Development 4,971
Total Agricultural Extension Service 195,477

Soil Conservation

Other Salaries and Wages $ 77,763
Social Security 5,661
Handling Charges and Administrative Costs 1,927
State Retirement 11,159
Employee and Dependent Insurance 6,864
Life Insurance 153
Travel 2,153
Total Soil Conservation 105,580
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All Governmental Fund Types (Cont.)

General Fund (Cont.)
Agriculture and Natural Resources (Cont.)
Flood Control
Contributions
Total Flood Control

Other Operations
Industrial Development
Contributions
Total Industrial Development

Airport
State Retirement
Employee and Dependent Insurance
Other Fringe Benefits
Contributions
Liability Insurance

Total Airport

Veterans' Services
Part-time Personnel
Social Security
Communication
Data Processing Services
Travel
Office Supplies
Other Supplies and Materials
Building Improvements

Total Veterans' Services

Other Charges
Handling Charges and Administrative Costs
Disability Insurance
Medical and Dental Services
Excess Risk Insurance
Medical Claims
Total Other Charges

Contributions to Other Agencies
Contributions
Total Contributions to Other Agencies

Miscellaneous
Board and Committee Members Fees
Other Fringe Benefits
Communication
Consultants
Contracts with Government Agencies
Contracts with Other Public Agencies
Data Processing Services

Exhibit K-7
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$

70,000

72,000

30,979
43,851
14,838
196,120
17,500

26,708
2,043
1,270
1,869
1,350

530
458
1,089

20,223
39,564
245,173
14,199
175,200

197,333

3,080
4,744
121,393
2,587
24,000
3,684
7,915

$

70,000

72,000

303,288

35,317

494,359

197,333
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Schedule of Detailed Expenditures -
All Governmental Fund Types (Cont.)

General Fund (Cont.)
Other Operations (Cont.)

Miscellaneous (Cont.)

Dues and Memberships $ 16,316
Evaluation and Testing 2,614
Legal Services 45,987
Legal Notices, Recording, and Court Costs 20,678
Postal Charges 141,988
Remittance of Revenue Collected 74,043
Disposal Fees 11,783
Utilities 162,098
Excess Risk Insurance 20,688
Liability Insurance 432,585
Premiums on Corporate Surety Bonds 277
Refunds 100
Trustee's Commission 455,964
Fines, Assessments, and Penalties 112,423
Other Charges 76,545
Total Miscellaneous $ 1,741,492
Total General Fund $ 32,821,433

Juvenile Services Fund

Public Safety
Juvenile Services

County Official/Administrative Officer $ 61,965
Supervisor/Director 122,240
Accountants/Bookkeepers 40,794
Social Workers 287,088
Paraprofessionals 67,879
Guards 212,637
Clerical Personnel 105,747
Educational Incentive - Other County Employees 375
Overtime Pay 25,5688
Social Security 65,012
Handling Charges and Administrative Costs 35,720
State Retirement 105,560
Employee and Dependent Insurance 127,709
Life Insurance 1,569
Disability Insurance 1,794
Communication 17,022
Data Processing Services 11,919
Maintenance and Repair Services - Buildings 24,913
Maintenance and Repair Services - Equipment 8,862
Maintenance and Repair Services - Vehicles 1,534
Medical and Dental Services 14,725
Printing, Stationery, and Forms 1,155
Travel 11,659
Other Contracted Services 57,415
Custodial Supplies 3,655
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Juvenile Services Fund (Cont.)
Public Safety (Cont.)
Juvenile Services (Cont.)

Data Processing Supplies $ 57
Food Supplies 16,175
Gasoline 3,621
Instructional Supplies and Materials 358
Office Supplies 1,450
Prisoners Clothing 266
Uniforms 810
Utilities 36,849
Other Supplies and Materials 1,137
Excess Risk Insurance 951
Liability Insurance 17,885
Medical Claims 14,880
Trustee's Commission 18,065
Data Processing Equipment 6,876
Office Equipment 5,271
Other Equipment 525
Total Juvenile Services $ 1,539,712
Total Juvenile Services Fund $ 1,539,712

Solid Waste/Sanitation Fund
Public Health and Welfare
Convenience Centers

Truck Drivers $ 56,789
Part-time Personnel 281,186
Social Security 25,792
Handling Charges and Administrative Costs 665
State Retirement 8,149
Employee and Dependent Insurance 5,318
Life Insurance 155
Other Fringe Benefits 6,003
Communication 7,754
Operating Lease Payments 9,912
Maintenance and Repair Services - Buildings 1,034
Maintenance and Repair Services - Equipment 31,105
Maintenance and Repair Services - Vehicles 45,497
Travel 2,157
Gasoline 33,813
Uniforms 3,696
Utilities 13,760
Other Supplies and Materials 4,087
Trustee's Commission 18,002
Other Charges 19,859
Solid Waste Equipment 26,311
Total Convenience Centers $ 601,044
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Solid Waste/Sanitation Fund (Cont.)
Public Health and Welfare (Cont.)
Landfill Operation and Maintenance

Contracts with Government Agencies $ 283,713
Other Contracted Services 170,721
Total Landfill Operation and Maintenance $ 454,434
Total Solid Waste/Sanitation Fund $ 1,055,478

Local Purpose Tax Fund
Other Operations

Miscellaneous
Contributions $ 1,325,000
Trustee's Commission 18,735
Total Miscellaneous $ 1,343,735
Total Local Purpose Tax Fund 1,343,735

Special Purpose Fund

Public Safety
Correctional Incentive Program Improvements

Probation Officer(s) $ 229,505
Social Security 16,567
Handling Charges and Administrative Costs 8,288
State Retirement 20,210
Employee and Dependent Insurance 20,092
Life Insurance 285
Communication 22,593
Evaluation and Testing 43,433
Rentals 31,773
Travel 22,763
Office Supplies 12,144
Utilities 2,856
Motor Vehicles 39,028
Other Equipment 4,031
Total Correctional Incentive Program Improvements $ 473,568

Work Release Program

Other Salaries and Wages $ 448,239
Social Security 32,908
Handling Charges and Administrative Costs 7,452
State Retirement 43,336
Employee and Dependent Insurance 38,530
Life Insurance 844
Communication 11,445
Maintenance and Repair Services - Buildings 27,113
Maintenance and Repair Services - Vehicles 47,345
Rentals 68,253
Travel 11,385
Office Supplies 22,294
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Special Purpose Fund (Cont.)
Public Safety (Cont.)
Work Release Program (Cont.)

Utilities $ 12,877

Other Equipment 4,500
Total Work Release Program $ 776,521
Other Emergency Management

Instructional Supplies and Materials $ 12,776

Other Supplies and Materials 4,132

Communication Equipment 8,456

Health Equipment 74,058
Total Other Emergency Management 99,422

Public Safety Grants Programs

Other Salaries and Wages $ 48,186
Social Security 3,666
Handling Charges and Administrative Costs 87
Employee and Dependent Insurance 288
Life Insurance 71
Communication 2,245
Rentals 11,000
Travel 1,636
Utilities 1,463
Total Public Safety Grants Programs 68,642

Public Health and Welfare
Maternal and Child Health Services

Part-time Personnel $ 82,551
Other Salaries and Wages 1,436,963
Social Security 108,725
Handling Charges and Administrative Costs 46,830
State Retirement 179,646
Employee and Dependent Insurance 154,120
Life Insurance 2,857
Unemployment Compensation 5,838
Advertising 35,813
Bank Charges 8,374
Communication 49,915
Maintenance Agreements 14,572
Postal Charges 3,961
Printing, Stationery, and Forms 9,965
Travel 33,676
Remittance of Revenue Collected 23,442
Drugs and Medical Supplies 61,784
Office Supplies 337,440
Utilities 43,335
Other Supplies and Materials 92,666
Liability Insurance 2,869
Other Charges 2,671
Total Maternal and Child Health Services 2,738,013
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Special Purpose Fund (Cont.)
Public Health and Welfare (Cont.)

Sanitation Education/Information
Other Salaries and Wages
Social Security
Unemployment Compensation
Gasoline
Other Supplies and Materials

Total Sanitation Education/Information

Other Operations
Miscellaneous

Other Salaries and Wages
Social Security
Handling Charges and Administrative Costs
Employee and Dependent Insurance
Life Insurance
Trustee's Commission
Other Charges
Total Miscellaneous

Total Special Purpose Fund

Drug Control Fund
Public Safety

Drug Enforcement
Other Contracted Services

Office Supplies
Trustee's Commission
Total Drug Enforcement

Total Drug Control Fund

Constitutional Officers - Fees Fund
Administration of Justice
Chancery Court
Constitutional Officers' Operating Expenses
Total Chancery Court

Total Constitutional Officers - Fees Fund

Highway/Public Works Fund
Highways
Administration
County Official/Administrative Officer
Clerical Personnel
Custodial Personnel
Educational Incentive - Other County Employees
Social Security
State Retirement

183

25,000
1,912
210
7,246
18,860

154,685
11,212
4,128
5,208
284
5,265
253

2,680
700
124

2,760

114,757
61,942
4,200
3,000
13,270
23,441

$

$

$

53,228

181,035

3,504

2,760

$

4,390,429

3,504

2,760
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Highway/Public Works Fund (Cont.)

Highways (Cont.)
Administration (Cont.)

Employee and Dependent Insurance $ 26,534
Data Processing Services 256
Dues and Memberships 4,795
Maintenance and Repair Services - Buildings 2,259
Maintenance and Repair Services - Office Equipment 557
Postal Charges 186
Printing, Stationery, and Forms 813
Travel 1,201
Data Processing Supplies 2,856
Office Supplies 3,068
Other Charges 1,499
Total Administration $ 264,634

Highway and Bridge Maintenance

Materials Supervisor $ 80,811
Foremen 216,630
Equipment Operators 408,297
Truck Drivers 114,535
Laborers 38,252
Social Security 62,456
State Retirement 105,867
Employee and Dependent Insurance 197,238
Other Contracted Services 12,329
Asphalt - Cold Mix 36,120
Asphalt - Hot Mix 9,118
Asphalt - Liquid 401,833
Concrete 296
Crushed Stone 263,786
Riprap 29,330
Pipe 22,788
Pipe - Metal 7,222
Road Signs 21,322
Small Tools 2,732
Uniforms 2,021
Wood Products 2,859
Gravel and Chert 88,468
Chemicals 99,648
Other Supplies and Materials 2,558
Total Highway and Bridge Maintenance 2,226,516
Operation and Maintenance of Equipment
Mechanic(s) $ 67,395
Social Security 4,769
State Retirement 9,671
Employee and Dependent Insurance 31,935
Laundry Service 1,445
Maintenance and Repair Services - Equipment 17,599
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Highway/Public Works Fund (Cont.)

Highways (Cont.)
Operation and Maintenance of Equipment (Cont.)

Diesel Fuel $ 94,068
Equipment and Machinery Parts 87,481
Garage Supplies 3,413
Gasoline 52,908
Lubricants 4,415
Small Tools 574
Tires and Tubes 26,925
Other Supplies and Materials 7,006
In Service/Staff Development 600
Total Operation and Maintenance of Equipment $ 410,204

Other Charges

Communication $ 14,173

Contracts with Private Agencies 470

Natural Gas 19,711

Liability Insurance 84,013

Trustee's Commission 60,433
Total Other Charges 178,800
Employee Benefits

Handling Charges and Administrative Costs $ 17,104

Employee and Dependent Insurance 28,493

Disability Insurance 1,983

Medical and Dental Services 50,000

Excess Risk Insurance 6,447

Medical Claims 44,537
Total Employee Benefits 148,564
Capital Outlay

Engineering Services $ 40,008

Asphalt - Hot Mix 1,186,314

Asphalt - Liquid 16,024

Crushed Stone 6,862

Riprap 21,301

Vehicle Parts 8,146

Gravel and Chert 18,100

Bridge Construction 218,769

Building Improvements 12,660

Highway Equipment 224,000
Total Capital Outlay 1,752,184

Total Highway/Public Works Fund $ 4,980,902

General Debt Service Fund
Principal on Debt
General Government
Principal on Bonds $ 7,655,000
Total General Government $ 7,655,000
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General Debt Service Fund (Cont.)
Interest on Debt
General Government
Interest on Bonds
Total General Government

Other Debt Service
General Government
Trustee's Commission
Underwriter's Discount
Other Debt Issuance Charges
Other Debt Service
Total General Government

Capital Projects
Education Capital Projects
Contributions
Total Education Capital Projects

Total General Debt Service Fund

General Capital Projects Fund
General Government
Election Commission
Data Processing Equipment
Total Election Commission

County Buildings
Building Improvements

Disabilities Act Improvements
Total County Buildings

Finance
Accounting and Budgeting
Data Processing Equipment
Total Accounting and Budgeting

County Trustee's Office
Building Improvements
Data Processing Equipment

Total County Trustee's Office

Data Processing
Data Processing Equipment
Total Data Processing

Administration of Justice

Chancery Court
Building Improvements

Total Chancery Court

186

2,442,129

150,224
40,290
83,261

1,950

1,017,500

3,453

21,500
6,669

71,683

816
1,384

5,385

1,048

$

2,442,129

275,725

1,017,500

3,453

28,169

71,683

2,200

5,385

1,048

$

11,390,354
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General Capital Projects Fund (Cont.)
Administration of Justice (Cont.)

Juvenile Court

Data Processing Equipment $

Total Juvenile Court

Public Safety
Sheriff's Department

Maintenance and Repair Services - Buildings $

Communication Equipment
Motor Vehicles
Total Sheriff's Department

Juvenile Services

Building Improvements $

Furniture and Fixtures
Total Juvenile Services

Fire Prevention and Control

Motor Vehicles $

Other Capital Outlay
Total Fire Prevention and Control

Civil Defense

Communication Equipment $

Total Civil Defense

Public Health and Welfare
Local Health Center

Maintenance and Repair Services - Buildings $

Total Local Health Center

Rabies and Animal Control

Building Construction $

Total Rabies and Animal Control

Convenience Centers

Solid Waste Equipment $

Total Convenience Centers

Social, Cultural, and Recreational Services
Libraries

Contributions $

Total Libraries

Parks and Fair Boards

Building Improvements $

Site Development
Total Parks and Fair Boards

187

42,060

153,500
12,579
212,857

6,000
4,062

264,831
25,108

7,262

27,806

3,200

37,454

43,435

20,803
563,502

$

42,060

378,936

10,062

289,939

7,262

217,806

3,200

37,454

43,435

584,305
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General Capital Projects Fund (Cont.)
Agriculture and Natural Resources
Agricultural Extension Service
Building Improvements
Total Agricultural Extension Service

Other Operations
Airport
Airport Improvement
Total Airport

Miscellaneous
Trustee's Commission
Total Miscellaneous

Total General Capital Projects Fund

Community Development/Industrial Park Fund
Other Operations
Industrial Development
Contributions
Trustee's Commission
Total Industrial Development

Total Community Development/Industrial Park Fund

Total Governmental Funds - Primary Government

Exhibit K-7
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8,700

36,071

22,744

75,000
326

8,700

36,071

22,744

75,326

$

$

1,603,912

75,326

59,207,545
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General Purpose School Fund
Instruction
Regular Instruction Program
Teachers
Career Ladder Program
Career Ladder Extended Contracts
Homebound Teachers
Educational Assistants
Speech Pathologist
Bonus Payments
Certified Substitute Teachers
Social Security
State Retirement
Life Insurance
Medical Insurance
Dental Insurance
Local Retirement
Other Fringe Benefits
Other Contracted Services
Instructional Supplies and Materials
Textbooks
Other Supplies and Materials
Other Charges
Regular Instruction Equipment
Total Regular Instruction Program

Special Education Program
Teachers
Career Ladder Program
Homebound Teachers
Educational Assistants
Speech Pathologist
Bonus Payments
Certified Substitute Teachers
Social Security
State Retirement
Life Insurance
Medical Insurance
Dental Insurance
Local Retirement
Contracts with Private Agencies
Other Contracted Services
Instructional Supplies and Materials
Other Supplies and Materials
Special Education Equipment
Total Special Education Program

Vocational Education Program
Teachers

189

$

32,851,039
255,328
69,664
104,938
1,039,261
16,565
153,025
578,625
2,507,980
3,323,850
73,941
3,734,335
130,596
6,134
648,180
177,884
825,823
11,000
44,719
10,967
502,561

5,683,495
61,750
67,391

597,544
520,152
31,330
72,942
476,770
596,154
12,607
670,928
27,710
2,466
364,910
187,471
34,867
20,307
19,915

2,204,935

$

47,066,415

9,348,709
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Discretely Presented Madison County School Department (Cont.)

General Purpose School Fund (Cont.)
Instruction (Cont.)

Vocational Education Program (Cont.)
Career Ladder Program
Bonus Payments
Other Salaries and Wages
Certified Substitute Teachers
Social Security
State Retirement
Life Insurance
Medical Insurance
Dental Insurance
Other Contracted Services
Instructional Supplies and Materials
Textbooks
Vocational Instruction Equipment

Total Vocational Education Program

Other

Supervisor/Director

Bonus Payments

Social Security

State Retirement

Life Insurance

Dental Insurance

Travel

Other Contracted Services

Office Supplies

Other Supplies and Materials

In Service/Staff Development
Total Other

Support Services
Attendance

Supervisor/Director

Bonus Payments

Other Salaries and Wages

Social Security

State Retirement

Life Insurance

Medical Insurance

Dental Insurance

Local Retirement

Travel

Other Contracted Services

Other Supplies and Materials

In Service/Staff Development
Total Attendance

190

15,500
10,350
298,200
36,505
183,122
225,320
4,641
199,978
8,287
6,350
88,342
14,463
25,829

67,199
200
5,128
5,985
131
294
1,264
2,206
1,821
71,715
430

123,531
750
63,085
13,229
17,939
356
16,137
227
1,839
1,835
16,167
1,794
8,765

$

3,321,822

156,373

265,654
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General Purpose School Fund (Cont.)
Support Services (Cont.)
Health Services

Medical Personnel $ 337,189
Bonus Payments 1,950
Social Security 21,907
State Retirement 22,650
Life Insurance 641
Medical Insurance 74,746
Dental Insurance 2,676
Local Retirement 7,077
Travel 8,711
Other Contracted Services 10,188
Other Supplies and Materials 13,920
In Service/Staff Development 2,868
Total Health Services $ 504,523

Other Student Support

Career Ladder Program $ 16,500
Guidance Personnel 2,016,007
Psychological Personnel 360,982
Social Workers 43,042
Clerical Personnel 30,280
Bonus Payments 9,650
Other Salaries and Wages 21,621
Social Security 175,007
State Retirement 221,218
Life Insurance 4,687
Medical Insurance 226,841
Dental Insurance 8,086
Contracts with Government Agencies 234,327
Travel 13,914
Other Contracted Services 100,632
Other Supplies and Materials 82,400
Total Other Student Support 3,565,094
Regular Instruction Program
Supervisor/Director $ 269,210
Career Ladder Program 40,100
Librarians 1,206,564
Clerical Personnel 95,012
Bonus Payments 6,200
Other Salaries and Wages 127,874
Social Security 123,491
State Retirement 155,674
Life Insurance 3,045
Medical Insurance 150,024
Dental Insurance 6,207
Local Retirement 1,473
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General Purpose School Fund (Cont.)
Support Services (Cont.)
Regular Instruction Program (Cont.)

Travel $ 40,253
Other Contracted Services 23,752
Instructional Supplies and Materials 28,832
Library Books/Media 80,150
Office Supplies 5,452
Other Supplies and Materials 6,736
In Service/Staff Development 28,162
Other Charges 4,358
Total Regular Instruction Program $ 2,402,569

Special Education Program

Supervisor/Director $ 156,453
Career Ladder Program 3,000
Clerical Personnel 30,280
Bonus Payments 1,050
Other Salaries and Wages 135,108
Social Security 22,788
State Retirement 34,766
Life Insurance 608
Medical Insurance 33,323
Dental Insurance 994
Maintenance and Repair Services - Equipment 1,935
Travel 36,261
Other Supplies and Materials 39,684
In Service/Staff Development 16,940
Total Special Education Program 513,190
Vocational Education Program
Supervisor/Director $ 67,199
Bonus Payments 200
Social Security 5,062
State Retirement 5,985
Life Insurance 130
Maintenance and Repair Services - Equipment 759
Travel 1,751
Other Supplies and Materials 17
Other Charges 70
Total Vocational Education Program 81,173

Other Programs

Supervisor/Director $ 68,234
Teachers 75,638
Educational Assistants 29,231
Bonus Payments 1,025
Other Salaries and Wages 246,696
In-service Training 14,725
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General Purpose School Fund (Cont.)
Support Services (Cont.)
Other Programs (Cont.)

Social Security $ 31,499
State Retirement 44,528
Life Insurance 244
Medical Insurance 3,997
Dental Insurance 591
Local Retirement 284
On-behalf Payments to OPEB 736,922
Communication 2,094
Postal Charges 214
Printing, Stationery, and Forms 4,732
Travel 5,994
Other Contracted Services 28,493
Instructional Supplies and Materials 238
Other Supplies and Materials 69,971
In Service/Staff Development 14,971
Other Charges 5,458
Maintenance Equipment 21,789
Transportation Equipment 3,100
Total Other Programs $ 1,410,668
Board of Education
Secretary to Board $ 4,800
Board and Committee Members Fees 28,200
Social Security 2,500
State Retirement 517
Unemployment Compensation 118,933
Local Retirement 84
Audit Services 50,715
Contributions 50,876
Dues and Memberships 12,336
Legal Services 52,560
Other Contracted Services 1,120
Premiums on Corporate Surety Bonds 175
Trustee's Commission 709,568
Workers' Compensation Insurance 800,873
In Service/Staff Development 22,974
Other Charges 14,350
Total Board of Education 1,870,581

Director of Schools

County Official/Administrative Officer $ 150,000
Secretary(ies) 119,828
Bonus Payments 800
Other Salaries and Wages 50,384
Social Security 23,446
State Retirement 26,496
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General Purpose School Fund (Cont.)
Support Services (Cont.)
Director of Schools (Cont.)

Life Insurance $ 535
Medical Insurance 28,082
Dental Insurance 1,111
Local Retirement 4,831
Other Fringe Benefits 8,400
Advertising 4,731
Communication 298,950
Dues and Memberships 6,389
Operating Lease Payments 64,003
Maintenance and Repair Services - Equipment 18,178
Postal Charges 14,390
Travel 5,761
Office Supplies 4,780
Other Supplies and Materials 3,627
In Service/Staff Development 3,650
Other Charges 10,057
Total Director of Schools $ 848,429

Office of the Principal

Principals $ 2,144,279
Career Ladder Program 35,120
Assistant Principals 1,164,937
Secretary(ies) 1,238,361
Bonus Payments 21,000
Other Salaries and Wages 377,393
Social Security 355,486
State Retirement 488,061
Life Insurance 9,297
Medical Insurance 401,977
Dental Insurance 17,251
Local Retirement 2,953
Travel 15,243
Other Supplies and Materials 110,146
Other Charges 11,182
Total Office of the Principal 6,392,686
Fiscal Services
Supervisor/Director $ 79,896
Accountants/Bookkeepers 90,646
Secretary(ies) 35,845
Bonus Payments 650
Social Security 15,161
State Retirement 22,823
Life Insurance 366
Medical Insurance 10,462
Dental Insurance 677
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General Purpose School Fund (Cont.)
Support Services (Cont.)
Fiscal Services (Cont.)

Contributions $ 355,106
Travel 140
Other Contracted Services 1,443
Office Supplies 3,417
In Service/Staff Development 2,557
Total Fiscal Services $ 619,189

Human Services/Personnel

Supervisor/Director $ 173,019
Clerical Personnel 26,902
Bonus Payments 850
Other Salaries and Wages 75,257
Social Security 20,068
State Retirement 30,111
Life Insurance 503
Medical Insurance 7,760
Dental Insurance 1,223
Local Retirement 591
Advertising 626
Travel 384
Other Contracted Services 2,260
Office Supplies 2,079
Other Supplies and Materials 20,944
In Service/Staff Development 1,314
Other Charges 1,069
Total Human Services/Personnel 364,960

Operation of Plant

Custodial Personnel $ 1,264,779
Overtime Pay 975
Bonus Payments 8,925
Other Salaries and Wages 33,317
Social Security 91,735
State Retirement 124,593
Life Insurance 2,281
Medical Insurance 147,209
Dental Insurance 5,558
Local Retirement 5,169
Travel 524
Other Contracted Services 621,067
Custodial Supplies 199,153
Electricity 2,391,466
Natural Gas 608,736
Water and Sewer 289,088
Building and Contents Insurance 751,185
Total Operation of Plant 6,545,760
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General Purpose School Fund (Cont.)
Support Services (Cont.)
Maintenance of Plant

Secretary(ies) $ 60,916
Overtime Pay 7,714
Bonus Payments 7,275
Other Salaries and Wages 1,607,050
Social Security 117,735
State Retirement 218,830
Life Insurance 3,131
Medical Insurance 190,344
Dental Insurance 7,440
Local Retirement 6,557
Travel 109
Other Supplies and Materials 872,505
In Service/Staff Development 1,493
Maintenance Equipment 19,575
Total Maintenance of Plant $ 3,120,674

Transportation

Supervisor/Director $ 76,103
Mechanic(s) 303,378
Bus Drivers 2,010,103
Overtime Pay 3,716
Bonus Payments 19,157
Other Salaries and Wages 505,693
Social Security 205,352
State Retirement 315,785
Life Insurance 4,058
Medical Insurance 295,160
Dental Insurance 15,469
Local Retirement 1,274
Contracts with Parents 6,773
Maintenance and Repair Services - Vehicles 17,292
Other Contracted Services 12,341
Diesel Fuel 914,770
Gasoline 147,181
Lubricants 19,494
Office Supplies 6,904
Tires and Tubes 167,446
Vehicle Parts 365,532
Other Supplies and Materials 34,227
In Service/Staff Development 6,656
Other Charges 17,370
Transportation Equipment 8,891
Total Transportation 5,480,125

Central and Other
Supervisor/Director $ 70,986
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General Purpose School Fund (Cont.)
Support Services (Cont.)
Central and Other (Cont.)

Bonus Payments $ 900
Other Salaries and Wages 212,336
Social Security 20,184
State Retirement 33,512
Life Insurance 448
Medical Insurance 17,179
Dental Insurance 301
Local Retirement 1,722
Maintenance and Repair Services - Equipment 2,847
Travel 619
Other Contracted Services 185,720
Other Supplies and Materials 25,104
In Service/Staff Development 579
Other Equipment 8,438
Total Central and Other $ 580,875

Operation of Non-instructional Services
Food Service

Career Ladder Program $ 1,000
Social Security 76
State Retirement 89
Total Food Service 1,165

Community Services

Bonus Payments $ 1,226
Other Salaries and Wages 79,618
Social Security 6,078
State Retirement 3,735
Medical Insurance 2,199
Other Supplies and Materials 2,987
Total Community Services 95,843

Early Childhood Education

Supervisor/Director $ 2,000
Teachers 785,918
Educational Assistants 289,076
Bonus Payments 6,300
Certified Substitute Teachers 11,095
In-service Training 3,050
Social Security 76,442
State Retirement 106,245
Life Insurance 2,025
Medical Insurance 119,314
Dental Insurance 4,628
Local Retirement 831
Travel 165
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General Purpose School Fund (Cont.)
Operation of Non-instructional Services (Cont.)

Early Childhood Education (Cont.)
Other Contracted Services
Instructional Supplies and Materials
In Service/Staff Development
Other Charges

Total Early Childhood Education

Capital Outlay
Regular Capital Qutlay
Other Contracted Services
Total Regular Capital Outlay

Other Debt Service
Education
Debt Service Contribution to Primary Government
Total Education

Total General Purpose School Fund

School Federal Projects Fund
Instruction

Regular Instruction Program
Teachers
Educational Assistants
Bonus Payments
Other Salaries and Wages
Certified Substitute Teachers
Social Security
State Retirement
Life Insurance
Medical Insurance
Dental Insurance
Local Retirement
Tuition
Other Contracted Services
Instructional Supplies and Materials
Other Supplies and Materials
Other Charges
Regular Instruction Equipment

Total Regular Instruction Program

Alternative Instruction Program
Other Contracted Services
Total Alternative Instruction Program

Special Education Program
Teachers

198

$ 424
55,146

7,892

634

3 26149

$ 794,089

$ 259,090
251,432
4,950
491,260
22,190
71,444
86,685
1,541
77,735
3,642
245

360
86,963
866,862
3,087
23,340
162,197

$ 345,000

$ 40,331

$

$

1,471,185

26,149

794,089

2,413,023

345,000

$

96,847,900
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School Federal Projects Fund (Cont.)
Instruction (Cont.)

Special Education Program (Cont.)

Educational Assistants $ 1,803,174
Speech Pathologist 84,670
Bonus Payments 17,745
Certified Substitute Teachers 490
Social Security 134,951
State Retirement 211,532
Life Insurance 3,552
Medical Insurance 196,508
Dental Insurance 11,383
Local Retirement 7,501
Contracts with Private Agencies 16,519
Other Contracted Services 68,954
Instructional Supplies and Materials 4,397
Other Supplies and Materials 4,148
Total Special Education Program $ 2,605,855
Vocational Education Program
Educational Assistants $ 14,852
Bonus Payments 300
Other Salaries and Wages 39,146
Social Security 3,310
State Retirement 6,495
Life Insurance 91
Medical Insurance 13,938
Dental Insurance 475
Local Retirement 542
Vocational Instruction Equipment 133,972
Total Vocational Education Program 213,121

Support Services
Health Services

Medical Personnel $ 168,364
Bonus Payments 1,000
Social Security 11,5617
State Retirement 18,989
Life Insurance 331
Medical Insurance 21,751
Dental Insurance 1,174
Local Retirement 2,597
Total Health Services 225,723

Other Student Support

Travel $ 44,428
Other Supplies and Materials 1,385
In Service/Staff Development 3,237
Other Charges 56,623
Total Other Student Support 105,673

(Continued)
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Exhibit K-8

Madison County, Tennessee
Schedule of Detailed Expenditures -
All Governmental Fund Types
Discretely Presented Madison County School Department (Cont.)

School Federal Projects Fund (Cont.)
Support Services (Cont.)
Regular Instruction Program

Clerical Personnel $ 27,861
Bonus Payments 7,200
Other Salaries and Wages 2,024,181
Social Security 143,903
State Retirement 184,767
Life Insurance 3,618
Medical Insurance 174,659
Dental Insurance 6,428
Consultants 94,040
Maintenance and Repair Services - Equipment 86
Travel 2,634
Other Contracted Services 6,375
Other Supplies and Materials 52,903
In Service/Staff Development 324,998
Other Charges 4,484
Total Regular Instruction Program $ 3,058,137
Special Education Program
Assessment Personnel $ 87,5682
Secretary(ies) 28,779
Bonus Payments 2,000
Other Salaries and Wages 242,488
Social Security 25,242
State Retirement 41,367
Life Insurance 681
Medical Insurance 33,411
Dental Insurance 2,010
Travel 295
Other Contracted Services 199,218
Other Supplies and Materials 7,137
In Service/Staff Development 13,809
Total Special Education Program 684,019
Vocational Education Program
Travel $ 1,632
Total Vocational Education Program 1,632

Transportation

Clerical Personnel $ 21,548
Bonus Payments 150
Social Security 1,466
State Retirement 3,114
Life Insurance 40
Medical Insurance 4,186
Contracts with Vehicle Owners 25,171
Total Transportation 55,675
Total School Federal Projects Fund $ 9,707,858

(Continued)
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Exhibit K-8

Madison County, Tennessee
Schedule of Detailed Expenditures -
All Governmental Fund Types
Discretely Presented Madison County School Department (Cont.)

Central Cafeteria Fund
Operation of Non-instructional Services
Food Service

Supervisor/Director $ 70,750
Accountants/Bookkeepers 95,931
Cafeteria Personnel 2,494,619
Bonus Payments 26,888
Other Salaries and Wages 188,141
Social Security 204,500
State Retirement 316,081
Life Insurance 4,659
Medical Insurance 253,781
Dental Insurance 16,453
Unemployment Compensation 4,391
Local Retirement 16,805
Other Fringe Benefits 19,251
Communication 11,216
Maintenance and Repair Services - Equipment 45,578
Transportation - Other than Students 29,523
Travel 25,006
Other Contracted Services 125,698
Food Supplies 3,659,466
Uniforms 18,363
USDA - Commodities 511,437
Other Supplies and Materials 339,069
Trustee's Commission 863
In Service/Staff Development 11,814
Food Service Equipment 103,478
Total Food Service $ 8,593,761
Total Central Cafeteria Fund $ 8,593,761

Education Capital Projects Fund

Capital Projects
Education Capital Projects

Engineering Services $ 26,531
Other Contracted Services 55,736
Trustee's Commission 34,469
Building Improvements 1,169,008
Maintenance Equipment 72,753
Regular Instruction Equipment 498,048
Transportation Equipment 171,561
Total Education Capital Projects $ 2,028,106
Total Education Capital Projects Fund 2,028,106
Total Governmental Funds - Madison County School Department $ 117,177,625
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Exhibit K-9

Madison County, Tennessee
Schedule of Detailed Receipts, Disbursements,

and Changes in Cash Balances - City Agency Funds

For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

Cash Receipts
Other Statutory Local Taxes

Current Property Tax
Prior Year's Property Tax
Interest and Penalty
Local Option Sales Tax
Hotel/Motel Tax

Total Cash Receipts

Cash Disbursements

Remittance of Revenues Collected
Trustee's Commaission
Total Cash Disbursements

Excess of Cash Receipts Over (Under)
Cash Disbursements

Cash Balance, July 1, 2013

Cash Balance, June 30, 2014

Cities - Cities -
Sales Tax Property Tax
Fund Fund Total

$ 0 1,464 $ 1,464
0 252,652 252,652
0 4,087 4,087
0 771 771
12,529,703 65,876 12,595,579
848,092 0 848,092
$ 13,377,795 324,850 $ 13,702,645
$ 13,254,269 322,647 $ 13,576,916
133,778 5,838 139,616
$ 13,388,047 328,485 $ 13,716,532
$ (10,252) $ (3,635) $ (13,887)
58,247 6,668 64,915
$ 47,995 $ 3,033 $ 51,028
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SINGLE AUDIT SECTION
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STATE OF TENNESSEE
COMPTROLLER OF THE TREASURY

DEPARTMENT OF AUDIT

DIVISION OF LOCAL GOVERNMENT AUDIT
SUITE 1500
JAMES K. POLK STATE OFFICE BUILDING
NASHVILLE, TENNESSEE 37243-1402
PHONE (615) 401-7841

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and

Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in
Accordance With Government Auditing Standards

Independent Auditor's Report

Madison County Mayor and
Board of County Commissioners
Madison County, Tennessee

To the County Mayor and Board of County Commissioners:

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United
States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, the aggregate discretely
presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund
information of Madison County, Tennessee, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2014, and
the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise Madison County's
basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated February 25, 2015.
Our report includes a reference to other auditors who audited the financial statements of
the Madison County Emergency Communications District, as described in our report on
Madison County’s financial statements. This report does not include the results of the other
auditors testing of internal control over financial reporting or compliance and other matters
that are reported on separately by those auditors.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Madison
County's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our
opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of Madison County's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an
opinion on the effectiveness of Madison County's internal control.
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A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not
allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material
weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there
is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements
will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is
a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a
material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control
that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified. Given these
limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we
consider to be material weaknesses. We did identify certain deficiencies in internal control,
described in the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs that we consider
to be significant deficiencies: 2014-002 and 2014-003.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Madison County's financial
statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance
with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial
statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions
was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The
results of our tests disclosed instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required
to be reported under Government Auditing Standards and are described in the
accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs as items: 2014-001, 2014-004,
2014-005, 2014-006, and 2014-007.

Madison County's Responses to Findings

Madison County’s responses to the findings identified in our audit are described in the
accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs. Madison County's responses
were not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial
statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on them.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control

and compliance and the result of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part
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of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering
Madison County’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not
suitable for any other purpose.

Very truly yours,

(}EL/U//V

Justin P. Wilson
Comptroller of the Treasury
Nashville, Tennessee

February 25, 2015

JPW/kp
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STATE OF TENNESSEE

COMPTROLLER OF THE TREASURY
DEPARTMENT OF AUDIT

DIVISION OF LOCAL GOVERNMENT AUDIT
SUITE 1500
JAMES K. POLK STATE OFFICE BUILDING
NASHVILLE, TENNESSEE 37243-1402
PHONE (615) 401-7841

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program; Report on Internal
Control Over Compliance; and Report on the Schedule of Expenditures of
Federal Awards Required by OMB Circular A-133

Independent Auditor's Report

Madison County Mayor and
Board of County Commissioners
Madison County, Tennessee

To the County Mayor and Board of County Commissioners:
Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Madison County's compliance with the types of compliance
requirements described in the OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that could have
a direct and material effect on each of Madison County's major federal programs for the
year ended June 30, 2014. Madison County's major federal programs are identified in the
summary of auditor's results section of the accompanying Schedule of Findings and
Questioned Costs.

Management's Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grants applicable to its federal programs.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Madison County's
major federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred
to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial
audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of
the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and
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Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with
the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and
material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence about Madison County's compliance with those requirements and
performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each
major federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of
Madison County’s compliance.

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, Madison County complied, in all material respects, with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on
each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2014.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of Madison County is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective
internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to
above. In planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered Madison
County's internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a
direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine the auditing
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal
control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly,
we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Madison County's internal control over
compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a
control over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a
type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness
in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal
control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be
prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal
control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control
over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less
severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough
to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described
in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in
internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we
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consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not
been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope
of our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on
the requirements of OMB Circular A-133. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any
other purpose.

Report on Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards Required by OMB
Circular A-133

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the aggregate
discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund
information of Madison County, Tennessee, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2014, and
the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise Madison County’s
basic financial statements. We issued our report thereon dated February 25, 2015, which
contained unmodified opinions on those financial statements. Our audit was conducted for
the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the
basic financial statements. The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by OMB Circular A-133 and is
not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility
of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and
other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. The information has been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and
certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial
statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.
In our opinion, the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is fairly stated in all
material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

Very truly yours,

L7 0l

Justin P. Wilson
Comptroller of the Treasury
Nashville, Tennessee

February 25, 2015

JPW/kp
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Madison County, Tennessee
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards and State Grants (1)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

Federal/Pass-through Agency/State

Federal

CFDA Entity Identifying

Pass-through

Grantor Program Title Number Number Expenditures
U.S. Department of Agriculture:
Passed-through State Department of Education:

Child Nutrition Cluster:

School Breakfast Program 10.553 N/A 2,658,312

National School Lunch Program 10.555 N/A 4,557,544
Passed-through State Department of Agriculture:

National School Lunch Program (Commodities - Noncash Assistance) 10.555 N/A 511,437
Passed-through State Department of Health:

Special Supplemental Nutrition Program for Women, Infants, and Children 10.557 (2) 689,356
Total U.S. Department of Agriculture 8,316,649
U.S. Department of Justice:

Passed-through State Office of Criminal Justice Programs:

Crime Victim Assistance 16.575 (2) 32,135
Passed-through City of Jackson:

Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant Program 16.738 (2) 21,854
Total U.S. Department of Justice 53,989
U.S. Department of Transportation:

Passed-through State Department of Transportation:

State and Community Highway Safety 20.600 7Z14GHS214 11,967
Total U.S. Department of Transportation 11,967
U.S. Department of Education:

Passed-through State Department of Education:

Title I Grants to Local Educational Agencies 84.010 N/A 4,306,733

Special Education Cluster:

Special Education - Grants to States 84.027 N/A 3,509,992

Special Education - Preschool Grants 84.173 N/A 36,110

Career and Technical Education - Basic Grants to States 84.048 (2) 259,182

Safe and Drug-free Schools and Communities - National Programs 84.184 (2) 81,956

Education for Homeless Children and Youth 84.196 N/A 14,032

Twenty-first Century Community Learning Centers 84.287 N/A 79,637

English Language Acquisition State Grants 84.365 (2) 55,786

Improving Teacher Quality State Grants 84.367 (2) 593,087

Investing in Innovation (i3) Fund 84.411 N/A 20,000

State Fiscal Stabilization Fund (SFSF) - Race-to-the-Top Incentive Grants,

Recovery Act 84.395 N/A 771,343
Total U.S. Department of Education 9,727,858
National Archives and Records Administration:

Passed-through Tennessee Secretary of State:

National Historical Publications and Records Grants 89.003 (2) 2,486
Total National Archives and Records Administration 2,486
U.S. Election Assistance Commission:

Passed-through Tennessee Secretary of State:

Help America Vote Act Requirements Payments 90.401 (2) 39,040
Total U.S. Election Assistance Commaission 39,040
U.S. Department of Health and Human Services:

Passed-through State Department of Health:

Public Health Emergency Preparedness 93.069 GG1436908 400,751

Injury Prevention and Control Research and State and Community Based Programs 93.136 GG1440469 15,101

Family Planning - Services 93.217 GG1337858 153,022

(Continued)
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Madison County, Tennessee
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards and State Grants (1) (Cont.)

Federal Pass-through

Federal/Pass-through Agency/State CFDA Entity Identifying

Grantor Program Title Number Number Expenditures
U.S. Department of Health and Human Services (Cont.):

Passed-through State Department of Health (Cont.):

Immunization Cooperative Agreements 93.268 GG1336123 $ 55,973

Centers for Disease Control and Prevention - Investigations and Technical Assistance 93.283 GG1334657 30,579

HIV Prevention Activities - Health Department Based 93.940 GG1439629 243,156
Assistance Programs for Chronic Disease Prevention and Control 93.945 GG1440467 27,728

Preventive Health Services - Sexually Transmitted Diseases Control Grants 93.977 GG1439629 74,201

Preventive Health and Health Services Block Grant 93.991 GG1436903 45,389
Total U.S. Department of Health and Human Services $ 1,045,900
U.S. Department of Homeland Security:

Passed-through State Department of Military:

Disaster Grants - Public Assistance (Presidentially Declared Disasters) 97.036 (2) $ 43,625

Emergency Management Performance Grants 97.042 2) 88,000

Homeland Security Grant Program 97.067 (2) 93,125
Total U.S. Department of Homeland Security $ 224,750
Total Expenditures of Federal Awards $ 19,422,639

Contract Number

State Grants:

Child and Family Intervention Services - State Department of Children's Services N/A (2) $ 123,829
State Supplemental Juvenile Improvement Funds - State Commission on

Children and Youth N/A (2) 4,500
Waste Tire Grant - State Department of Environment and Conservation N/A (2) 92,319
Local Parks and Recreation Fund Grant - State Department of Environment

and Conservation N/A (2) 251,919
Archives Development Program - Tennessee Secretary of State N/A (2) 2,000
Custodial Parents Access and Visitation - Administrative Office of the Courts N/A (2) 8,750
Coordinated School Health - State Department of Education N/A (2) 204,251
ACT/Explore - State Department of Education N/A (2) 14,439
ConnecTenn - State Department of Education N/A (2) 37,168
Arts Student Ticket Subsidy - State Department of Education N/A (2) 11,182
Early Childhood Education - State Department of Education N/A (2) 1,232,604
Lottery for Education: After School Program - State Department of Education N/A (2) 85,040
Safe Schools - State Department of Education N/A @) 27,407
School to Work - State Department of Human Services N/A (2) 30,127
High Schools That Work - State Department of Education N/A (2) 2,070
Litter Program - State Department of Transportation N/A (2) 47,891
Drug Court Grant - State Department of Finance and Administration N/A (2) 63,681
Help Us Grow Successfully (HUGS) Services - State Department of Health N/A GG1435277 65,543
Administering Environmental Health Programs - State Department of Health N/A GU0926918 135,264
TennCare Outreach - State Department of Health N/A GG1438204 181,985
Grant in Aid - State Department of Health N/A GE1437179 72,300
Tuberculosis Control, Prevention and Outreach Services - State Department of Health N/A GG1437244 72,156
TennCare School Based Dental Prevention Program - State Department of Health N/A GG1435814 286,545
Total State Grants $ 3,052,970

CFDA = Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance
N/A = Not Applicable

(1) Presented in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles using the modified accrual basis of accounting.

(2) Information not available.
(3) Total for CFDA No. 10.555 is $5,068,981.

211



Madison County, Tennessee

Schedule of Audit Findings Not Corrected
June 30, 2014

Government Auditing Standards require auditors to report the status of uncorrected
findings from prior audits. Presented below are findings from the Annual Financial Report
for Madison County, Tennessee, for the year ended June 30, 2013, which have not been
corrected.

OFFICE OF FINANCE DIRECTOR

Finding Page

Number Number Subject

2013-001 (B) 190 The office had deficiencies in purchasing procedures
2013-003 192 A cellular phone policy had not been adopted

2013-004 193 Expenditures exceeded appropriations in the Local Purpose

Tax Fund
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MADISON COUNTY, TENNESSEE
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

PART I, SUMMARY OF AUDITOR’S RESULTS
Our report on the financial statements of Madison County is unmodified.

The audit of the financial statements of Madison County disclosed significant
deficiencies in internal control. None of these deficiencies was considered to be a
material weakness.

The audit disclosed one instance of noncompliance that was material to the financial
statements of Madison County.

The audit disclosed no significant deficiencies in internal control over major
programs.

An unmodified opinion was issued on compliance for major programs.

The audit revealed no findings that are required to be reported under Section 510(a)
of OMB Circular A-133.

The Child Nutrition Cluster: School Breakfast Program and National School Lunch
Program (CFDA Nos. 10.553 and 10.555), Special Supplemental Nutrition Program
for Women, Infants, and Children (CFDA No. 10.557), the Special Education
Cluster: Special Education — Grants to States and Special Education — Preschool
Grants (CFDA Nos. 84.027 and 84.173), and State Fiscal Stabilization Fund (SFSF)
— Race-to-the-Top Incentive Grants, Recovery Act (CFDA No. 84.395) were
determined to be major programs.

A $582,679 threshold was used to distinguish between Type A and Type B federal
programs.

Madison County did not qualify as a low-risk auditee.
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PART II, FINDINGS RELATING TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Findings and recommendations, as a result of our examination, are presented below. We
reviewed these findings and recommendations with management to provide an opportunity
for their response. The finance director provided written responses on certain findings,
which are paraphrased in this report. Other management officials did not provide responses
for inclusion in this report.

HEALTH DEPARTMENT

FINDING 2014-001 THE HEALTH DEPARTMENT DID NOT REPORT A
THEFT TO THE COUNTY MAYOR, FINANCE DIRECTOR,
OR THE COMPTROLLER OF THE TREASURY
(Noncompliance Under Government Auditing Standards)

On December 19, 2013, a clerk at the Health Department reconciled the department’s bank
account and discovered a check had cleared the account that the department had not
issued, and the check appeared to have been forged. Upon further investigation, employees
determined that ten checks were missing from the department, and seven of these missing
checks totaling $5,513 had cleared the bank account. In January 2014, the bank refunded
the $5,513 to the department. An employee of the company the Health Department
contracted with for janitorial services was indicted by a grand jury in June 2014 for the
theft. The Comptroller’s Office was not informed of this theft until February 11, 2014.
Sections 8-4-501 through 8-4-505, Tennessee Code Annotated, require a person elected or
appointed to any office of a public entity to notify the Comptroller of the Treasury, within a
reasonable amount of time under the particular circumstances, but shall not under any
circumstances exceed five working days, of any unlawful conduct including theft, forgery,
credit card fraud, or any other act of unlawful taking, waste, or abuse of, or official
misconduct, involving public money, property, or services. The finance director and the
county mayor advised us that they had not been notified of this theft, and they were not
aware of the theft until we brought it to their attention.

RECOMMENDATION

The Office of the Comptroller of the Treasury should be informed of any suspected unlawful
taking of public money, property, or services within five days of becoming aware of the
unlawful conduct. Also, department heads should report any suspected thefts to the finance
director and county mayor.

MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSE — FINANCE DIRECTOR

The Comptroller’s Office, county mayor, the Finance Department, and the Audit Committee
will be informed of all unlawful taking of public money, property, or services.
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OFFICE OF FINANCE DIRECTOR

FINDING 2014-002 SOME PURCHASE ORDERS WERE ISSUED AFTER
PURCHASES WERE MADE
(Internal Control — Significant Deficiency Under Government
Auditing Standards)

As part of our audit procedures for determining whether the purchasing process was
operating as designed, we selected a sample of 50 disbursements totaling $1,575,221 from a
population of 10,840 vendor checks totaling $36,620,782. Our sample revealed that
purchase orders were issued after purchases were made in six of 31 applicable instances.
This practice defeats the purpose of the purchase order and makes it an approval of
payment rather than approval of the purchase. This deficiency is the result of
management’s failure to correct the finding noted in the prior-year audit report.

RECOMMENDATION

The Finance Department should issue purchase orders for all applicable purchases before
purchases are made to strengthen internal controls over purchasing procedures and to
document purchasing commitments.

MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSE — FINANCE DIRECTOR

The county and School Department internal auditors test disbursements for potential
findings every month. This finding is the most common one, but keeping the issue in front
of departments should lessen occurrences. The Audit Committee has said that repeat
offenders must come to its meetings to explain their actions.

FINDING 2014-003 A CELLULAR PHONE POLICY HAD NOT BEEN ADOPTED
(Internal Control — Significant Deficiency Under Government
Auditing Standards)

The county had cellular phones available for employees to use for business purposes.
However, the County Commission had not adopted written guidelines governing the use of
these phones. Sound business practices dictate that management should provide written
guidelines\ by identifying those who are entitled to use the cellular phones and the
purposes for which the phones can be used. This deficiency is the result of management’s
failure to correct the finding noted in the prior-year audit report. The lack of a formal policy
increases the risk of abuse.

RECOMMENDATION

The County Commission should adopt written guidelines governing the use of cellular
phones. These guidelines should identify those who are entitled to use the phones and the
purposes for which the phones can be used.
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MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSE — FINANCE DIRECTOR

A sample cell phone policy will be distributed to the County Commission for distribution to
the appropriate committee for formal action.

FINDING 2014-004 EXPENDITURES EXCEEDED APPROPRIATIONS IN
THE LOCAL PURPOSE TAX FUND

(Material Noncompliance Under Government Auditing

Standards)

Expenditures exceeded total appropriations approved by the County Commission in the
Local Purpose Tax Fund by $1,322,335. Section 5-9-401, Tennessee Code Annotated, states
that “All funds from whatever source derived, including, but not limited to, taxes, county
aid funds, federal funds, and fines, that are to be used in the operation and respective
programs of the various departments, commissions, institutions, boards, offices and
agencies of county governments shall be appropriated to such use by the county legislative
bodies.” This deficiency exists because management failed to hold spending to the limits
authorized by the County Commission, which resulted in unauthorized expenditures, and
management failed to correct the finding noted in the prior-year audit report.

RECOMMENDATION

Expenditures should be held within appropriations approved by the County Commission.

MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSE — FINANCE DIRECTOR

Everyone on the County Commission and the Board of Education knew of these
contributions to the School Department. This office just failed to bring the formal budget
amendment before the County Commission in June.

OFFICES OF FINANCE DIRECTOR AND DIRECTOR OF SCHOOLS

FINDING 2014-005 THE COUNTY HAS NOT COMPLIED WITH THE
PROVISIONS OF THE COUNTY FINANCIAL
MANAGEMENT SYSTEM OF 1981
(Noncompliance Under Government Auditing Standards)

Madison County operates under the County Financial Management System of 1981,
Section 5-21-103(c), Tennessee Code Annotated, which requires the creation of a Finance
Department to administer the finances of the county for all funds of the various
departments; for all employees performing the functions of purchasing, payroll, accounting,
and budgeting to be under the supervision of the director of finance; and such personnel
related expenses to be budgeted under the Finance Department. In January 2015, the
bookkeeper who maintains the accounting records of the School Department was
transferred from the Finance Department to the School Department and placed under the
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budget and supervision of the director of schools. The bookkeeper continues to maintain the
accounting records of the School Department and inputs data into the Finance
Department’s accounting system, contrary to the provisions of the 1981 Act. This deficiency
exists because management failed to comply with the state statute.

RECOMMENDATION

All employees performing accounting functions for the various departments should be
under the budget and supervision of the director of finance.

MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSE — FINANCE DIRECTOR

By allowing the employee in question to be transferred to the School Department, the
employee still did all the accounting functions for the Finance Department as related to
schools, which saved this department significant money. Another employee within the
Finance Department initials all the accounting work that the new school employee does.
By allowing this to happen and with the safety that this double-check provides, the director
thought he was following state statute Section 5-21-107, Tennessee Code Annotated, which
says, “the director shall assist other county officials and employees in achieving an efficient
financial system for the county.” Again this was done with double-checks in place.
However, we did not meet Section 5-21-103(c) completely. To meet the full letter of the law,
we have reassigned some duties resulting in less savings. As of March 1, 2015, no one
outside the Finance Department will have access to change any Madison County accounting
records.

AUDITOR’S COMMENT

All accounting functions for the School Department should be performed by employees
under the supervision and budget of the director of finance. Having two employees doing
the same function (double-checking) is not cost efficient.

FINDING 2014-006 THE SCHOOL DEPARTMENT FAILED TO COMPLY
WITH STATE STATUTES REGARDING LEASE
AGREEMENTS

(Noncompliance Under Government Auditing Standards)

Our audit revealed the following deficiencies concerning lease agreements for copy
machines for the School Department:

A. In August 2013, the county Finance Department solicited bids for a
multi-year digital copier contract for the School Department; however, a
contract was never awarded due to a dispute among vendors concerning some
of the bid specifications. We were advised by Finance Department personnel
that the School Department was asked to clarify the bid specifications so the
contract could be rebid. However, the Finance Department never received
any revised specifications so the contract was not rebid. The School
Department’s previous copier contract with Xerox Corporation expired
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September 30, 2013, but included a provision that the contract would
continue on a month-to-month basis after it expired unless a 30-day notice
was given. On February 4, 2014, the chief academic officer at the School
Department signed an extension of this contract with the same pricing and
terms guaranteed until September 30, 2014. The School Department then
began negotiating new leases for these copiers. On July 14, 2014, the chief
financial officer at the School Department entered into new five-year
operating lease agreements with Xerox Corporation totaling $183,078 for
26 of the copiers from the previous contract. Also, on July 14, 2014, the chief
financial officer entered into a new $500,520 five-year operating lease
agreement with Image Tech Resources, LLC, (a Xerox sales agent) for the
remaining 34 oldest copiers from the previous contract. According to school
personnel, the original agreement included machines that had actually been
added at various times throughout the period with individual leases that
expired on different dates. They advised that they had amended and
extended all of the various leases in order to have them all expire at the same
time five years from now.

B. During the period of October 1, 2013, through September 30, 2014, there
were several other five-year operating lease agreements entered into by the
School Department with Xerox Corporation. These leases were signed by
various school employees and totaled $147,976 for 14 new copy machines.

None of the above-noted lease agreements were approved by the County Commission or the
Board of Education. Section 7-51-904, Tennessee Code Annotated, provides that lease
agreements must be approved by the governing body prior to the agreement being finalized.
Also, the lease agreements entered into by the School Department were not competitively
bid, and the county’s director of finance was not involved in the acquisition process. The
County Financial Management Act of 1981 provides for a central system of purchasing for
all county departments. Also, this statute provides for the finance director to serve as the
county purchasing director who is responsible for reviewing specifications, preparing formal
and informal bids, collecting sealed bids, opening bids, evaluating bids, and issuing
purchase orders and contracts. All purchases exceeding $10,000 are to be competitively bid
through public advertisement. The failure to solicit competitive bids could result in the
department paying more than the most competitive price.

RECOMMENDATION

Lease agreements should be approved by the Board of Education and the County
Commission as required by state statute. Competitive bids should be solicited for all
applicable purchases exceeding $10,000. The county’s finance director should solicit,
receive, award all bids, and issue purchasing contracts as required by the County Financial
Management System of 1981.

MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSE — FINANCE DIRECTOR

We concur. There was a change in school employees during this time.
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OFFICE OF COUNTY CLERK

FINDING 2014-007 CASH AND CHECKS TOTALING $23,178.25 WERE
STOLEN FROM THE OFFICE SAFE

(Noncompliance Under Government Auditing Standards)

On December 24, 2014, office employees discovered that $3,705.31 in cash and $19,472.94
in checks were missing from an office safe. The Madison County Sheriff’'s Department was
called to investigate the theft, and the office filed a Fraud Reporting Form with the
Comptroller’s Office. On dJanuary 6, 2015, an office employee admitted to Sheriff’s
Department investigators that she stole the funds and burned the checks. Also, implicated
in the theft was the office employee’s boyfriend. Both individuals have been charged with
theft. The county clerk is in the process of contacting individuals who paid for their
transactions by check to ask for replacement checks. This finding has been discussed with
the district attorney general.

RECOMMENDATION

Officials should seek to recover the stolen funds. Internal controls over access to the safe
should be evaluated.
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PART III, FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED
COSTS FOR FEDERAL AWARDS

There were no findings and questioned costs for federal awards.
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MADISON COUNTY, TENNESSEE
AUDITEE REPORTING RESPONSIBILITIES
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

There were no audit findings relative to federal awards presented in the prior- or
current-years’ Schedules of Findings and Questioned Costs.
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